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Office of the Brazos County Auditor

Brazos County Courthouse
200 East S. Texas Avenue — Suite 218
Bryan, Texas 77803
(979) 361-4350
Fax (979) 361-4188

Email: kconner@co.brazos.tx.us

March 10, 2016

The Honorable Board of District Judges
The Honorable Commissioners’ Court

Honorable Judges and Commissioners of Brazos Couiakas:

In compliance with Section 114.025 of the Texasdldgovernment Code, the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report of Brazos County, Texas (tCounty”) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2015, is hereby submitted.

This report consists of management’s representatmmcerning the finances of the County.
Consequently, management assumes full respongifmlitthe completeness and reliability of all
of the information presented in this report. Tovjie a reasonable basis for making these
representations, the County has established a ebrapsive internal control framework that is
designed both to protect the County’s assets fiasg, Itheft or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the ibaBnancial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Becase cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehendnanework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absakserance that the basic financial statements
will be free from material misstatement. The rawpbility for internal controls is shared by the
Commissioners’ Court, which is the governing badthg, County Auditor, who is appointed by the
District Judges, and the County Treasurer. Weebelithat the County’s internal accounting
controls adequately safeguard assets and provakomable assurance of proper recording of
financial transactions. We assert that, to the bestr knowledge and belief, this financial report
is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The County’s basic financial statements have beerted by Ingram, Wallis & Company, P.C., a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. Tdmal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the basic financialnstats of the County for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2015, are free of material misstaiemeThe independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingutheunts and disclosures in the basic financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlel asd evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditors’ repapteésented as the first component of the financial
section of this report.

The independent audit of the basic financial stateishof Brazos County was part of a broader,
federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to miet special needs of federal and state grantor
agencies. The standards governing Single Audiageigpents require the independent auditor to
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report not only on the fair presentation of theibdsancial statements, but also on the audited
government’s internal controls and compliance Wetljal requirements, with special emphasis on
internal controls and legal requirements involvihg administration of federal and state awards.
These reports are contained in the section titladeépendent Auditors’ Reports on Compliance
and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting”.

Generally accepted accounting principles requiraative introduction, overview and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in fthten of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). The introduction includes thisatismittal letter, the County’s organizational
chart and a list of principal officials. This lkettof transmittal is designed to complement MD&A
and should be read in conjunction with it. Bragsunty’s MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditofie financial section also includes government-
wide financial statements, fund financial stateregmiotes to the basic financial statements,
required supplementary information and the comigirand individual fund financial statements
and schedules in addition to the report of the pedelent auditors. The statistical section of this
report includes selected financial and demograptiarmation, which is generally presented on a
multi-year basis.

PROFILE OF BRAZOS COUNTY

Geographic Information

Brazos County is located in East Central Texasannarea bounded on all sides by large
metropolitan areas. Dallas-Ft. Worth is 180 mitethe north, Houston 95 miles to the southeast,
Austin 104 miles to the west, and San Antonio 16&srto the southwest. There are two major
cities in the County that make up the business aintliral center, Bryan and College Station.

They have a combined population of approximately,Q@0.

The County lies in what is often referred to as tRest Oak Belt,” where fields, valleys and

rolling green hills have an abundance of treesushioly post oak, live oak, red oak, elm and
hickory. It comprises 588 square miles of rollprgirie and woodland with elevations that range
from 200 to 350 feet above sea level.

County Structure and Services

The County is a public corporation and a politisabdivision of the State of Texas. The general
governing body of the County is the elected fivewwher Commissioners’ Court in accordance

with Article 5 Paragraph 18 of the Texas Consiitati Commissioners serve four-year staggered
terms, two members elected every two years. Thentyaludge is elected at large to serve a four-
year term.

The Commissioners’ Court sets the tax rates, astes policies for County operations, approves
contracts for the County and develops and adomsCbunty budget within the resources as
estimated by the County Auditor. The Commissionémurt is also responsible for development
of policies and procedures, approving financial ootments and appointment of various

department heads. The management and leadersivijolgal by members of the Commissioners’

Court and the elected and appointed officials bEpkey County offices is crucial to the success
of the County in financial management and growth.



The County Auditor has responsibilities for presicrg the systems and procedures for handling
the finances of the County and “examining, auditangd approving” all disbursements from
County funds prior to their submission to the Cossianers’ Court for approval.

The County provides a full range of services adi@iged by the Constitution and Statutes of the
State of Texas. The primary functions include geneovernment, justice system, law
enforcement, juvenile services, public transpastgtipublic health, human services, and debt
service.

Budget Process

The annual budget serves as the foundation of thent®'s planning and control. Budget
hearings are posted annually in July with the fimadget approved by the Commissioners’ Court
following the hearings. After adoption of the betdpy the Commissioners’ Court, the County
Auditor is responsible for ensuring expenditureg anade in compliance with budgeted
appropriations. The final budget includes contirmyeand emergency reserves line items. Most
appropriated budgets are prepared by fund, functi@mpartment and classification. Capital
expenditures are approved on a line item basid.bédget transfers between departments must
follow special approval processes. Budget to datamparisons are provided in this report for
each individual government fund for which an appiaied annual budget has been adopted.
Encumbrances are utilized to ensure effective biadgecontrol and accountability, and all
outstanding encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end.

Primary Government and Related Organizations

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board defites reporting entity as the primary
government and its component units. Brazos Cois\y primary governmental unit, and the
financial statements include all funds, agenciesrtis, commissions and authorities for which the
elected officials of the County are financially aoatable. The statements include all items that,
by the nature and significance of the relationdlg@pwveen the entity and the County, are such that
their exclusion from the financial reporting formatould render the financial statements
misleading or incomplete.

The Brazos County Juvenile Services functions unter umbrella and control of the
Commissioners’ Court, for which the CommissionéZgurt has fiscal responsibility. It has an
independent board that provides operational contiidlis entity is not legally separate from the
County and is included in the operations and aawiof the County’s General Fund. The
Commissioners’ Court approves the operating budgeis the expenditures of this entity.
Operational funding is derived from state, fedeaal] local funds.

The Brazos County Health Facilities Development pOaoation, the Brazos County Industrial
Development Corporation and the Brazos County Hwudtinance Corporation are related
organizations to the County. These corporationgewereated by resolutions of the
Commissioners’ Court to enable the various thirdiyparganizations the ability to issue tax-
exempt bonds to provide low cost funding to promentd improve the health and welfare of the
public. The tax-exempt bonds issued by these catipms do not constitute a debt or a pledge of
faith or credit of the corporation or the Countyt lare payable by the user pursuant to terms
defined in the loan agreement underlying each is&eeh corporation is governed by a Board of
Directors made up of members of the Commission€mirt. None of the corporations are
reported in the County’s financial statements.



The Brazos Valley Fair & Exposition is another tethorganization to the County. This 501(c)3
organization was established for educational, sifierand charitable purposes in 2010 and is
currently governed by a seven member Executive Ctteenwhich was appointed by the Brazos
County Commissioners’ Court.

FACTORSAFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The official census for 2010 established the pdmneaof the County at 194,851, which is up from
152,415 in 2000. The 28% increase is larger thanowerall growth of Texas (21%) in the past
decade.

In September 2015, Brazos County had an unemploymat@ of 3.3% compared to a Texas
statewide unemployment rate of 4.4% for the sametmoThe unemployment rate at September
2014 was 3.8 %. As of September 2015, the labweféigures for the County, as established by
the Texas Workforce Commission, are 103,207 of wi®,813 are currently employed. The
following schedule is an estimate of the numbeemployees and the corresponding percentage
per industry as of September 2015.

The employment base of the area by industry classification is as follows:

Number Of

Employer Group Employees Per centage
State, Local, Federal Government 35,000 33%
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 16,800 16%
Education and Health Services 10,300 10%
Leisure and Hospitality 14,500 13%
Mining, Logging and Construction 7,400 7%
Professional and Business Services 7,300 7%
Manufacturing 6,500 6%
Financial Activities 3,900 4%
Other Services 3,600 3%
Information 1.500 1%
TOTAL 106,800 100%

Source: Texas Workforce Commission

According to the recent Employment Statistics Higjis released by the Bureau of Labor
Statistics of the United States Department of Lakbk8 labor market conditions kept improving.
From October 2014 to September 2015 the area hdedaapproximately 1,100 non-farm jobs,
and 2,000 private sector jobs, reflecting the trend

According to the Real Estate Center at Texas A&Mversity, the Bryan-College Station area
showed strong sales growth in its real estate nhamk2015. Home sales in the area increased 7%
for 2015 compared to 2014 and the average sale fmidouses in this area increased about 6%.



The County’s assessed property valuation for tat 014 increased 9.6% compared to tax year
2013. Sales tax receipts for fiscal year 2015eased 3.0% compared to fiscal year 2014. The
following charts show the changes in the two catiego

Brazos County Assessed Property Valuation
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Brazos County is the home of Texas A&M Universthe sixth largest university in enroliment in
the United States. Opened in 1876 as Texas’ finktic institution of higher learning, Texas
A&M University is the research-intensive flagshipiversity with about 50,000 undergraduates
and 15,000 graduate students studying in over I3fengraduate and 260 graduate degree
programs in 16 colleges and schools. The facultygrtaduate students of Texas A&M University
conduct about $850 million in research expenditurBise University has an endowment valued at
more than $5 billion, which ranks fourth among Up8blic universities and 10th overall. More
than 1,200 public events are hosted through thevddsity each year. The presence of Texas
A&M has consistently provided incentive for resitleahdevelopment and growth and offered the
area some insulation from adverse economic effects.

The University’s main campus is one of the largestmerica, spanning 5,200 acres and has the
distinction of providing space for the George Bidesidential Library Center and the George
Bush School of International Study. The Librarpydes a tremendous research center, and
hosted in excess of 145,000 visitors in 2015. Tadlity, along with the 324-acre University
Research Park, provides an attraction for botlonatiand international visitors.

The University completed the redevelopment of dstlball stadium, Kyle Field, in September
2015. The $483 million project is the largest eglate athletic construction project in history to
date.

In addition to the four-year program Texas A&M affeBlinn College offers a two-year program
at two locations: the main campus in Brenham armtaach location in Bryan. Both locations
offer various technical certificates and associdiggrees in arts and sciences. The Bryan location
offers the same programs and degrees as the maipusa but also takes part in a joint
collaborative effort with Texas A&M University. At 13,200 students enrolled in Blinn’s
Bryan campus for the fall semester of 2015.

A comprehensive community college committed to etiooal excellence and to individual and

community enhancement, Blinn College has serveti3tsounty Central Texas region since 1883.
Blinn ranks among the nation’s leaders in transfgrstudents to leading four-year universities
and has received national recognition for affordadducational excellence. Blinn’'s Bryan campus
adds $247.4 million into the Brazos County econoatgording to a study conducted by

Economic Modeling Specialists, Inc.

Brazos County is a member of the Research Valleyrtn®aship (the RVP,
www.researchvalley.org), a private, non-profit emmc development corporation dedicated to
promoting the seven county area surrounding Br&mmty and the cities of Bryan and College
Station. The RVP focuses its efforts on creatiolgsjand new investments primarily in the
industry sectors of technology transfer/researcheld@ment, information technology, life
sciences and biotechnology, corporate and regidmdquarters operation, value-added
agricultural processing, customer support, manufagy and logistics.

One of the key factors in the progress of the RR bheen its ability to utilize and market the
large skilled workforce in the areas surroundinga®A&M University which includes students,

faculty, researchers and technological innovatard entrepreneurs. The development of the
BioCorridor area has been a focus under the lelhglersf the Research Valley Partnership. A
unique vision has emerged for biotechnology, en@ssing research, preclinical studies, clinical
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studies and manufacturing all in one corridor. Wanh the elements are already in place: the
Texas A&M Institute for Genomic Medicine, the Tex&&M Institute for Preclinical Studies, the
Texas A&M Health Science Center, the National Ceri¢ée Therapeutic Manufacturing and
Project GreenVax all have an established presentted area. The momentum and vision for the
BioCorridor continues to grow.

Brazos County partnered with the City of Bryan teate the City of Bryan and Brazos County
Economic Development Foundation, Inc. The Countyoisking forward to drawing quality
businesses, encouraging and maintaining employnad, expanding both entities’ tax base
through Foundation activities. The industrial sitermed by the 1,000-acre tract of land and
outfitted with infrastructure and utilities, is nkated as the Texas Triangle Park, named for its
excellent geographic location. Currently, two comipa, Axis Pipe and Tube and Kristen
Distributing Company, are in full operation in thark.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

In 2015, the Commissioners’ Court of Brazos Cowtwtinued the strategic planning program
concerning capital improvements and expansionvlaatbegun in 1996. This program focuses on
meeting current and future needs of the County.

During 2015, the County continued the constructioh County roads to connect major
thoroughfares. The Commissioners’ Court has caetinto provide adequate funding so that the
road and bridge improvement program to upgrade wittbn rural County roads could be
continued. The program has been in place sincé 488 the Commissioners’ Court appropriated
a public transportation budget for fiscal year 2@d5nclude $11.3 million (includes personnel
services, supplies and other charges, contingenapairs and maintenance, minor acquisitions,
contract services, and professional services) fartime maintenance and $3illion for
improvements and upgrades. The County expendedoxipmtely $9.2 million dollars in
maintaining the roads and upgraded and reconstruoteds at a cost of over $1.5 million dollars
during the year.

The County issued $9.7 million of certificates dfligation in October 2012 to fund the County
courthouse renovation project and the new tax @fficilding construction. The new tax office
building was completed in the spring of 2015 wittotal cost of $4.3 million. The total cost of the
courthouse renovation was $13.1 million as of the ef fiscal year 2015. In October 2015, the
County issued $9.1 million Certificates of Obligatj Series 2015 through private placement to
further fund the County courthouse renovation miojand support the Exposition Center
expansion. The estimated cost of the courthousavedion project in 2016 is about $9.2 million.
The project has at least six phases and is exp&zteel completed in 2016. Once the renovation is
finished, the courthouse building will provide mareurtroom spaces and house three district
courts, two county courts, the County Attorney’di€, the District Attorney’s Office, the County
Clerk’s Office and the District Clerk’s Office.

FINANCIAL POLICIESAND LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING
The County has adopted an investment policy asnemfjby state law and in conformity with state
investment statutes. The investment policy as &dbpy the County employs the prudent person

concept in that priorities were established ashw ihvestment vehicles the County would use.
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Safety was established as the first priority, fetal by liquidity, low risk and diversification. €h
County Treasurer is responsible for administeriigof the investment of idle funds in the
County. At September 30, 2015, the County had emshcash equivalents of $75.9 million in
governmental and business-type activities, the nitgjof which was invested in the County’s
depository. For the last several years, the Césirlgpository has provided better interest rates
than comparable liquid investments. At Septemiter2®15, the County also had $2.4 million
invested in a state wide investment pool. Durlmgfiscal year, th€ounty earned approximately
$205,000 interest.

Debt administration is monitored through the Debitvie Fund. The County has never defaulted
on the payment of principal or interest on its l®nd certificates of obligation. At September 30,
2015, the County had been assigned a bond ratidd\ddy Standard & Poor’s Rating Service. In
compliance with the requirements of the bond oedet certificates of obligation agreements, the
County maintains separate accountability. Thertag set each year is calculated to provide
sufficient funding to meet current year obligationst September 30, 2015, the County has $5.8
million reserved in the Debt Service Fund to meéire obligations.

The County is responsible for establishing its tabe. For the fiscal year ended September 30,
2015, the tax rate to finance general governmesgalices was $0.4266 per $100 valuation and
the tax rate for the payment of principal and iestron long-term debt was $0.0624 per $100 of
valuation. For the fiscal year ended September 28,6, the tax rate to finance general
government services is $0.4247 per $100 valuatiwhthe tax rate for the payment of principal
and interest on long-term debt is $0.0603 per &#fG@luation.

In addition, the County also has the following fical policies:

 The Commissioners’ Court of the County shall reviamd formally adopt the annual
budget prepared by the Budget Officer.

* Expenditures are controlled to not exceed availabsources. All elected officials and
department heads are required to keep expendittti@s allocated budgets.

* Balanced financial operations will be maintainedlequate internal accounting controls
are developed and maintained to safeguard assdtpranide reasonable assurance of
proper recording of financial transactions.

» Technological solutions are used to improve openati

* Provide an equitable justice system that is respern® the needs of the County. The
County continues its effort on the replacementefcurrent judicial software.

» Delivery of service to the constituents.

» Take advantage of the low market price on consbmatork to satisfy the County’s needs
on capital improvements and expansion.

» Restrain the debt issuance to keep the tax rate low

* Maintain full disclosure and open lines of commuaion with the rating agencies and
seek to obtain a high debt rating with a stabléoolt

Significant budget initiatives in fiscal year 20ibsluded:
* The County added 32 full-time positions, eliminagfpart-time positions, and approved
a 3% cost-of-living adjustment.
* The County acquired a visual visitation systemifionates to allow them to be able to visit
with families, attorneys, and probation officera wiideo link. The funding came from



various sources, including the remaining funds of the 2008 general obligation bonds,
transfers from the inmate jail commissary fund, and capital improvement fund.

e The County started the development of its judicial system software funded by the capital
improvement fund. The estimated cost of the software is about $4.0 million.

e The County continued the courthouse renovation project and completed construction of the
new tax office building with funding from the capital improvement fund and the debt
issuance of Certificates of Obligation, Series 2012.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

This report has been prepared following the guidelines recommended by the Government Finance
Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada. The GFOA awards a certificate of
achievement to those govemnments whose annual financial reports are judged to conform
substantially to high standards of public financial reporting, including generally accepted
accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The
County has been awarded the Certificate of Achievement for its annual financial report since
1988. The report has historically presented the financial information of the County in an easily
readable and efficient manner. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for one year. This office
believes that the current year report continues to meet the program standards, and it will be
submitted to the GFOA to determine County eligibility for another certificate.

We wish to express our thanks to the Commissioners’ Court and the District Judges for their
support and interest in planning and conducting the financial affairs of the County in a responsible
and professional manner. This report could not have been completed in a timely manner without
the dedicated efforts of all County elected officials, the Commissioners’ Court, the County
Auditor’s staff, and the independent auditors, Ingram, Wallis & Company, P. C.

Respectfully submitted,

Katie Butler
County Auditor
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Ingram,Wallis &Co.pC

GERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Duane Peters, County Judge
and the Honorable County Commissioners
of Brazos County, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Brazos
County, Texas (the “County™), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. ‘

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express

no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed is sufficient and approprlate to provide a basis
for our audit oplmons

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of September 30,
2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. ‘

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1-S to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2015, the County adopted new
accounting guidance related to the accounting for pensions. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accountlng principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the

management’s discussion and analysis, pension-plan information, other post-employment benefits
information, infrastructure condition data, and budgetary comparison information on pages 16
through 27 and 77 through 96 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such

information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for

placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic; or historical

context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which

consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and

comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial

statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the

limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

assurance. '

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
schedule - of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Ldcal Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular,
issued by the Office of the Governor of the State, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements. ' ‘ :
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The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison
schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules, and the schedule of
expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole. '

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

© Other Reporting Required by GovernmentAﬁditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
10, 2016, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our .
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal .
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. '

Bryan, Texas ' 9 QN GJ('U) ’
March 10, 2016 ”"‘Y“C“‘“J )



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For the Year Ending September 30, 2015

This section of the Brazos County comprehensiveianimancial report presents management’s
discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the financiakqormance of the primary government
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 201&ask read the MD&A in conjunction with the
transmittal letter at the front of this report ahé County’s basic financial statements following
this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

 The total government-wide assets (and deferredloodf of resources) of the County
exceeded the liabilities (and deferred inflowsexaurces) by $164,269,688 at September 30,
2015, and are reported as the total net positiorthef primary government. This is
comparable to the total net position of $150,573 @5September 30, 2014.

* The government-wide total net position increase8,@17,935 during the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2015. The net position from the gowental activities increased
$13,595,805 while the net position from businegetgctivities increased $102,130.

» Total net position of the primary government armpased of the following:

Net Position by Category September 30, 2015 % to Total September 30, 2014 % to Total

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 148,550,767 920% $ 135,595,244 90%
Restricted 11,485,488 7% 15,302,060 10%
Unrestricted 4,233,433 3% (325,551) 0%
Total Net Positio $ 164,269,68 100% % 150,571,75 100%

Fund Financial Statements

» As of September 30, 2015, the County governmentald reported combined fund balances
of $67,875,587. This reflects an increase of $32% from the previous fiscal year,
primarily due to more tax revenue collected for year. $39,747,932 or 59% of the
combined fund balances at September 30, 2015 aitalale to meet the County’s current
and future needs (unassigned fund balances).

* At the end of the fiscal year, the unassigned foaldnce of the County’s General Fund was
$39,747,932 or 55% of the General Fund'’s total esjiares and 46% of the revenues.

e The total fund balance for the nonmajor governniefutads was $5,299,678 at September

30, 2015. Of this amount, $5,239,079 is restrittedhe legislature, $46,091 is restricted by
bond covenant, and $14,508 is nonspendable.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to sessara introduction to the County’s basic

financial statements. The County’s basic financsghtements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial stateme)téund financial statements and 3) notes
to the basic financial statements. Required supgtgary information is included in addition to

the basic financial statements. The report alsdawas other supplementary information and
statistical data.

Government-Wide Financial Statements Theseare designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of County finances, in a manner similaatprivate-sector business. They include a
Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Aai Both of these statements are presented
using the accrual method of accounting; therefaregenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The statement of net position presents informatiorall County assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the differen@ported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a usehghator of whether the financial position of
the County is improving or deteriorating. Howewvather non-financial factors, such as changes
in the County’s property tax base and the conditibthe County’s roads, should be considered
to assess the overall health of the County.

The statement of activities presents informatioavwshg how net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net positare reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless otithing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses reported in this statement may liestdish flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of these government-wide financial statemeliggnguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmergaenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover alhgrart a portion of their costs through user fees
and charges (business-type activities). The gowental activities of the County include
general government, justice system, law enforcemjaaenile services, public transportation,
public health and human services. The business-ggivities of the County include the
business-type operations of the County Attorneytaedlail Commissary.

Fund Financial Statements ‘Fundsare groupings of related accounts that are usethintain
control over resources that have been segregate@pfecific activities or objectives. The
County, like other state and local governmentss tfised accounting to ensure and demonstrate
finance-related legal compliance. All of the funoisthe County can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary fumasfaduciary funds.

Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same iurgtreported as
governmental activities in the government-wide ficial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmefuiladl financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resourcesyell as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Suchrmfttion may be useful in evaluating the
County’s near-term financing requirements.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Because the focus of governmental funds is narratvan the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the informagicesented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activitisghe government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand thetlermg impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fundtaibce sheet and the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changkmdhbalances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmentatifuand governmental activities.

The County maintains 30 individual governmentaldsin Information is presented separately in
the governmental funds balance sheet and in thergmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for tkeefal, Debt Service, and Capital
Improvement funds, which are considered to be mijods. Data from other governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated ptasen. Individual fund data for each of these
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the fafltombining schedules elsewhere in this
report.

Proprietary Funds are maintained two ways. An enterprise fund isdus report the same
functions presented as business-type activiti¢bargovernment-wide financial statements. The
County uses an enterprise fund to account for thumty attorney administration of the returned
check activities and the jail commissary activitiegternal service funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs aitgramong the County’s various functions.
The County uses internal service funds to accoonité administration of the County’s self-
insurance programs for health services. Becaussethservices predominantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functidresy have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statense

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for theflieof parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected he government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not bieata support the County’s own programs.
The County’s only fiduciary funds are agency fundsyency funds are purely custodial (assets
equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measugatof results of operations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statementprovide additional information that is essentialato
full understanding of the data provided in the goweent-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes can be found on pages 42-76 of this tepor

Required Supplementary Information is presented concerning the County’s General Fund
budgetary schedule. The schedule, which includesotiginal and final amended budget and
actual figures, has been provided to demonstratgtiance with this budget. Also presented in
this section are the OPEB Schedule of Funding Besgand the pension related schedules
required by GASB 68. The condition assessment mdébion for county roads and bridges can
also be found in this section. Required supplemgntdormation can be found on pages 77-96
of this report.

Combining and Individual Fund Schedulesprovide information for nonmajor governmental
funds, internal service funds and agency funds amedpresented immediately following the
required supplementary information. The combinmdj¥idual fund statements and schedules
including budgetary comparison can be found on &3el47 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, over time, net position may seagea useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. The total net position of tBeunty was $164,269,688 for fiscal year 2015
and $150,571,753 for fiscal year 2014.

Condensed Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2015

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Current and other assets 87,338,43% 620,145 $ 87,958,580
Capital assets, net 233,120,851 27,547 233,148,398
Total assets 320,459,286 647,692 321,106,978
Deferred outflows of resources 6,020,188 8,767 6,028,955
Total deferred outflows of resources 6,020,188 8,767 6,028,955
Current and other liabilities 14,046,475 18,527 14,065,002
Long-term liabilities 148,301,439 92,466 148,393,905
Total liabilities 162,347,914 110,993 162,458,907
Deferred inflows of resources 406,640 698 407,338
Total deferred inflows of resources 406,640 698 407,338
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 148,523,220 27,547 148,550,767
Restricted 11,485,488 - 11,485,488
Unrestricted 3,716,212 517,221 4,233,433
Total net positio $ 163,724,92 $ 544,76¢ $  164,269,68

Condensed Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Current and other assets $ 85,833,16% 497,701 $ 86,330,866
Capital assets, net 222,364,724 39,176 222,403,900
Total assets 308,197,889 536,877 308,734,766
Deferred outflows of resources 4,280,792 5,575 4,286,367
Total deferred outflows of resources 4,280,792 5,575 4,286,367
Current and other liabilities 14,873,541 16,465 14,890,006
Long-term liabilities 147,534,534 83,349 147,617,883
Total liabilities 162,408,075 99,814 162,507,889
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 135,556,068 39,176 135,595,244
Restricted 15,302,060 - 15,302,060
Unrestricted (729,013) 403,462 (325,551)
Total net position, as resta $ 150,129,111 $ 442,63t $ 150,571,75
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

The largest portion of the County’s current fisgaar net position (90%) reflects its investment

of $148,550,767 in capital assets (e.g., land,dingk, equipment, and infrastructure, net of

accumulated depreciation), less any related ousigrdebt used to acquire those assets. The
County uses these capital assets to provide sertacetizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the Cotmipvestment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that theoueces needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capitaltasbemselves cannot be liquidated for these

liabilities.

The restricted net position of $11,485,488 (7%Ye&spnts resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remgib@lance of the unrestricted net position,
$4,233,433 (3%) may be used to meet the governm@mijoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. At the end of the current fiscal yele, County was able to report positive balances in
all three categories of net position for its goveemtal and business-type activities. The prior
fiscal year’s unrestricted net position was restdtem a positive balance to a negative balance
as the result of the implementation of GASB Statein® and 71. The County’s net position
increased by $13,697,935 as a result of fiscal 2646 operations. It is primarily attributable to

the increase in various tax collections.

The following table indicates changes in net positfor governmental and business-type

activities:

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for servic

Operating grants and contributic

Capital grants and contributic

General revenues:

Property taxe

Sales taxe

Motor vehicle taxe

Mixed drink taxe

Hotel occupancy tax
Unrestricted investment earnir

Total revenues

Expenses:

General Governme
Justice Syste

Law Enforcemer
Juvenile Service
Public Transportatic
Public Healtl

Human Service
Interest and Other Fe

Total expenses

Change in net positic

Net position - beginning, as reste

Net position - ending

Condensed Statement of Activitie
For the Year Ended September 30, 20:

Governmenta Business-Tyg
Activities Activities Total

$ 15,509,71 % 732,17( 16,241,88
2,810,78 - 2,810,78
2,516,04. - 2,516,04:
65,242,89 - 65,242,89
15,351,01 - 15,351,01
1,644,22! - 1,644,22!
966,89: - 966,89:
2,612,47. - 2,612,47
204,18¢ 1,12( 205,30t

106,858,242 733,290 107,591,532
23,815,31 - 23,815,31
18,957,60 8,391 18,965,99
23,565,57 622,76¢ 24,188,34
6,776,46: - 6,776,46i
9,063,76! - 9,063,76!
1,501,08! - 1,501,08I
6,018,60: - 6,018,60:
3,564,03: - 3,564,03:

93,262,437 631,160 93,893,597
13,595,80 102,13( 13,697,93
150,129,11 442,63t 150,571,75

$ 163,724,920 $ 544,768 $ 164,269,688
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Condensed Statement of Activitie
For the Year Ended September 30, 20:

Governmenta Business-Typ
Activities Activities Total
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for servic $ 15,647,23 $ 743,99t $ 16,391,23
Operating grants and contributic 2,768,83 - 2,768,83
Capital grants and contributic 3,382,23: 3,382,23i
General revenues:
Property taxe 60,333,77 60,333,77
Sales taxe 14,900,37 14,900,37-
Motor vehicle taxe 1,519,57 1,519,57
Mixed drink taxe 532,82. 532,82:
Hotel occupancy tax 2,441,38! - 2,441,38!
Unrestricted investment earnit 209,08¢ 1,05¢ 210,14
Gain on sale of capital ass 34,88¢ - 34,88¢
Total revenues 101,770,223 745,051 102,515,274
Expenses:
General Governme 22,017,69 - 22,017,69
Justice Syste 21,308,47 18,37¢ 21,326,84
Law Enforcemer 22,530,37 624,46! 23,154,83
Juvenile Service 6,022,76: - 6,022,76:
Public Transportatic 8,831,91 8,831,91.
Public Healtl 1,756,84! 1,756,84!
Human Service 5,993,59! 5,993,59!
Interest and Other Fe 3,501,97: - 3,501,97:
Total expenses 91,963,638 642,843 92,606,481
Increase in net position before transfers 9,806,585 102,208 9,908,793
Transfers 100,000 (100,000) -
Change in net positic 9,906,58! 2,20¢ 9,908,79:
Net position - beginnir 151,390,32 518,20 151,908,53
Prior period adjustment - GASB 58,50¢ (58,509 -
Impact of change in accounting princi (11,226,30% (19,265 (11,245,57C
Net position - ending $ 150,129,115 $ 442,638 $ 150,571,753

Revenue Analysis

For fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, revemoeshe primary government totaled
$107,591,532. The revenues are categorized byitgctype: governmental activities totaled
$106,858,242 and business-type activities totak&8$90.

Program revenues are derived from the progranf asel thereby reduce the cost of the function
to the County. Total program revenues were $21/A&8and 20% of total revenues. Of that
$20,836,543 is from governmental activities, whiglpresents the fees collected by the tax
collector, the clerks of theourts and other departments. The business-typgehdor services
were $732,170, which represents primarily commissates to the inmates held in County jails.
The largest portion of program revenues is chafgeservices of $16,241,888 (15% of the total
revenues). The other portions of program reverare operating grants and contributions of
$2,810,784 and $2,516,041 capital contributionsfr@rious federal, state and local agencies,
which in total are 5% of the total revenues.

General revenues are revenues that cannot be eddigra specific function. Property taxes of
$65,242,899 were the largest revenue source foergawental activities and 61% of total
revenues. Besides the property taxes, the gererahues also consist of sales taxes, motor
vehicle taxes, mixed drink taxes, hotel occupamees$ and investment earnings, which in total
are $20,779,920 or 19% of the total revenues.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Revenue Analysis (Continued)

Year Ended
September 30, 2015

Year Ended
September 30, 2014

Program Revenues

Charges for services - governmental $ 15,509,718 14.4% $ 15,647,235 15.2%
Charges for services - business-type 732,170 0.7% 743,996 0.7%
Operating grants and contributions 2,810,784 2.6% 2,768,837 2.7%
Capital grants and contributions 2,516,041 2.3% 3,382,238 3.3%
General Revenues

Property taxes 65,242,899 60.7% 60,333,777 58.9%
Sales taxes 15,351,017 14.3% 14,900,374 14.5%
Motor vehicle taxes 1,644,229 1.5% 1,519,577 1.5%
Mixed drink taxes 966,894 0.9% 532,822 0.5%
Hotel occupancy taxes 2,612,474 2.4% 2,441,385 2.4%
Unrestricted investment earnings 205,306 0.2% 210,144 0.2%
Gain on sale of capital assets - 0.0% 34,889 0.1%
Total Revenue: $ 107,591,53  100.0% $102,515,27  100.0%

In fiscal year 2015, the County’s revenues incrédse$5.1 million, or 4.9 percent as a result of
a higher collection in property tax and sales Exe property tax revenue for fiscal year 2015
increased $4.9 million from fiscal year 2014 inretation to the increase in the County’s taxable
assessed property values. The sales tax incrégsk@l5 million from the previous year.

Expense Analysis

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the funetmh program expenses for the primary
government were $93,262,437 for the governmentalities and $631,160 for the business-type
activities. A comparative overview of expenses tfeg County’s primary government for the
current and previous year is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

September 30, 2015 September 30, 2014
Function
General Government $ 23,815,316 25.5% $ 22,017,696 23.9%
Justice System 18,957,600 20.3% 21,308,471 23.2%
Law Enforcement 23,565,577 25.3% 22,530,372 24.5%
Juvenile Services 6,776,468 7.3% 6,022,762 6.6%
Public Transportation 9,063,760 9.7% 8,831,911 9.6%
Public Health 1,501,080 1.6% 1,756,849 1.9%
Human Services 6,018,603 6.5% 5,993,599 6.5%
Interest and Other Fees 3,564,033 3.8% 3,501,978 3.8%
Total Governmental Activities $93,262,43  100.0% $ 91,963,63  100.0%
Business-Type Activities
County Attorney Operating Fund $ 8,391 1.3% 18,378 2.9%
Jail Commissary Fund 622,769 98.7% 624,465 97.1%
Total Business-Type Activitie! $ 631,16( 100.0% 642,84  100.0%
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Expense Analysis (Continued)

In fiscal year 2015, the County’s expenses incre&ie3 million or 1.4 percent from the prior
year. The key elements of the increase are asifsi|

» Employee salaries and wages increased $1.9 miliento more positions added and a 3%
cost-of-living adjustment made to the employeesngdu2015.

» Employee benefits increased $3.1 million due todhkary base increase, contribution rate
hike of the County’s health insurance, and acc@P&B obligations during 2015.

* The operating expenses, including supplies andratharges, repairs and maintenance,
minor acquisition, contract services, professi@®aices, and community support, increased
$0.5 million during the year.

* The County’s investment in joint venture experighaegain during fiscal year 2015, while a
loss of $1.7 million was reported in fiscal yead 20

» Expense associated with loss on retirement of @lamésets was $0.2 million in fiscal year
2015, while an impairment loss of $2.8 million waported in fiscal year 2014.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF MAJOR FUNDS

The County’s major general governmental functions eontained in the General, Special

Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Project Funés. September 30, 2015, the County’s

governmental funds reported combined fund balant&§7,875,587, an increase of $3,250,926
or 5% in comparison with the prior year. The cleangs primarily due to the increase in the tax
collections. Of the combined fund balance, $1,448,(2%) were nonspendable for prepaids and
inventory, $11,485,488 (17%) were restricted toiowss purposes by external restrictions

imposed, $469,028 (1%) were committed to the Heatidowment Fund, $14,726,391 (22%)

were assigned to the County’s capital improvemdantgpand other programs as directed by the
Commissioners’ Court, and $39,747,932 (58%) cautsst unassigned fund balance, which is
available to meet the County’s current and futweeds without any restrictions.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund ofGbenty. At September 30, 2015, the General
Fund reported a net fund balance of $43,032,4&kEcaease of $313,788 from fiscal year 2014
primarily as a result of the fact that the moredsirwere transferred out of General Fund to
support the County’s various capital improvemeuwijgots in fiscal year 2015.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund used to account for receipts and disbursemédritsds relating to the
County’s long-term bonded debt obligations. At #ral of fiscal year 2015, the fund balance
decreased $320,010 or 5% from fiscal year 2014taltiee following factors:

* The funds transferred from the County’'s Hotel O@ngy Tax Fund were the minimum
required to meet the debt service requirementthimCertificates of Obligation, Series 2009
in 2015.

* Less tax revenue was collected during the yeamrasut of a lower 1&S (Interest & Sinking)
tax rate being adopted.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF MAJOR FUNDS (Continued)

Debt Service Fund (Continued)

For fiscal year 2016, the County’s debt servicauregnents for the governmental activities are
$6,115,000 in principal and $3,457,974 in interégtditional information is available to the
readers in Note 9 (Long-Term Debt) to the FinanStatements.

Capital | mprovement Fund

The Capital Improvement Fund is established to ipgeaccountability for the construction and

acquisition of specific capital assets to suppapaitmental needs, and to replace existing
capital assets as needed. The resources of tltefawe mainly been provided by transfers from
the General Fund. The funds transferred to that@admprovement Fund increased by 353%
and the fund balance of the Capital Improvemeneased $7,358,409 in fiscal year 2015.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The County adopts an annual budget for the Gerfemall. Budget amounts represent the
original budget for 2015 as subsequently amendeth&yCommissioners’ Court. Budgets are
adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP (modifiedr@al basis). Budget variances are not
expected to impact future services or liquidity.

The following table summarizes General Fund budabatel actual amounts for fiscal year 2015:

Brazos County, Texas
FY 2015 General Fund Budget Vs. Actual Amounts - GAP Basis

Original Budget Final Budget Actual

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Taxes $ 70,765,000 $ 70,765,000 $ 72,934,928
Charges for Services 11,229,850 11,229,850 11,682,640
Intergovernmental 919,600 919,921 1,285,839
Interest 151,900 151,900 160,983
Other 486,600 652,423 949,010
Capital Leases - - 475,100
Sale of Capital Assets - - 148,560

Total 83,552,950 83,719,094 87,637,060
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Expenditures 85,247,994 84,954,586 72,862,140
Transfers Out 14,745,222 15,204,774 15,088,708

Total 99,993,216 100,159,360 87,950,848
Net Change in Fund Balance (16,440,266)$  (16,440,266) $ (313,788)
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Differences between the original budget and thal famended budget reflected an increase of
$166,144 in available resources and the same anobimtrease in appropriations.

Actual revenues and transfers increased by $3,6674.7%) over the final budget mainly due
to the better collection rate in all revenue catesgo Actual expenditures and transfers out were
$12,208,514 (12.2%) under the final budget as atre§the restrained spending of the County.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The capital assets of the County are those adseis, (fight-of-way, buildings, improvements,
roads, bridges, machinery, and equipment) whichuaesl by the County in performance of the
County’s functions. The County’s investment in ¢alpassets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of September 30, 2015 amounted$233,148,399 (net of accumulated
depreciation) and at September 30, 2014 it was 8P32000. Depreciation on capital assets is
recognized in the government-wide financial statetsie Depreciation provided for the current
fiscal period was $5,181,508 as compared to $55B26for the year ended September 30, 2014.

Major capital asset events during the current figear included the following:

* The County completed the new tax building projeat aontinued the courthouse renovation
project during fiscal year 2015. The total costrgpon all these projects for the year was
$5.2 million.

* The County started the justice software system ldpugent during 2015 and the total cost
for the year was $1.5 million.

e The County’s infrastructure and land (right-of-wapyreased by about $5.7 million during
the current fiscal year. $1.0 million of the ingse is related to the acceptance of subdivision
roads for maintenance.

e The County acquired approximately $2.7 million atidposed of approximately $0.8 in
intangible assets and machinery and equipmensaalfiyear 2015.

* The County started or completed several minor agpiiprovement projects with costs of
$1.2 million during the year. The projects inclutie construction of the fleet maintenance
building, the citizen’s collection site, the newfioé building for Justice of the Peace,
Precinct 1 and Constable Precinct 1, the builderpvation for the Election Administration
Department and the Medical Clinic, etc.

The County has elected to use the “Modified Apphdaas defined by GASB 34 for reporting
infrastructure assets, which include 472 milesoafds and 69 bridges. The County has adopted a
minimum condition level of 80% for all County roadi fiscal year 2015 approximately 90% of
the County roads meet the targeted condition |dval.the year ended September 30, 2015, the
actual amounts of expense incurred for the annaahtenance and preservation of the roads and
bridges at the targeted condition level was $9/Baniand the amount estimated to be necessary
for the purpose was $11.3 million. The $2.1 millimariance was mainly due to the
Department’s contingency budget, the delays irrtlae preparation and weather delays.

The following table provides a comparative overvievthe County’s capital assets for the
current and previous year. For further informatregarding capital assets, see Note 6 to the
financial statements.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Balance Balance

Governmental Activities: September 30, 2015 September 30, 2014
Land $ 23,157,422 $ 22,570,408
Construction in progress 21,529,423 16,314,696
Infrastructure 75,154,348 72,516,623
Buildings 130,344,640 126,040,198
Improvements other than buildings 10,067,433 9,726,097
Intangible assets - computer software 3,208,502 2,918,865
Machinery and equipment 22,330,178 20,556,576

285,791,946 270,643,463
Less: Accumulated depreciation (52,671,095) (48,278,739)
Governmental activities capital assets $ 233,120,85 $ 222,364,72
Business-type activities:
Machinery and equipment $ 93,836 % 93,836

93,836 93,836

Less: Accumulated depreciation (66,289) (54,660)
Business-type activities capital assets $ 27547 % 39,17¢

Debt Administration

At September 30, 2015, the County had total lomgrtelebt outstanding of $82,990,000 as
compared to $88,720,000 in the prior year. Theatse of $5,730,000 (6%) relates to the debt
principal paid during the year.

Refer to Note 9 in the Notes to the Basic FinanStatements for a detailed breakdown of long-
term debt owed by the County. County officialéizeins and investors will find the ratio of net
bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amotainded debt per capita as useful indicators
of the County's debt position. These are shovtharstatistical section of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The Commissioners’ Court adopted the fiscal yedi62udget on September 8, 2015. Like most
governmental agencies across the country, Brazasmtg€aontinues to feel the effects of the
national economic downturn. Economic forecastdinar to indicate a fragile recovery. While
the local economy shows signs of stabilization, fieeal year 2016 budget was prepared in a
conservative manner with an emphasis on maintaicingent service levels and rebuilding
reserves. The budget was adopted based on ategtipasources and estimated uses in fiscal
year 2016. The total resources of the County's Garieund are estimated to be $102,800,000
including the appropriated fund balance of $14,200,

The property tax rate for fiscal year 2016 is $6@8er $100 valuation, which remains the same

as for fiscal year 2015. For the past three yetlms, County has maintained an estimated
collection rate of 98% on property taxes.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a gaheverview of the County’s finances for all
those with an interest in the County’s financesue§ions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additiof@ncial information should be addressed to the
County Auditor’s Office, 200 S. Texas Avenue, S@1e, Bryan, Texas, 77803.
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Prepaid Expenses
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $13,630,121
Taxes
Accounts and Other
Inventories
Internal Balances
Restricted Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $87,650
Taxes
Accounts and Other
Joint Venture
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Land
Buildings
Improvements Other than Buildings
Intangible Assets - Computer Software
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in Progress

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan

Change in Pension Allocated Share

Pension Contributions After the Measurement Date

Deferred Charges - Refunding

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2015

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Page 1 of 2

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities TOTAL

$ 69,565,764 516,836 70,082,600
2,352,943 - 2,352,943
634,272 - 634,272
4,517,147 - 4,517,147
2,900,102 145 2,900,247
812,476 47,105 859,581

(56,059) 56,059 -
5,830,995 - 5,830,995
466,518 - 466,518

2,683 - 2,683
311,594 - 311,594
23,157,422 - 23,157,422
97,664,382 - 97,664,382
5,459,959 - 5,459,959
304,019 - 304,019
9,851,298 27,547 9,878,845
75,154,348 - 75,154,348
21,529,423 - 21,529,423
320,459,286 647,692 321,106,978
1,606,951 2,758 1,609,709
86,222 148 86,370
3,415,334 5,861 3,421,195
911,681 - 911,681
$ 6,020,188 8,767 6,028,955

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Salaries and Wages

Accrued Interest Payable

Unclaimed Funds

Unearned Revenue

Liabilities for Compensated Absences
Noncurrent Liabilities

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - Continued

September 30, 2015

Page 2 of 2

Differences Between Expected and Actual Pension Experience

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Legislative
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities TOTAL
$ 8,663,481 $ 12,342 8,675,823
2,428,233 4,440 2,432,673
305,376 - 305,376
193,531 - 193,531
1,316,671 - 1,316,671
1,139,183 1,745 1,140,928
6,379,974 - 6,379,974
141,921,465 92,466 142,013,931
162,347,914 110,993 162,458,907
406,640 698 407,338
406,640 698 407,338
148,523,220 27,547 148,550,767
5,840,178 - 5,840,178
46,091 - 46,091
5,599,219 - 5,599,219
3,716,212 517,221 4,233,433
$ 163,724,920 544,768 164,269,688
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Page 1 of 2

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges Grantsand
Functions/Programs Expenses for Services Contributions
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 23,815,316 $ 4,625,773 $ 6,080
Justice System 18,957,600 6,861,890 548,180
Law Enforcement 23,565,577 1,055,354 118,864
Juvenile Services 6,776,468 50,739 1,345,059
Public Transportation 9,063,760 1,507,870 340,822
Public Health 1,501,080 36,554 67,357
Human Services 6,018,603 1,371,538 384,422
Interest and Other Fees 3,564,033 - -
Total Governmental Activities 93,262,437 15,509,718 2,810,784
Business-Type Activities:
County Attorney Operating Fund 8,391 11,217 -
Jail Commissary Fund 622,769 720,953 -
Total Business-Type Activities 631,160 732,170 -
Total Governmel $ 93,893,59 $ 16,241,88 $ 2,810,78

General revenues:

The accompanying notes to the financial statensmetsn integral part of this statement.
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Taxes:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Motor vehicle taxes
Mixed drink taxes

Hotel occupancy taxes

Unrestricted investment earnings

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position - beginning, as restated

Net position - endir



Page 2 of 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changesin Net Position

Capital
Grantsand Governmental Business- Type
Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ - $ (19,183,463) $ - (19,183,463)
- (11,547,530) - (11,547,530)
- (22,391,359) - (22,391,359)
- (5,380,670) - (5,380,670)
2,516,041 (4,699,027) - (4,699,027)
- (1,397,169) - (1,397,169)
- (4,262,643) - (4,262,643)
- (3,564,033) - (3,564,033)
2,516,041 (72,425,894) - (72,425,894)
- - 2,826 2,826
- - 98,184 98,184
- - 101,010 101,010
$ 2,516,04. (72,425,894 101,01 (72,324,884
65,242,899 - 65,242,899
15,351,017 - 15,351,017
1,644,229 - 1,644,229
966,894 - 966,894
2,612,474 - 2,612,474
204,186 1,120 205,306
86,021,699 1,120 86,022,819
13,595,805 102,130 13,697,935
150,129,115 442,638 150,571,753
$ 163,724,92 544,76t 164,269,68
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2015

Page 1 of 2

Major Funds
Debt
General Service
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 45,450,055 $ 5,830,995
Investments 2,352,943 -
Prepaid Expenditures 619,764 -
Receivables
Taxes, net 4,223,674 466,518
Officids 65,020 1,494
Interest 11,750 1,189
Accounts, net 1,684,498 -
State 416,748 -
Federal 44,719 -
Due from Other Funds - -
Inventories 812,476 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 55,681,647 $ 6,300,196
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 6,251,910 $ -
Accrued Salaries and Wages 2,305,602 -
Unclaimed Funds - -
Due To Other Funds 56,089 -
Unearned Revenues 80,157 -
Total Liabilities 8,693,758 -
Deferred I nflows of Resour ces
Unavailable Revenues 3,955,408 460,018
Total Deferred I nflows of Resour ces 3,955,408 460,018
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 1,432,240 -
Restricted 360,140 5,840,178
Committed 469,028 -
Assigned 1,023,141 -
Unassigned 39,747,932 -
Total Fund Balances 43,032,481 5,840,178
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCES $ 55,681,647 $ 6,300,196

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Page 2 of 2

Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental

I mprovement Funds Funds
$ 14,469,276 $ 6,743,951 $ 72,494,277
- - 2,352,943
- 14,508 634,272
- 293,473 4,983,665
- - 66,514
- 1,259 14,198
- 133,864 1,818,362
- - 416,748
- - 44,719
- 30 30
- - 812,476
$ 14,469,276 $ 7,187,085 $ 83,638,204
$ 766,026 $ 356,352 $ 7,374,288
- 115,909 2,421,511
- 193,531 193,531
- - 56,089
- 1,221,615 1,301,772
766,026 1,887,407 11,347,191
- - 4,415,426
- - 4,415,426
- 14,508 1,446,748
- 5,285,170 11,485,488
- - 469,028
13,703,250 - 14,726,391
- - 39,747,932
13,703,250 5,299,678 67,875,587
$ 14,469,276 $ 7,187,085 $ 83,638,204
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 67,875,587

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported as assets in governmental funds. 233,078,795

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to future periods
and therefore will not be recognized as an outflow of resources until then. Deferred outflows of
resources are not reported in the governmental funds:

Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings

on Pension Plan 1,606,478
Change in Pension Allocated Share 86,197
Pension Contributions After the Measurement Date 3,414,330
Deferred Charges - Refunding 911,681
6,018,686
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore,
are reported as unavailable revenues in the funds. 4,415,426
Internal service funds are used by the County's management for self insurance.
The assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources of the funds
are included with governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position but are not included at the
fund level. 2,172,842
The County's equity interest in a joint venture is included in the Statement of
Net Position but is not included at the fund level. 311,594
Liabilities for compensated absences are considered current but are not reported as
liabilities in the funds. (1,139,183)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds:

Bonds Payable (85,509,312)
Accrued Interest Payable (305,376)
Capital Leases (710,958)
OPEB Obligation (46,747,270)
Net Pension Liability (15,329,391)

(148,602,307)

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods
and therefore will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until then. Deferred inflows of
resources are not reported in the governmental funds:
Differences Between Expected and Actual Pension Experience (406,520)

Total net position - governmental activities $ 163,724,920

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Chargesfor Services
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Genera Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Public Health
Human Services
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest and Other Fees

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfersin
Transfers Out
Capital Leases
Sale of Capital Assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Net Change in Fund Balances
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30

Page 1 of 2

Major Funds
Debt
General Service

72,934,928 $ 8,509,833
11,682,640 -
1,285,839 -
160,983 23,752
949,010 -
87,013,400 8,533,585
15,788,500 -
16,938,425 -
18,981,741 -
4,647,880 -
9,231,560 -
1,493,183 -
3,599,264 -
1,961,942 -
208,365 5,730,000
11,280 3,669,574
72,862,140 9,399,574
14,151,260 (865,989)
- 545,979
(15,088,708) -
475,100 -
148,560 -
(14,465,048) 545,979
(313,788) (320,010)
43,346,269 6,160,188
43,032,481 $ 5,840,178

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Page 2 of 2

Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
I mprovement Funds Funds

$ - $ 2,644,417 $ 84,089,178
- 961,099 12,643,739
- 3,006,718 4,292,557
- 19,451 204,186
- 24 949,034
- 6,631,709 102,178,694
1,276,510 258,009 17,323,019
- 716,776 17,655,201
101,722 476,057 19,559,520
1,100 1,329,421 5,978,401
3,774 590,402 9,825,736
- - 1,493,183
26,313 1,103,822 4,729,399
5,833,696 5,572,112 13,367,750
- - 5,938,365
- - 3,680,854
7,243,115 10,046,599 99,551,428
(7,243,115) (3,414,890) 2,627,266
14,601,524 487,184 15,634,687
- (545,979) (15,634,687)
- - 475,100
- - 148,560
14,601,524 (58,795) 623,660
7,358,409 (3,473,685) 3,250,926
6,344,841 8,773,363 64,624,661
$ 13,703,250 $ 5,299,678 $ 67,875,587
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changein fund balances - total governmental funds $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount that
expenditures for capital outlay exceeded depreciation expense.

Capital outlay 13,367,750
Depreciation expense (5,169,879)

Revenues and contributed assets in the statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to affect net position.

The County's investment in a joint venture is reported at the government-wide
level but not at the fund level. This amount represents the current year change.

The liabilities for compensated absences are accrued at the government-wide level
but not at the fund level. This is the current year change in those liabilities,
reported as expense in the statement of activities.

The OPEB obligation per GASB 45 is accrued at the government-wide level
but not at the fund level. This is the current year change in those liabilities,
reported as expense in the statement of activities.

The net pension liability per GASB 68 is accrued at the government-wide level
but not at the fund level. This is the current year change in those liabilities,
reported as expense in the statement of activities.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premium, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt
and related items.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities, such as insurance and fleet maintenance, to
individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds
is reported with governmental activities.

3,250,926

8,197,871

(8,118)

2,516,204

311,594

(144,708)

(5,655,303)

594,096

5,580,086

(1,046,843)

Changein net position of gover nmental activities $

13,595,805

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable

Inventories

Due from Other Funds
Tota Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan
Change in Pension Allocated Share
Pension Contributions After the Measurement Date

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Wages
Compensated Absences
Unearned Revenues
Tota Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due in more than one year
Total Noncurrent Liagbilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Differences Between Expected and Actual Pension Experience

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

September 30, 2015

Business- Type

Activities -
Enterprise Governmental
Funds Activities
County Attorney Jail Internal Service
Operating Commissary Totals Fund
$ 47457 % 469,379 516,836 % 2,902,482
- 145 145 542,244
- 47,105 47,105 -
672 55,387 56,059 -
48,129 572,016 620,145 3,444,726
- 93,836 93,836 42,056
- (66,289) (66,289) -
- 27,547 27,547 42,056
48,129 599,563 647,692 3,486,782
276 2,482 2,758 473
15 133 148 25
586 5,275 5,861 1,004
877 7,890 8,767 1,502
- 12,342 12,342 1,295,915
300 4,140 4,440 -
- 1,745 1,745 -
- - - 14,899
300 18,227 18,527 1,310,814
2,633 89,833 92,466 4,508
2,633 89,833 92,466 4,508
2,933 108,060 110,993 1,315,322
70 628 698 120
70 628 698 120
- 27,547 27,547 42,056
46,003 471,218 517,221 2,130,786
$ 46,003 $ 498,765 544,768  $ 2,172,842

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Commissary Sales
Employee Dependents
Self Pays
Excess Risk Benefits
Participant Payments
Brazos County
Retirees
Other Revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services
Supplies and Other Charges
Cost of Goods Sold
Repairs and Maintenance
Minor Acquisitions
Life Insurance
Stop Loss Premiums
Benefit Claims
Administrative Fees
Professional Services
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

TOTAL NET POSITION - OCTOBER 1, ASRESTATED
TOTAL NET POSITION - SEPTEMBER 30

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business- Type

Activities -
Enterprise Governmental
Funds Activities
County Attorney Jail Internal Service
Operating Commissary Totals Fund

$ 11217 $ - 11217 $ -
- 720,268 720,268 -

- - - 1,981,308

- - - 14,419

- - - 1,570,861

- - - 558,876

- - - 8,478,304

- - - 316,595

- 685 685 -

11,217 720,953 732,170 12,920,363

6,148 101,475 107,623 13,616

188 90,431 90,619 -

- 357,324 357,324 -

- 7,588 7,588 -

2,055 - 2,055 -

- - - 27,175

- - - 1,876,720

- - - 11,402,269

- - - 626,781

- 54,322 54,322 29,498

- 11,629 11,629 -

8,391 622,769 631,160 13,976,059
2,826 98,184 101,010 (1,055,696)

- 1,120 1,120 8,853

- 1,120 1,120 8,853
2,826 99,304 102,130 (1,046,843)

43,177 399,461 442,638 3,219,685

$ 46,003 $ 498,765 544,768  $ 2,172,842
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Business- Type

Activities -
Enterprise Governmental
Funds Activities
County Attorney Jail Internal Service
Operating Commissary Totals Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 11,135 $ 735,756 746,891 $ 2,873,004
Receipts from interfund services provided - - - 8,478,304
Payments to contractors and vendors (2,243) (525,155) (527,398) (2,562,864)
Claims paid - - - (9,933,918)
Payments to employees for services (6,990) (95,994) (102,984) (7,069)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,902 114,607 116,509 (1,152,543)
CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received - 1,094 1,094 9,119
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES - 1,094 1,094 9,119
CASH FLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets - - - (15,842)
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES - - - (15,842)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,902 115,701 117,603 (1,159,266)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, OCTOBER 1 45,555 353,678 399,233 4,061,748
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 47,457 $ 469,379 516,836 $ 2,902,482
Reconciliation of operating income (10ss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
Operating income (10ss) $ 2,826 $ 98,184 101,010 $ (1,055,696)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense - 11,629 11,629 -
Changein accounts receivable - - - (308,884)
Changein due from other funds (82 14,803 14,721 -
Changein inventory - (19,537) (19,537) -
Changein pension related deferred outflows of resources (320) (2,874) (3,199) (547)
Changein accounts payable - 4,047 4,047 202,332
Changein accrued salaries and compensated absences (740) (1,243) (1,983) 6,722
Changein unearned revenues - - - 3,158
Changein noncurrent liabilities 148 8,970 9,118 252
Changein pension related deferred inflows of resources 70 628 698 120
Total adjustments (924) 16,423 15,499 (96,847)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 1,902 $ 114,607 116,509 $ (1,152,543)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETSAND LIABILITIES

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
September 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,993,504

Investments 1,012,510
TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,006,014
LIABILITIES

Funds Held for Others $ 5,006,014
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,006,014

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Brazos County, Texas (I@g”) have been developed to be in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) for local government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The most significant accounting and reporting policies of
the County are described in the following notes to the financial statements.

A. Reporting Entity

The Brazos County Government (the “County”) was created in 1841. The County is a public
corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas. It performs governmental

functions as required or authorized by the Texas Constitution and the Laws of the State. A
Commissioners’ Court composed of an elected County Judge and four elected
Commissioners governs the County. The combined financial statements include all

departments, funds or accounts for the County, the primary government.

The concept underlying the definition of the repugtientity is that elected officials are
accountable to their constituents for their actions. The financial statements should allow
users to distinguish between the primary government (the County) and its component units.
GASB Statement 14 as amended by GASB Statement 61 defines the reporting entity as the
primary government and its component units. Brazos County is the primary governmental
unit. The financial statements include all funds, agencies, boards, commissions, and
authorities for which the elected officials of the County are financially accountable. The
financial statements include those entities for which the nature and significance of the
relationship between the entity and the County are such that to exclude the entity from the
financial reporting entity would render the financial statements misleading or incomplete.

B. Related Organizations

Related organizations provide services within the County that are administered by separate
boards or commissions, but the County is not financially accountable, and such organizations
are therefore not component units of the County, even though the Commissioners’ Court may
appoint a voting majority of an organization’s board. Consequently, financial information
for the following entities is not included within the scope of these financial statements.

Brazos County Health Facilities Development Corporation

The Brazos County Health Facilities Development Corporation (“BCHFDC”) is a Texas
public, non-profit corporation created in accordance with the Texas Health Facilities
Development Act of 1981. The BCHFDC’s purpose is to acquire, construct, provide,
improve, finance and refinance health facilities to assist in the maintenance of the public
health. The tax-exempt bonds issued by the BCHFDC do not constitute a debt or a pledge of
faith or credit of the BCHFDC or the County, but are payable by the user pursuant to terms
defined in the loan agreement underlying each issue. Interest received on the bonds is
generally exempt from federal income tax under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Related Organizations (Continued)

The BCHFDC is governed by a five member Board akBtors which is comprised of the
members of the Brazos County Commissioners’ Court.

Brazos County Industrial Development Corporation

The Brazos County Industrial Development CorporatitBCIDC”) is a Texas public, non-
profit corporation created in accordance with thexds Development Corporation Act of
1979. The BCIDC'’s purpose is to issue bonds oralbeth the Corporation, to promote and
develop industrial and manufacturing enterprisegromote and encourage employment and
the public welfare, and to finance projects asrofiby the Act. The tax-exempt bonds
issued by the BCIDC do not constitute a debt oledge of faith or credit of the BCIDC or
the County, but are payable by the user pursuamértos defined in the loan agreement
underlying each issue. Interest received on thed®as generally exempt from federal
income tax under Section 103 of the Internal Reee@ade. The BCIDC is governed by a
three member Board of Directors which is comprisethree members of the Brazos County
Commissioners’ Court.

Brazos County Housing Finance Corporation

The Brazos County Housing Finance Corporation (“BCH) is a Texas public, non-profit
corporation created in accordance with the Texasshig Finance Corporations Act in 1980.
This Act authorizes the BCHFC to finance residémtaising by issuing tax-exempt revenue
bonds to acquire mortgage loans made to low or nabelencome persons, and to pledge
such mortgage loans as security for the paymetiteoprincipal and interest of such revenue
bonds. The tax-exempt bonds issued by the BCHF@otleonstitute a debt or a pledge of
faith or credit of the BCHFC or Brazos County, bt payable by the user pursuant to terms
defined in the loan agreement underlying each isstrgerest received on the bonds is
generally exempt from federal income tax under i8ect03 of the Internal Revenue Code.
The BCHFC is governed by a five member Board ok€&ltwors, three of which are members
of the Brazos County Commissioners’ Court.

Brazos Valley Fair & Exposition

The Brazos Valley Fair & Exposition (the “Fair”) & non-profit, 501(c)3 corporation that

was organized in 2010 for educational, scientifil acharitable purposes to encourage,
promote and maintain agricultural science, reseamod education. It is a mid-major or

regional fair whose reach or scope encompassesniire state of Texas and surrounding
states. Initially, the Executive Committee of thairFconsisted of seven members, all of
which were appointed by the Brazos County Commmesisl Court. Currently, the Executive

Committee consists of nine members, the last twecta by the Committee in 2015. Future
additions and replacements to the Board of Directuitl be determined by the Executive

Committee at the time the changes are made.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Related Organizations (Continued)

The start-up funding for the Fair came from the élilddccupancy Tax (*HOT”) Fund, a
special revenue fund of the County. The amoutheffunding is approved first by the HOT
Committee and subsequently by the Brazos Countyriesioners’ Court. The HOT Fund
has funded the Fair $490,000 from fiscal year 2@dfiscal year 2015. The budgeted
funding for fiscal year 2016 is $100,000, if andentall or part of it is needed. In addition,
the County pays the salaries and wages of the thriesary employees of the Fair and
provides various resources to the Fair at no changeh as office space, utilities, telephone
services, internet services, periodic use of a Gowehicle, etc. The future funding from the
HOT Fund is expected to decrease until the Faiofnes a standalone entity.

The annual fair generated enough revenue to pagfals direct expenses and the facility
rental fees for the Exposition Complek.is the general policy of the Fair that the major
of the excess of its revenue over expenses wiluger for the furtherance of its exempt
purpose, including the granting of scholarships #edfunding of related capital additions
and improvements at the Brazos County Expositiomt&le

C. Government-Wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements consist of $tatement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities. These statements repddrmation on all of the non-fiduciary
activities of the primary government and its comgr@nunits. Governmental activities are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenuneks aae reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a signifitcaxtent on fees and charges for support.

The government-wide financial statements are pegparsing the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of acoguntUnder this measurement focus,
revenues are recorded when earned and expensescarded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of the timing of cash floWsoperty taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants andilamitems are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by phnevider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the deigredich the expenses of a given function
are offset by program revenues. Expenses are tiadeare clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenuesud 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benedinf goods, services, or privileges by a
given function and 2) grants and contributions Hratrestricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function. @svand other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead asafjemeenues.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Fund Level Financial Statements

All governmental funds use the modified accrualiba$ accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recogmien susceptible to accrual (i.e., when
they become both measurable and available). "Mabkg! means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and "available" mealtsctible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay lialslioé the current period. The County
considers revenues as available if they are celieawithin 60 days after year-end.
Expenditures are recorded when the related furddlitiais incurred. If accrued revenue is
not yet available, the related receivable is matchg a deferred inflow of resources for
unavailable revenue and revenue recognition oaznigs when the revenue eventually does
become available. Debt service expenditures asasedixpenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments are recordedvbely payment is due.

Property tax revenues, the County's primary revesougce, are susceptible to accrual and
are considered available to the extent of delintjteeces collected within sixty (60) days of
the fiscal year end. Grant and entitlement revenaee also susceptible to accrual.
Encumbrances are used during the year and allamglisiy encumbrances lapse at the end of
each fiscal year.

The fund level financial statements are reportethgughe current financial resources
measurement focus. This means that only curregts&snd current liabilities are generally
included on their balance sheets. Their reportaud fbalance (net current assets) is
considered a measure of "available spendable resatir Governmental fund operating
statements present increases (revenues and othanciing sources) and decreases
(expenditures and other financing uses) in netetiirassets. Accordingly, they are said to
present a summary of sources and uses of "avasgpleledable resources” during a period.

For proprietary funds, all revenues and expensesclassified as operating revenues and
expenses except for taxes, investment income aedest expense, which are classified as
non-operating revenues and expenses.

All proprietary funds, including the enterprise ¢uand internal service fund, are accounted
for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenale recognized when earned, and
expenses when they are incurred. Claims incuruéahbt reported are included in payables

and expenses. These funds are accounted for esorpmic resources measurement focus.
This means that all assets and liabilities (whetherent or non-current) associated with

their activity are included in the funds’ statemehhet position.

The fiduciary funds are used to account for adsels solely in a custodial capacity and are
accounted for using the accrual basis of accounfisa result, assets in fiduciary funds are
always matched by liabilities to the owners of #Hssets and involve no measurement of
results of operations.

The County's accounts are organized on the badisdg, each of which is considered to be
a separate accounting entity. The operations di &éawd are accounted for by providing a

separate set of self-balancing accounts, whiclcangprised of each fund's assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflowaf resources, fund equity, revenues and
expenditures or expenses.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Fund Level Financial Statements (Continued)

Funds are classified into three categories: Gaowemtal, Proprietary and Fiduciary. The
major funds of the County are noted within eaclegaty.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for almoist of a government’s general
activity. The County has reported three major gunthder this category for the year
ended September 30, 2015:

General Fund - The General Fund is the principaelating fund of the County. It is used
to account for all financial resources except thesglired to be accounted for in another
fund. All general tax revenues and other recetptgt are not restricted by law or
contractual agreement to some other fund are atedufor in this fund. General
operating expenditures, fixed charges and capimgrovement costs that are not paid
through other funds are paid from the General Flin@ fund accumulates reserves for
future capital improvements and unforeseen cafalsicevents.

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund accdonthe financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditardHfe payment of principal and interest
on long-term debt paid primarily from taxes levieg the County. Financial resources
that are being accumulated for principal and irgiene future years are also reported in
the Debt Service Fund.

Capital Improvement Fund — The Capital Improventamd is established to account for
expenditures for new construction and acquisitidncapital assets to support the
County’s various functions.

The County reports the following nonmajor governtaéfunds:

Special Revenue Funds — Special Revenue Fundssackto account for and report the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that areatestror committed to expenditure for
specified purposes other than debt service or a@apibjects. The term proceeds of
specific revenue sources establishes that one oe syecific restricted or committed
revenues should be the foundation for a speciame® fund.

Jail Expansion Fund - This fund was establisheddmount for the construction of the
expanded jail facility. The funding source camanfra limited tax bond of $55,000,000
issued in 2008. The $50.9 million major jail expi@m project was completed in fiscal
year 2010 and the $3.9 million renovation of thenate holding area in the County’s
courthouse was completed in fiscal year 2014. réhwining funds were used to support
the acquisition of a video visitation system ircéisyear 2015. The fund is anticipated to
be closed out in fiscal year 2016.

Expo Center Expansion Fund - This fund was estaddizo account for the expansion of
the Brazos County Exposition Center. The expenestare being financed through the
issuance of $12,000,000 certificates of obligatroMNovember 2009 and a portion of the
hotel occupancy taxes collected. The fund was peemity closed during 2015.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Fund Level Financial Statements (Continued)

CO 2012 Fund — CO 2012 Fund was established touatdor the expenditures of the
County courthouse renovation project and the newotice building construction. The
expenditures are financed through the issuance {J70H,000 of Certificates of
Obligation, Series 2012. The fund was permanemtiyer] during 2015.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for operatibat are financed in a manner similar
to those in the private sector, where the determoinaf net income is appropriate for

sound financial administration. The County repant internal service fund and two

enterprise funds. Both enterprise funds are dladsas major funds. The internal

service fund is used to account for the provisibhealth, dental and life insurance to the
departments of the County as well as to outsiddientthat have contracted with the

County for this service. Two enterprise funds @sed to account for the business-type
operations of the County Attorney and Jail Comnrigsa

Fiduciary Funds

The County reports four agency funds as nonmagiucifary funds. Agency funds are
used to account for situations where the governimeoie is purely custodial, such as the
receipt, temporary investment, and remittance dtidiary resources to individuals,
private organizations, or other governments. Asbeige been held in these funds on
behalf of individuals involving certain legal preses, bail bondsmen, and other
governmental units.

E. Implementation of New Standards

In fiscal year 2015, the County evaluated and imglieted the following new standards:

GASB Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financigh®&ng for Pensions: An Amendment
of GASB Statement No. 27", replaces the requiresafitStatement No. 27 and No. 50
related to pension plans that are administeredigirdrusts or equivalent arrangements.

GASB Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition for @bnotions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date - An Amendment of GASB Statement 68”, addresses an issue
regarding application of the transition provisiaisStatement No. 68. The provisions of this
Statement are required to be applied simultaneaustythe provisions of Statement No. 68.

The implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 and7Ndad significant impact on the

County’s financial statements for the year endegt&eber 30, 2015. See Note 1-S for
further information.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The County defines all cash, money market accoanis certificates of deposit that have an
original maturity date of ninety days or less ashcar cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents related to restricted assets are atdoded. Cash and cash equivalents are short
term, highly liquid investments, which may be cored to cash (see Note 3). The County
maintains a cash and investment pool that is édailbor use by all funds. Equity in cash
and cash equivalents and interest income from &isé pool is allocated to the participating
funds on a monthly basis. The amount of the ationas determined by calculating a ratio
of each fund’s equity in the pool to the total pool

All County funds must be on deposit with the Coudépository unless the Commissioners’
Court directs the County Treasurer to invest fuadsotherwise provided by law. State
statutes authorize the County to invest in oblayaiof the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper,
corporate bonds, and repurchase agreements. nmeist are stated at fair value or
amortized cost (see Note 3).

G. Propeny Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien opepity as of January 1 of a given year.
Taxes levied on October 1 are payable by Januaryf 3ie following year, and by statute
become delinquent on February 1 at which time thegin accruing penalty and interest.
The enforceable legal claim date for property tagethe assessment date and therefore the
County did not record a receivable for taxes agskafier September 30. Accordingly, there
are no current taxes receivable reported. On Julynpaid taxes are subject to additional
penalties and collection expenses.

Taxes have been reported in the government-widmdial statements net of the allowance
for uncollectible taxes. At the governmental fuedel, taxes are recognized as revenue
when they become available and the amount not watadle (not collectible within sixty
days) has been reported as unavailable revenueth&gear ended September 30, 2015, the
tax rate to finance general governmental servicas $0.4226 per $100.00 valuation. The
tax rate for the payment of principal and inte@stiong-term debt was $0.624 per $100.00
valuation. Under provisions adopted by the St#te, maximum rate that can be set to
service governmental services is $0.80 per $1@B3séssed value.

The Brazos County Appraisal District is responsifide the recording and appraisal of
property for all taxing units in the County. Thepkaisal District is required to assess
property at 100% of its appraised value. Real @riypis subject to reappraisal on a four-
year cycle.

The County’s Tax Assessor-Collector acts as agettte billing and collecting of taxes for
the Brazos County Water Control Improvement DistriBig Creek, the City of Bryan, the
City of College Station, the City of Kurten, thetfCof Navasota, the Bryan Independent
School District, the College Station Independertiddt District, the Navasota Independent
School District, Brazos County Education Distrighd Brazos County Emergency Services
Districts 1, 2, 3, and 4. These transactionsecerded in an agency account.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H. Interfund Transactions

The County has many transactions between fundaglits normal course of operations. The
accompanying fund level financial statements réfdech transactions as transfers, interfund
receivables and payables. The effect of interfuntvitdy has been eliminated in the
government-wide financial statements, except fangactions between governmental and
business-type activities.

l. Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost using the first-imstiout method and is accounted for under the
consumption method. Inventories of paper, copigpBes and road maintenance materials
are maintained within the General Fund. Invensakconsumable food and personal items
are maintained within the Jail Commissary EntegoRand.

J. Prepaids

Certain payments to vendors for services that bahefit future accounting periods are
reported as prepaid items in both the governmedéwaind fund level financial statements.
The cost of prepaid items is recorded as experaditexpenses when consumed rather than
when purchased.

K. Restricted Assets

The Debt Service Fund’s current assets are cladsifs restricted assets because their use is
completely restricted for debt service on bondseadsby applicable bond covenants.

L. Investment in Joint Venture

The County’s investment in a joint venture, they@it Bryan and Brazos County Economic
Development Foundation, Inc., is reported in theegoment-wide financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Required disaglesconcerning the joint venture is
presented in Note 10.

M. Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, land improvements$itqogrway land, infrastructure, buildings,

building improvements, site improvements, leasehoigrovements, vehicles, machinery,
furniture, equipment, other systems, works of artl antangible assets that are used in
operations and benefit more than a single fiscabge Infrastructure assets are long-lived
assets that normally are stationary in nature gpidally can be preserved for a significantly
greater number of years than most capital asseth,as roads, bridges, and sewer systems.

The County defines capital assets as assets witimital, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess ofethyears. Buildings and building
improvements with an estimated cost to exceed $85z20e capitalized while infrastructure
assets with an estimated cost to exceed $50,00thprlized.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M. Capital Assets (Continued)

When capital assets are purchased, they are recasdexpenditures of the current period in
the governmental fund financial statements. Capsakts are valued at cost where historical
records are available and at an estimated histar@st where no records exist. Donated
capital assets are valued at their estimated fanket value on the date received. Capital
assets are capitalized and depreciated in the gant-wide financial statements and the
proprietary fund statements.

Improvements to capital assets that materiallyrektée life of the asset or add to the value
are capitalized. Other repairs and normal maimeaare not capitalized. Major outlays for
capital assets and improvements are capitalizguagscts are constructed. Interest incurred
during construction is not capitalized in the goweental activities on the government-wide
financial statements.

Capital assets except for land and infrastructare,depreciated over the useful lives of the
assets or classes of assets on a straight-ling &s$ollows:

Buildings and improvements 20 - 40 years
Machinery and equipment 3 - 10 years
Intangible assets — computer software 8 years

The County uses the modified approach to reporhitastructure assets in the government-
wide statement of net position. Infrastructuresgsare listed at historical costs but they are
not depreciated. Rather, under the modified ampr@iowed by GASB Statement No. 34,
the County reports annual expenses for maintainoragls and bridges and the estimated
costs for preserving them at 80% condition levelafiia 100% scale.

N. Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of finanamsitpon and/or balance sheet will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflomesbdurces. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, representsisumption of net position that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognizad an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The County hees following items that qualify for
reporting in this category.

» Difference between projected and actual earningpamsion plan — This difference is
deferred and amortized over a closed five yealogeri

* Change in pension allocated share — This changdtsdsom the disaggregation of the
aggregated County results. It is deferred andgmized over a closed five year period.

» Pension contributions after the measurement ddteese contributions are deferred and
recognized in the following fiscal year.

» Deferred charges on refundings — A deferred changerefunding results from the
difference in the carrying value of refunded detd &s reacquisition price. This amount
is deferred and amortized over the shorter ofifeeof the refunded or refunding debt.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N. Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources (Continue)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of finaac position and/or balance sheet will
sometimes report a separate section for deferfemhis of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resourcggresents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not leeognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The County has theolelhg items that qualify for reporting in
this category.

* Unavailable revenues — The unavailable revenueshwéiiise only under the modified
accrual basis of accounting qualify for reportimythis category in the governmental
funds balance sheet. The governmental funds repuatvailable revenues from two
sources: property taxes and court-assessed fimtbsosts.

» Difference between expected and actual pensionriexpe — This difference is deferred
and recognized over the estimated average remdiniggyof all members determined as
of the measurement date.

0. Compensated Absences

All non-exempt employees except temporary employe&g earn compensatory time based
on FLSA regulations. Compensatory time earned duitie fiscal year must be used by the
last pay period in September of each fiscal yeahabno liability is accrued at year-end. At
termination, all compensatory time is paid at tlage/rate in place at termination.

All employees except temporary employees of thenBoare granted vacation benefits in
varying annual amounts up to a maximum allowableuawilation of 240 hours per year.
Sick leave benefits are earned by all employeesmxemporary employees at a rate up to
twelve days per year and may be accumulated withiout. Sick leave benefits are
recognized as they are used by the employeeselevbnt of termination, an employee is
entitled to receive accumulated vacation pay butm®accumulated sick leave pay.

The County’s policy requires that only half of thacation hours accumulated from the
previous year can be carried over but must be fisgtdn the current year. The liability of
the County's vacation pay is calculated at the ehdeach fiscal year and reported as
“Liabilities for Compensated Absences”, a currealbility item in the County’s government-
wide statements due to the fact that the accuntilseation pay has an average maturity of
less than one year.

P. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, losgat debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as noncurrent liabilities. Bonds p&yare reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. On new bond issues, bond jprasiand discounts are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the life of the bonds. f@funding bond issues, the difference
between the reacquisition price and the net cagrgmmount of the old debt is reported as a
deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflolv resources and recognized as a
component of interest expense on a straight-lirsssb@ver the remaining life of the old debt
or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Q. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liabipgnsion related deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources, andsipe expense, County specific
information about its fiduciary net position in tie@xas County and District Retirement
System (“TCDRS”) and additions to/deductions frome {County’s fiduciary net position

have been determined on the same basis as thegpamed by TCDRS, administrator of the
statewide agent multiple-employer pension planesystFor this purpose, plan contributions
are recognized in the period that compensatioepsnted for the employee, which is when
contributions are legally due. Benefit paymentscl(iding refunds of employee

contributions) are recognized when due and payabbrcordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value. Infornmatiegarding the County’s total pension
liability is obtained from TCDRS through a repontepared for the County by TCDRS
consulting actuary, Milliman, Inc., in compliancetivGovernmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and FonglrReporting for Pensions.

R. Fund Balances and Net Position

Fund Balance Classifications

The County’s Commissioners’ Court meets on a regodesis to manage and review cash
financial activities and to ensure compliance watablished policies. It is the County’s
policy to fund current expenditures with currentereues and the County’s mission is to
strive to maintain a diversified and stable revestream to protect the government from
problematic fluctuations in any single revenue seuand provide stability to ongoing

services.

Under GASB 54, fund balances are required to berteg@ according to the following
classifications in descending order, from most traising to least constraining:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — Includes amounts #ratot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form, or, for legal or caatual reasons, must be kept intact.
This classification includes inventories, prepandoants, assets held for sale, long-term
receivables, the principal of an endowment or alkeng loan fund, etc.

Restricted Fund Balance — Constraints placed onusizeof these resources are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as throudht devenants), grantors, contributors
or other governments; or are imposed by law (thhoegnstitutional provisions or
enabling legislation).

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts that can onlydeldor specific purposes imposed
by a formal action of the government’s highest ledfedecision-making authority. The

County’s highest level of decision-making authonigsides with the Commissioners’
Court. The constraints imposed by the resolutibthe Commissioners’ Court remain

binding unless removed or changed in the same mamgloyed to previously commit

those resources.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

R. Fund Balances and Net Position (Continued)

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts that are consttdigehe County’s intent to be used
for specific purposes, but that do not meet theega to be classified as restricted or
committed. According to the County’s policy, ther@missioners’ Court, which is the
governing body of the County, authorizes the Coulniyge, who is the County’s budget
officer by Texas Statute, to assign amounts foti@dar purposes during the budget
process or throughout the year in the normal coofrfeisiness.

Unassigned Fund Balance — This is the residuasifieation of the General Fund. Only
the General Fund reports a positive unassigned tbalehce. Other governmental funds
might report a negative balance in this classificatas a result of overspending for
specific purposes for which amount had been résttjcommitted or assigned.

For the classification of fund balance in the goweental funds, the County applies
restricted resources first when expenditures aoeiried for purposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned] anassigned) amounts are available.
Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, comi@it amounts are reduced first followed by
assigned, then unassigned amounts when expendédrgascurred for purposes for which
amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balancssdiaations could be used. The County’s
unassigned fund balances will be maintained to igeothe County with sufficient working
capital and a margin of safety to address localragtbnal emergencies without borrowing.

Net Position Classifications

The government-wide and business-type activitiearitial statements utilize a net position
presentation. Net position represents the diffexdretween all other elements in a statement
of financial position and should be displayed lsydomponents: net investment in capital
assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This componemirasents capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, adjusted by the capetated deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources, and reduced uigtanding balances for bonds and
other debt that is attributed to the acquisitioonstruction, or improvement of those
assets.

Restricted - The restricted net position represtdmsdifference between (1) non-capital
assets whose use is restricted and (2) relateititledand deferred inflows of resources.
The use of noncapital assets is considered to bieicted only if the limitation is
externally enforceable. Externally enforceable itltions result from constraints
imposed by:

» Parties outside the government (grantors, dondingr governments);

» Constitutional provisions; or

* Enabling legislation (legislation that raises rases from external parties subject
to a legally enforceable requirement that thoseuees “be used only for the
specific purpose stipulated in the legislation”).
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

R. Fund Balances and Net Position (Continued)

The amount that represents the County’s net posigstricted by enabling legislation
was $5,599,219 as reported in the Statement oPNsition.

Unrestricted - Any portion of net position not @dy classified as either net investment
in capital assets or restricted is automaticakgsified as unrestricted.

S. Restatement of Beginning Net Position

As a result of the implementation of GASB 68 andSBA71, the beginning net position of
the County at October 1, 2014 has been restatethéochange in accounting principle. In
addition, a prior period adjustment related to GA®ZBwas also made during fiscal year
2015 to reclassify the OPEB obligation for a futhé employee working at the County’s Jalil
Commissary.

Government-Wide Statement of Activit Fund Leve
Business-Type Statement of Revenu
Activities Expenses and Change
Governmental County Attorney Jail Net Position - Pretary Fund
Activities Operatin( Commissar Internal Service Fur

Net position at September 30, 2C

as previously reportt $ 161,296,91 $ 45,10¢  $ 475,30¢ $ 3,222,98I
Recording of net pension liability

as of September 30, 2014 (14,474,444) (2,485) (22,355) (4,256)
Deferral for pension contributions

made after the measurement date 3,248,139 558 5,017 955
OPEB prior period adjustment 58,509 - (58,509)
Net position at September 30, 2014,

as restate $ 150,129,11 $ 43,177 $ 399,46: $ 3,219,68!

NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Policy and Procedures

Annual budgets are legally adopted for generalcispeevenue, debt service, and capital
project funds. Budgets are adopted on a basisistens with GAAP (modified accrual
basis). The County employs an encumbrance accmungystem as a method of
accomplishing budgetary control. At year-end, opmrcumbrances are closed. The
department is required to re-appropriate the fumitisin the following year’s budget.

The County Judge is recognized by State statuteseabudget officer for the County and
responsible for the preparation of the proposedybud The proposed expenditures may not
exceed the revenue estimates prepared by the CoAundytor. The County, in the
preparation of the budget, adheres to the followaragedures:

- Departmental annual budget requests are sulthbigehe department head to the budget
officer during the third quarter of the currentcas year for the fiscal year beginning
October 1.

- The County Auditor prepares an estimate of abda resources for the coming fiscal year
and presents the estimates to the budget officdulyy25 each year.
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NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

Budgetary Policy and Procedures (Continued)

- Informal departmental hearings are held withldbdget officer.

- The budget officer prepares the proposed anopatating budget to be presented to the
Commissioners’ Court for consideration. The budeggresents the financial plan for the
new fiscal year.

- Formal public hearings are held on the propdsetbet.

- The adopted budget must be balanced; i.e.,ablairesources must be sufficient to support
annual appropriations. The adopted budget musapggoved by a majority of the
Commissioners’ Court on or before November 1 ear.y

- The budget is adopted using classifications iwitbach department. The operating
department is the legal level of budgetary control.

- The budget may not be increased through thetisepplemental appropriations each year
unless the County Auditor certifies to the Comnaesrs’ Court that supplemental receipts
have been realized and are available to suppdsidiements that were not included in the
budget for the fiscal year.

- Transfer of appropriations between departmeadsiires the expressed permission of the
Commissioners’ Court, and all appropriations lagisgear-end.

Appropriations for total budget cannot excéetdl resources that will be available for the
year as forecasted by the County Auditor. Thitheslegal level of control for the County
budget. Expenditures may not exceed budgeted ppations at the fund level except for
the General Fund, which is appropriated at thesilaation level. Administrative control is

maintained through the establishment of more detdihe-item budgets.

Amendments increasing budget appropriations astricked to those for “emergency
expenditures, in case of grave public necessitynéet unusual and unforeseen conditions
that could not, by reasonably diligent thought atténtion, have been included in the
original budget.” The Commissioners’ Court mustrape the original budget appropriations
and subsequent amendments and adjustments. TmeyGauditor is required to monitor the
expenditures of all the funds in comparison to thvilich has been appropriated. The
following schedule of changes in the original budgepropriations includes those funds for
which the Commissioners’ Court has legally adoptedudget, as well as funds with
managerial budgets:

Original Budgeted

Expenditures and Other Supplemental Original As
Financing Uses Appropriations Amended
General Fund $ 99,993,216 $ 166,144 $ 100,159,360
Special Revenue 9,402,067 770,478 10,172,545
Debt Service 10,356,000 805 10,356,805
Capital Projects 27,385,642 490,377 27,876,019
Totals $ 147,136,925 $ 1,427,804 $ 148,564,729
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NOTE 3 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Chapter 2257 of the Texas Government Code, alswhk@s the Public Funds Collateral Act,
provides guidelines for the amount of collaterattis required to secure the deposit of
public funds. It requires that the deposit of puliinds be collateralized in an amount not
less than the total deposit, reduced by the amolikederal Depository insurance (FDIC)
available. The County’s depository agreement \BB&T requires collateralization with a
fair market value at 110 percent of County fundseiktess of the FDIC coverage of
$250,000. At September 30, 2015, the carrying ansoof the County’'s deposits were
$75,913,595, reported as “Cash and Cash Equivalemisthe balance sheet of the
governmental funds and the statement of net positb the proprietary funds. The
collateralized market value of the County’s depoaitSeptember 30, 2015 was $92,950,869.
The County had $76,519,104 on deposit with BB&Beptember 30, 2015.

B. Investments

The County is authorized to invest its funds inadance with the Texas Public Funds Act,
Government Code Chapter 2256 and its subsequentdanaats. The County’s investment
policy is strictly based on the State law. Durihg year ended September 30, 2015, County
investments consisted of participation in TexPool.

Interest-Rate Risk. TexPool is a local government investment pooleuride oversight of the

State Comptroller of Public Accounts of Texas. TexPs portfolio has low interest rate risk
due to restrictions on weighted average maturitd amaximum maturity of any one

investment. It maintains the weighted average ntgtat sixty (60) days or less and no
security will exceed thirteen (13) months in méaturi

Credit Risk. State law limits investment in the investment ptooat least an AAA or AAAm
rating or an equivalent rating by at least oneamdily recognized rating service. TexPool is
rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s, the highest ratn¢pcal government investment pool
can achieve. The pools seek to maintain a $1.08evaer share as required by the Texas
Public Funds Investment Act.

Investments at September 30, 2015 are as follows:

Pooled Investments $ 2,352,943
Property 101251
Total Investments $ 3,365,453

The $2,352,943 pooled investments are reflected irn@stments on the balance
sheet/statement of net position. The pooled imvest represents its fair value, which is the
same as the value of the pool shares.

The $1,012,510 investment in property, which regmés property held by the County as

security for the bail bondsman operating in the i@puis recorded in the Bail Bond Board
Agency Fund. Itis not classified in accordancthvdASB Statement 3.
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NOTE 4 — TAXES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Below is the detail of receivables for the majod aronmajor governmental funds in the
aggregate, including the applicable allowancesifamollectible amounts:

Debt Capita
Genere Service Improvemer Nonmajo Total

Property Taxes $ 2,182,688 $ 370,676 $ - % - $ 2,553,364
Property Tax Penalties & Interest 1,343,579 183,492 - - 1,527,071
Hotel & Motel Taxes - - - 293,473 293,473
Sales Taxes 1,244,017 - - - 1,244,017
Officials 65,020 1,494 - - 66,514
Interest 11,750 1,189 - 1,259 14,198
Court Fines 14,558,901 - - - 14,558,901
Accounts 209,108 - - 133,864 342,972
State 416,748 - - - 416,748
Federal 44,719 - - - 44,719
Gross Receivables 20,076,530 556,851 - 428,596 21,061,977
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles (13,630,121) (87,650) - - (13,717,771)
Net Receivable $ 6,446,400 $ 469,20 $ - $42859% $ 7,344,201

NOTE 5 — INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

In the fund financial statements, interfund bal@neee the result of normal transactions
between funds and will be liquidated in the subsetiuiscal year. The following is a
summary of amounts due from and due to other fasdsf September 30, 2015:

Due From Due To
General Fund $ 56,089 $ -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - 30
County Attorney Enterprise Fund - 672
Jail Commissary Enterprise Fund - 55,387
Total $ 56,089 $ 56,089

The summary of the County’s transfers for the yrated September 30, 2015 is as follows:

Nonmajor
Debt Capital Governmental
Service Fund Improvement Funds Total
Transfer Out:
General Fund $ - $ 14601524 $ 487,184 $ 15,088,708
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 545,979 - - 545,979

$ 545,979 $ 14,601,524 $ 487,184 $ 15,634,687

The General Fund transferred out $14,601,524 to Gheital Improvement Fund and
$487,184 to other nonmajor governmental funds faicgpated expenditures in various
capital improvements, grant matching and other irequents. In addition, $545,979 was
transferred from the Hotel & Occupancy Tax Fundthe Debt Service Fund for the
anticipated debt principal and interest paymentsie Expo Center Expansion project.
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NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Depreciation expense for fiscal year 2015 was athtg functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Public Health
Human Services

Total depreciation expense - governmental acts

653,336
313,101
2,314,108
205,259
598,793
7,897
1,077,385

5,169,87!

Capital Asset activity for the year ended Septen30e2015 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Intangible assets - computer software

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Intangible assets - computer software

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities:

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance at Balance at
September 30, Deletions September 30,
2014 Additions & Adjustments 2015
22,570,408 $ 646,533 $ (59,519) $ 23,157,422
16,314,696 12,850,369 (7,635,642) 21,529,423
72,516,623 2,847,941 (210,216) 75,154,348
1117201, 16,344,843 (7,905,377) 119,841,193
126,040,198 4,305,604 (1,162) 130,344,640
9,726,097 356,926 (15,590) 10,067,433
20,556,576 2,655,002 (881,400) 22,330,178
2,918,865 240,684 48,953 3,208,502
159,241,736 7,558,216 (849,199) 165,950,753
(29,527,791) (3,152,467) - (32,680,258)
(4,288,332) (324,598) 5,456 (4,607,474)
(11,773,737) (1,518,590) 813,447 (12,478,880)
(2,688,879) (174,224) (41,380) (2,904,483)
(48,278,739) (5,169,879) 777,523 (52,671,095)
1109962 2,388,337 (71,676) 113,279,658
22274, $ 18,733,180 $ (7,977,053) $ 233,120,851
93,836 $ - $ - 93,836
93,836 - - 93,836
(54,660) (11,629) - (66,289)
(54,660) (11,629) - (66,289)
39,176 (11,629) - 27,547
39,176 (11,629) $ - 27,547
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NOTE 7 —LEASES

A. Operating Leases

The County has entered into operating leases &sléstee and lessor. The County currently
has facility leases in force that provide for cdlat®n at various terms. These leases are for
office space and ground storage having minimum anlaase payments of $78,592. At
September 30, 2015, the County had entered intddage arrangements with outside non-
profit entities to provide space within the BrazBenter, a public facility owned by the
County. The County’s lease arrangement with thaz8s Valley Museum provides the
Museum with space at $1,248 annually. The lease58-year lease expiring in 2040. The
County also provides the office space for Junicaduee of Bryan/College Station at $7,800
per year with a lease agreement renewable annu@hg. current lease was renewed on June
1, 2015. The County has also purchased property ant existing lease renewable yearly,
allowing Lamar Companies to set up billboards an@ounty’s property at $1,200 per year.

The County has entered into seventeen non-caneelgérating leases for the use of

photocopying equipment. The leases are each f@ madhth period. Expenditures for these

operating leases were $60,669 in 2015. The futingmum lease payments for these leases
are as follows:

Year Ended September 30, Amount
2016 $ 32,244
2017 16,684
2018 2,412
Total $ 51,34(

B. Capital Leases

The County has entered into seven capital leaseeagmts for the acquisition of heavy
equipment. The amounts capitalized total $1,141,7Bfincipal payments during the fiscal

year 2015 totaled $208,365. Depreciation expeh$2®,266 was recorded for the year on
the equipment. The following is a summary of cdpéase activity and outstanding balances
at September 30, 2015:

Beginning Outstanding Due Within
Governmental Activities: Balance Additions Reductions September 30, 2015 One Yea
Capital Leases $ 444,223 $475,100 $208,365 $ 710,958 $ 264,974

Payments, including interest at an average rafe68b per annum are due as follows:

Year Ended September 30, Amount
2016 $ 283,242
2017 160,389
2018 304,640
Total future lease payments 748,271
Less: Intere! (37,313
_$_ 710958
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NOTE 8 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The cost of the County’s liability for compensatgusences is calculated at the end of the
fiscal year based on the employee’s pay rate amédtbumulated vacation hours earned but
not taken. It is reported as a current liabilitythe County’s government-wide financial
statements due to the fact that the average matfrihe liability is less than one year. The
general fund and some special revenue funds haem leed in prior years to liquidate the
liability for compensated absences in governmentads.

The amount of compensated absences due withineareoy the date of the Statement of Net
Position of fiscal year 2015 is $1,140,928. Changesompensated absences for the year
were as follows:

Balance Balance
Outstanding Taken/ Outstanding
October 1, 2014 Earned Paid September 30, 2015
Governmental Activities $ 994,475 $ 2,370,516 $ (2,225,808) $ 1,139,183
Business-type Activities 2,993 2,313 (3,561) 1,745
Total $ 997,468 $ 2,372,829 $ (2,229,369) $ 1,140,928

NOTE 9 — LONG-TERM DEBT

A. Bonded Debt

Bonded debt of the County consists of various issoie General Obligation Bonds and
Certificates of Obligation. General Obligation Berahd Certificates of Obligation are direct
obligations of the County with the County’s fullitta and credit pledged towards the
payment of this obligation. General Obligation Bsrare issued upon approval by the public
at an election. Certifications of Obligation assued by the vote of the Commissioners’
Court as allowed under the Certificates of ObligatAct. Debt service is primarily paid
from ad valorem taxes. The following are debt isswéh activity or outstanding balances at
September 30, 2015:

Original Interest Year of Year of Outstanding

Description Amount Rates (%) Issue Maturity at 9/30/15
Certificates of Obligation
Series 2005 - Various $ 2,750,000 3.25-3.75 2005 2015 $ -
Series 2009 - Expo Expansion 12,000,000 3.0-4.5 2009 2034 9,740,000
Series 2012 - Various 9,700,000 2.0-5.0 2012 2032 9,175,000
Limited Tax Refunding Bonds
Series 2005 - Debt Refunding 6,005,000 4.0 2005 2016 755,000
Series 2009 - Debt Refunding 7,365,000 3.0-4.0 2009 2021 3,485,000
Series 2012 - Debt Refunding 14,640,000 2.0-5.0 2012 2025 13,700,000
Limited Tax Bond
Series 2008 - Jail Expansion 55,000,000 3.25-5.0 2008 2028 44,985,000

General Obligation Bonds

Series 2005 - Exposition Center $ 10,500,000 4.0-6.0 2005 2025 1,150,000
Total Certificates of Obligation
and Bonds Payal $ 82,990,00
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NOTE 9 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Bonded Debt (Continued)

Activity for long-term debt of the County for thear ended September 30, 2015 was as follows:

Balance Balance Amount
Outstanding Outstanding Due Within

Description 10/1/2014 Additions Reductions 9/30/2015 Oear
Certificates of Obligation
Series 2005 - Various $ 320,000 $ - $ 320,000 $ - 8 -
Series 2009 - Expo Expansion 10,165,000 - 425,000 9,740,000 425,000
Series 2012 - Various 9,350,000 - 175,000 9,175,000 400,000
Limited Tax Refunding Bonds
Series 2005 - Debt Refunding 1,475,000 - 720,000 755,000 755,000
Series 2009 - Debt Refunding 3,990,000 - 505,000 3,485,000 520,000
Series 2012 - Debt Refunding 14,230,000 - 530,000 13,700,000 830,000
Limited Tax Bond
Series 2008 - Jail Expansion 47,495,000 - 2,510,000 44,985,000 2,620,000
General Obligation Bonds
Series 2005 - Exposition Center 1,695,000 - 545,000 1,150,000 565,000
Premium 2,745,392 - 226,080 2,519,312 -
Total Bonds Payable $91,465,39. $ - $ 5,956,080 $85,509,31 $ 6,115,00

Annual debt service requirements as of Septemb@036 are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 6,115,000 $ 3,457,974 $ 9,572,974
2017 5,575,000 3,250,199 8,825,199
2018 5,795,000 3,033,549 8,828,549
2019 6,040,000 2,805,549 8,845,549
2020 6,295,000 2,563,349 8,858,349
2021-2025 30,830,000 8,667,651 39,497,651
2026-2030 18,495,000 2,592,737 21,087,737
2031-2034 3,845,000 346,638 4,191,638
Totals $82,990,000 $26,717,646 $109,707,646

B. Arbitrage Rebate Liability

The Tax Recovery Act of 1986 established regulatidor the rebate to the federal
government of arbitrage earnings on certain locakghmental bonds issued after December
31, 1985, and all local governmental bonds issuftdr @August 31, 1986. Issuing
governments must calculate any rebate due on amahbasis and remit the amount due at
least every five years. The County has not incustech a liability in the fiscal year 2015.
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NOTE 10 — INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

The City of Bryan and Brazos County Economic Depgient Foundation, Inc. (the
“Foundation”) is a Texas Transportation Code lagadernment corporation formed by the
City of Bryan, Texas (the “City”), and Brazos Coynfexas (the “County”), to promote,
develop, encourage and maintain employment, comenarad economic development in the
City and the County.

The Foundation was formed pursuant to the provssminSubchapter D, Chapter 431 of the
Texas Transportation Code, as amended. The furstingces of the Foundation have come
from contributions from Brazos County and the Q@ifyBryan, a grant from the Twin Cities
Endowment, Inc., cash contributions from Researaley Partnership (RVP) and cash from
the sale of land acquired by the Foundation. Thearafof the Foundation are managed by a
Board of Directors which is composed of nine pessimicluding the County Judge of Brazos
County and three other persons appointed by then@issioners’ Court of Brazos County,
the Mayor of the City of Bryan and three other paessappointed by the City Council of the
City of Bryan, and one individual appointed by tBeard of Directors of Twin Cities
Endowment, Inc. However, the director appointedh®yBoard of Directors of Twin Cities
Endowment, Inc. has no voting rights except in¢hse of a deadlock in votes by the other
directors.

The Foundation is reported as a joint venture g @ounty’s government-wide financial
statements, as defined by Governmental Accountiagdards Board (GASB) Statement No.
14, The Financial Reporting Entity, GASB Statement No. 39 and GASB Statement No. 61.

The Foundation’s statement of net position ancestant of activities for fiscal year 2015 are
presented as follows:

CITY OF BRYAN AND BRAZOS COUNTY
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

(UNAUDITED)
Assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 244,46
Cash and cash equivalents - restri 1,03z
Prepaid expens 4,371
Other asse 22,14t
Capital asse
Lanc 2,942,03!
Total Assets 3,214,048
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expe 1,406,67
Noncurrent liabilitie
Due within one yei 92,97:
Due in more than one ye 1,257,07
Total Liabilities 2,756,723
Net Positior
Net investment in capital ass 1,591,99.
Restricted for contractual requireme 1,03z
Unrestricte: (1,135,698
Total Net Positior $ 457,32"
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NOTE 10 — INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

CITY OF BRYAN AND BRAZOS COUNTY
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

(UNAUDITED)
Net (Expenses
Revenue ani
Changes i
Program Revenue Net Positior
Fees, Fine Operating Capital
and Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental
Program Activities Expense for Services Contributions Contributions Activities
Governmental activitie
General government a
administratiol $ 856,04 $ - $ 353,67: $ - $ (502,373
Total primary governme $ 856,04« $ - $ 353,67: $ - (502,373
General Revenu
Investment earnini 187
Gain on disposition of capital as 2,025,97.
Total general revenu 2,026,16:
Change in net positic 1,523,78:
Net position (deficit) - beginning of ye (1,066,463
Net position - end of ye $ 457,32!

Besides the entity’s investment in the Foundateath entity also reports a 50% ownership
in the residual net position of the Foundation.e Tounty reports $311,594 as its share of
the Foundation’s net position for fiscal year 2015.

A copy of the Foundation’s financial statements rbayobtained from the Foundation at 200
S. Texas Avenue, Suite 332, Bryan, TX 77803.

NOTE 11 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The County participates in a workers’ compensatmmol administered by the Texas
Association of Counties. The Texas AssociatiorCotinties handles claims adjusting and
related administrative services for the programeniums are evaluated annually by position
class code at actuarially determined rates. Thentoworkers’ compensation program
provides medical and indemnity payments as requsethw for on-the-job related injuries
and is accounted for by the use of departmentakrdifures based on a percentage of
payroll.

The pool that the County participates in has predifor reinsurance coverage for excess
workers’ compensation and employer’s liability. ef@ounty does not recognize any liability

for outstanding losses for incurred but not repbredaims. The Texas Association of

Counties assumes this responsibility.

The County currently provides medical and dentalrance for its employees with basic

prescription and life benefits attached. The grogurance plan is self-insured. The plan
pays the full cost of the claims for its members.

63



NOTE 11 — RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The County has established a Health and Life Imsaigrdnternal Service Fund to account for
the costs associated with various health-relatedrance programs. The Internal Service
Fund collects the premium payments from the Couthiy,employees, and the retirees. All
funds are available to pay claims and administeatees and have been reserved for such
purpose. The County has purchased reinsuranceptbeides a $100,000 stop loss on an
individual claim, and an aggregate at $60,000 dfterCounty’s minimum annual aggregate
deductible has reached $100,000. The County exmenk claims of $10,138,941 and
$7,038,076 for fiscal year 2015 and 2014 respegtivit September 30, 2015, the County
had accrued $1,051,552 for anticipated claims kzat not been filed at year-end. This
amount is classified as a current liability in tBe&atement of Net Position of the Internal
Service Fund and is due within one year of Septe/®3de2015.

Change in the balance of unpaid liability duringcl years 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Current Year

Beginning of Claims and Balance at Amount
Fiscal Year Changes in Claims Fiscal Due Within
Liability Estimated Paid Year End One Year

2014 $ 781,606 $ 7,038,076 $ (6,973,153) $ 846,529 $ 846,529
2015 846,529 10,138,941 (9,933,918) 1,051,552 1,051,552

The Commissioners’ Court of Brazos County is awdua the County has risk of loss
exposure to liability and accidental loss of reatl goersonal property as well as human
resources. County operations involve a varietyhigh-risk activities including, but not

limited to, cash collections, road and bridge nmenance, law enforcement, and construction.

The Commissioners’ Court has created the officRisk Management, whose responsibility
is to identify, evaluate, and manage risk in aoreffo reduce the liability and accidental loss
of property and human services. In the managepracess, the Risk Manager is assigned
the responsibility of ensuring that all County eoygles are properly trained in safety.
Brazos County employs risk-financing activitiesitezlude the purchase of insurance for
general liability, vehicle liability, and liabilitfrom property damage claims. In addition, the
County purchases property insurance, errors andgsiom coverage, professional liability
insurance, as well as crime and fidelity coveragay liability that arises from the operation
of motorized equipment will be considered to falthin the confines of the Texas Tort
Claims Act, andhereby limit the County’s exposure. At SeptemB@r 2015, all claims
against the County had been paid or accrued fompay, or the County’s underwriter had
accepted responsibility for the claim.

The County has not made any significant reductinniasurance coverage from coverage in
the previous fiscal year. No settlements excea@ugdance coverage for the past three fiscal
years.
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NOTE 12 — PENSION PLAN

A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description

The County provides retirement, disability, andattie benefits for all of its full-time
employees through a nontraditional defined bergditsion plan in the Texas County and
District Retirement System (“TCDRS” or “System”)he Board of Trustees of the System is
responsible for the administration of the statevadent multiple-employer system consisting
of over 500 nontraditional defined benefit pengmans. TCDRS in the aggregate issues a
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) orakemdar year basis. To obtain a copy
send a written request for the CAFR to the TCDR&rBaf Trustees at P. O. Box 2034,
Austin, Texas 78768-2034.

Benefits Provided

The Commissioners’ Court of Brazos County adopésplan provisions within the options
available in the Texas State statutes governingHEDICDRS Act). Members can retire at
ages 60 and above with 8 or more years of serviceitt 30 years of service regardless of
age or when the sum of their age and years of emguals 75 or more. Members are
vested after eight years of service but accumulatedributions must be left in the plan.
Retirement benefits are based on the members’ fawalount balance and employer
matching. Current employer matching is 225%. Memmbe&ho withdraw their personal
contributions in a lump sum are not entitled to amployer matching. Disability retirement
benefits are determined in the same manner aemaint benefits. Death benefits are
available to the beneficiaries of the members viotlr or more years of service. Cost-of-
living adjustments to each employee’s retiremetawance subsequent to the employee’s
retirement date are at the discretion of the Co@agynmissioners’ Court.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of thel@yee’s contributions to the plan, with
interest, and County-financed monetary credits.e governing body of Brazos County,
within the actuarial constraints imposed by the REDAct, adopts the level of these
monetary credits. Therefore, the resulting besefitn be expected to be adequately financed
by the County’s commitment to contribute. At retirent, death, or disability the benefit is
calculated by converting the sum of the employessumulated contributions and the
County-financed monetary credits to a monthly atyhuising annuity purchase rates
prescribed by the TCDRS.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At September 30, 2015, the following employees veereered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently reiogi benefits 297

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet recajudenefits 497

Active employees 750
1,544
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NOTE 12 - PENSION PLAN (Continued)

A. General Information about the Pension Plan(Continued)

Contributions

Brazos County has elected the annually determioentribution rate (ADCR) plan
provisions of the TCDRS Act. The plan is funded ragnthly contributions from both
employee members and the employer based on theecbpayroll of employee members.
Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of thmpéoyer is actuarially determined
annually. The actuarially determined rate is thimeed amount necessary to finance the
costs of benefits earned by employees during tlae, yeth an additional amount to finance
any unfunded accrued liability. The County is riegg to contribute the difference between
the actuarially determined rate and the contributiate of employees. Brazos County’s
contribution rate was 14% for fiscal year 2015 andnticipated to remain at 14% for fiscal
year 2016. The employee’s member contribution regmained at 7% for 2015.
Contributions to the pension plan from the Countgrav$4,692,679 for the year ended
September 30, 2015.

B. Net Pension Liability

The County’s net pension liability was measuredobi®ecember 31, 2014, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pendiahility was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the December 31,120actuarial valuation was determined

using the following actuarial assumptions, applieal all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Payroll growth 3.5 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 8.1 percent

Mortality rates were based on various RP-2000 Myt Tables for Males or Females, as
appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improwents based on Scale AA.

The actuarial assumptions used in the Decembe&2®Y valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the periocudanl, 2009 — December 31, 2012 except
where required to be different by GASB 68.

The long-term expected rate of return on TCDR&®tass determined by adding expected
inflation to expected long-term real returns, aefliecting expected volatility and correlation.
The building-block method allows the developmentha best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, afepension plan investment expense and
inflation) for each major asset class. These rarage combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expectedré real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected ioflat The target allocation and best
estimate of geometric real rates of return for eaepor asset class are summarized in the
following table:
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NOTE 12 - PENSION PLAN (Continued)

B. Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Geomatric Real Ra
of Returr

Asset Clas Target Allocation (1 (Expected - Inflation) (2
US Equitie: 16.50% 5.35%
Private Equit 12.00% 8.35%
Global Equitie 1.50% 5.65%
International Equities - Develop 11.00% 5.35%
International Equities - Emergi 9.00% 6.35%
Investment-Grade Bon 3.00% 0.55%
High-Yield Bond: 3.00% 3.75%
Opportunistic Cred 5.00% 5.54%
Direct Lending 2.00% 5.80%
Distressed De 3.00% 6.75%
REIT Equitie 2.00% 4.00%
Commoditie 2.00% -0.20%
Master Limited Partnerships (MLF 2.00% 5.30%
Private Real Estate Partnerst 3.00% 7.20%
Hedge Func 25.00% 5.15%

100.00Y

(1) Target asset allocation adopted at the ApiIR2TCDRS meetin
(2) Geometric real rates of return in addition $slaned inflation of 1.7%, per Cliffwater's
2015 capital market assumptions.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pefialwhty was 8.10 percent. The projection

of cash flows used to determine the discount raseirmed that employee contributions will

be made at the current contribution rate and tlmain@/ contributions will be made at rates
equal to the difference between actuarially deteethicontribution rates and the employee
rate. Based on those assumptions, the pensiois plduciary net position was projected to

be available to make all projected future benefiympents of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected ohteturn on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit rpagpts to determine the total pension
liability.

Changes in Net Pension Liability / (Asse
Increase (Decreas

Total Pensio Plan Fiduciary Ne Net Pensio
Liability Positior Liability / (Asset,
€Y (b) @-(b

Balances as of December 31, 2C $149,601,62 $135,102,34 $14,499,28
Changes for the year:
Service co¢ 4,799,04. - 4,799,04.
Interest on total pension liabil 12,180,04. - 12,180,04
Effect of economic/demographic gains or lo: (509,172 - (509,172
Refund of contributior (540,823 (540,823 -
Benefit paymen (4,961,250 (4,961,25C -
Administrative expens - (108,831 108,83:
Member contributior - 2,262,091 (2,262,096
Net investment incon - 9,163,23: (9,163,233
Employer contributior - 4,525,39I (4,525,390
Othel - (232,905 232,90!
Net Change: 10,967,84 10,106,91 860,93
Balances as of December 31, 2C $160,569,469 $145,209,254 $15,360,215
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NOTE 12 — PENSION PLAN (Continued)

B. Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Sengitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the County, calculated using the discount
rate of 8.10 percent, as well as what the County’s net pension liability would be if it were

calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percent-point lower (7.10 percent) or 1-percent-
point higher (9.10 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
7.10% Rate 8.10% 9.10%
County's net pension liability / (asset) 37,827,245 15,360,215 (3,047,214)

C. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the County recognized pension expense of
$4,075,794. At September 30, 2015, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual pension experience $ -8 407,338
Difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 1,609,709 -
Change in pension allocated share 86,370
Pension contributions made after the measurement date 3,421,195 -
Total $ 5,117,274  $ 407,338

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from pension contributions made
after the measurement date of $3,421,195 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the County’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2016.
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, excluding pension contributions made after the measurement date, will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2016 $ 322,185
2017 322,185
2018 322,185
2019 322,186
Thereafter -

D. Payable to the Pension Plan

As of September 30, 2015, the County reported a short-term payable of $609,441 for the
outstanding pension contributions to TCDRS. The amount represents the legally required
contributions from both employee member and the employer based on the covered payroll of
employee members for the month of September 2015, which was due by October 15, 2015.
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NOTE 13 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
A. COBRA

The County provides health care benefits as requsethe Federal government under the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 883 (“COBRA”). COBRA requires
employers that sponsor group health plans to peoeantinuation of group coverage to
terminated employees and their dependents in cstamoes where coverage would normally
end. The election to be covered is at the reqoketite employee. The employee is then
required to pay the premium costs for themselves thrir dependents. Expenditures are
recognized as claims are submitted. The beneféldeof the COBRA participants are the
same as those afforded to active employees. ThatZaoses the Health and Life Insurance
Internal Service fund to liquidate the benefit ghtion for COBRA participants. At
September 30, 2015, the County had been fully reisdnd for costs related to COBRA
participants.

B. Post-Retirement Benefits

Plan Description

Texas Local Government Code Section 157.101 as#ignauthority to establish and amend
group health benefit provisions to the Commissish@ourt. Brazos County has elected to
offer post-retirement healthcare benefits to certatirees. County policy allows full-time
employees to become eligible for post-retiremerdltheare benefits after meeting the
service and retirement age requirements of the T&€D&Rirement plan. The County’s post-
retirement benefit plan is a single-employer defibenefit plan. It includes medical, dental
and drug care benefits, all of which are providedugh the County’s self-insured healthcare
plan. The benefit levels are the same as thosedafiico active employees.

As of January 1, 2014, the membership of the Cdsissif-insured plan consists of:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 129
Active Employees 641
Total 77C
Participating Employe 1

Funding Policy

The County uses the Health and Life Insurance mialeBervice fund to liquidate the post-
retirement benefit obligation. The County evaluatesl establishes the plan premium
amounts, which includes the employee portion aeddbunty’s subsidy, under Texas Local
Government Code Section 157.102 on an annual bidstseligible retirees who retired prior
to January 1, 2000 may pay a fixed premium amoanmaintain coverage through the
County’s healthcare plan. Eligible retirees whaeveired before August 30, 2011 and with
eight or more years of cumulative services withzBsaCounty upon retirement are entitled
to the County’s subsidy and may pay the employetgooof the premium only to maintain
coverage. Eligible retirees who were hired beforgust 30, 2011 but have less than eight
years of cumulative service with Brazos County retirement must pay the full premium
to maintain coverage. Employees hired on or aftegust 30, 2011 must pay the full
premiums to maintain coverage regardless of thesy&faservice. Upon a retiree reaching 65
years of age, the County’s healthcare plan bec@@asndary automatically.
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NOTE 13 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

B. Post-Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The County’s annual OPEB cost is calculated basethe annual required contribution of
the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determimeaccordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a leiviinding that, if paid on an ongoing

basis, is projected to cover normal cost each gedrto amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty y®arThe County’s annual OPEB cost, the
County’s contribution, and the net OPEB obligationthe fiscal year ended September 30,

2015 were as follows:

Annual Required Contribution $ 6,945,944
Add interest on Net OPEB Obligation 1,851,771
Less adjustment to Annual Required Contribution 15,847)
Annual OPEB Cost 7,082,068
Less Contributions made (1,419,123)
Change in Net OPEB Obligation 5,662,945
Net OPEB Obligation beginning of the year 41,150,475
Net OPEB Obligation end of the yi $ 46,813,42

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentagenotid OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal yeadieg September 30, 2015 and the

preceding two fiscal years were as follows:

Trend Information
Percentage of

Annual OPEB Employer Annual OPEB Cost Net Ending OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended Cost Contribution Contributed Oblayat
9/30/2013 $ 7,321,521 $ 687,269 9.4% $ 35,449,793
9/30/2014 $ 6,860,902 $ 1,160,220 16.9% $ 41,150,475
9/30/2015 $ 7,082,068 $ 1,419,123 20.0% $ 46,813,420

The County’s post-retirement benefits, providedtigh the County’s self-insured healthcare
plan, are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The @aamtributed $1,419,123 toward it for

the year ended September 30, 2015

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the County’s post-retiremesdlthcare plan, under GASB Statement

No. 45 as of January 1, 2014 (the most recent tialjavas as follows:

Actuarial value of assets $ -
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 63,510,613
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 63,510%
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets /AAL) % 0
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 32,073,636
UAAL as percentage of covered payroll 198.0%
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NOTE 13 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

B. Post-Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Under the reporting parameters, the County’s petstement healthcare plan is 0.0% funded
with an estimated actuarial accrued liability extirg actuarial assets by $63,510,613 at
January 1, 2014. The ratio of the unfunded adbatcrued liability to annual covered
payroll is 198.0%.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost methodused to calculate the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC) for the Countgaest-retirement healthcare plan. Using
the plan benefits, the present health premiums argkt of actuarial assumptions, the
anticipated future payments are projected. Thegpted unit credit method then provides for
a systematic recognition of the cost of these gaied payments. The annual ARC is
computed to cover the cost of benefits being eatmgadovered members as well as to
amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued liapilit

Projections of benefits are based on the plan derstood by the County and include the
types of benefits in force at the valuation datel éime pattern of sharing benefit costs
between the County and its employees to that poAdtuarial calculations reflect a long-
term perspective and employ methods and assumghahare designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and thetuarial value of assets. Significant methods
and assumptions were as follows:

Inflation Rate 3.00% per annum

Investment Rate of Return 4.50%, net of expenses

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Cost Mt
Amortization Method Level as a percentage of empmqyayroll
Amortization Period 30-year, open amortization

Payroll Growth 3.00% per annum

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 7.50% initial rate; 5.%08mate rate
Dental Cost Trend Rate 4.50% per year

Additional Disclosure

Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 175 requivasties to make available continued
health benefits coverage under certain circumstatweetirees and their dependents beyond
the end of an individual's employment with the Couif“Continuation Coverage”) by
permitting covered employees to purchase contirhezdth benefits coverage in retirement.
Texas law does not require counties to fund adlror portion of such coverage.

Because the County is given the authority to pafBFRor its retired employees, it may
incur a debt obligation to pay for OPEB as longtles County follows the constitutional
requirement that it have sufficient taxing authpsgtailable at the time such debt is incurred
to provide for the payment of the debt and hasact flevied a tax for such purpose
concurrently with the incurrence of the debt. Amgbtincurred in contravention of this
constitutional requirement is considered void aaginpent will not be due. Brazos County
has not incurred a legal debt obligation for OP&®I has not levied a tax for the same.
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NOTE 13 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

B. Post-Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The County funds the cost associated with OPEB ocaregent “pay as you go” basis for a
single fiscal year through an annual appropriatathorized by the Commissioners’ Court
during the County’s annual budget adoption proceSA&AP requires governmental

organizations to recognize an actuarially calcalaecrued liability for OPEB, even though
it may not have a legally enforceable obligatiop&ay OPEB benefits.

Information and amounts presented in the Countgs@ehensive Annual Financial Report
relative to OPEB expenses, related liabilities €egs note disclosures, and supplementary
information are only intended to achieve compliamgéh the requirements of generally
accepted accounting principles (GASB 45) and da¢sconstitute or imply that the County
is legally obligated to provide OPEB benefits.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the vahfereported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events in the future. Amts determined regarding the funded
status and the ARC of the County’s post-retirentexdithcare plan are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to pastataiions and new estimates are made
about the future. The required schedule of fundprggress presented as required
supplementary information provides multiyear trantbrmation that shows whether the

actuarial value of plan assets is increasing oredsing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

C. Deferred Compensation

The County offers its employees a deferred comgiems@lan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, &nded, is available to all employees, and
permits them to defer a portion of their salaryilufature years. The plan funds are not
available to employees until termination, retireineeath, or emergency. Brazos County is
not the plan administrator or the trustee, theeetbe assets of the plan are not a reportable
fund within the County’s financial statements.

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Construction Contracts

The County has budgeted $27.2 million for variowtracts in connection with the
construction and renovation of County facilitiesijlhings and the rehabilitation of County
roads for fiscal year 2016. They are allocatetbbsws:

» $0.5 million for the construction of the new fleeaintenance building to be used
for routine maintenance of County—owned vehicles lagavy equipment.

* $9.2 million for the renovation of the County’s cthouse building.

e $2.7 million for the renovation of the old Tax @#i building to house the
County’s medical clinic and election administratmffice.

* $9.1 million for the rehabilitation of County roads

* $0.1 million for the acquisition of the new citizeallection site.
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

A. Construction Contracts (Continued)

e $1.0 million for the construction of the new buiidifor the Justice of the Peace
and Constable of precinct 1.

* $4.6 million for the Expo Center improvement angansion.

The County has also budgeted $2,974,791 for theisitiqn of the judicial software in fiscal
year 2016.

B. Tax Increment Financing Zones (TIEZ's)

As of September 30, 2015, the County had enteredsieveral inter-local agreements with
the City of Bryan for the creation of Tax Incremétmancing Zones as allowed by Chapter
311 of the Texas Tax Code.

Tax Increment Financing Zones (TIFZ) are statuttmgls available to municipalities in
Texas to promote development or redevelopment iaraa that would not occur in the
foreseeable future solely through private investmefIFZ are also means to allow a
community, both city and county, to enhance thhility to attract economic development or
to allow businesses currently located within tlaeea to expand.

Once a city has designated a TIFZ, the Commisssor@ourt must decide whether the
County is to participate in the TIFZ and to whatest. After the County has elected to
participate, a base value for the property locatgdin the TIFZ is established. At the date
of creation the appraised value is normally acakpte the base value. As the property
within the TIFZ develops, the County collects taxessed on the appreciated appraised
values at the rate established annually by the Gesiomers’ Court. Once the taxes have
been paid each year the County remits the amoutatxes attributable to the increase in the
appraised values (captured value) to the TIFZ taded to fund the project plan. Project
plans normally include the creation of infrastruetguch as roads, street improvements, light
systems, sewer systems, landscaping, parks, eidFAcan be terminated either on the date
designated in the ordinance creating the zoneherdate on which all project costs, tax
increment bonds, and interest on the bonds have ted.

Brazos County has entered into two inter-local egrents with the City of Bryan to create
Reinvestment Zone Number Ten — “Traditions” andnkRestment Zone Number Twenty-
Two — “Bryan Towne Center”. The Traditions zonepproximately 790 acres on the west
side of the City of Bryan and was originally schiedufor 15 years of County participation.
It was extended to 24 years during fiscal year 20T&e Bryan Towne Center on the east
side of the City is scheduled for 20 years of Cgypdrticipation. During fiscal year 2015
(for the tax year ended 12/31/14), the County reirsed $889,557 to the City of Bryan on
the TIFZ's.
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

C. Tax Abatements

Chapter 312 of the Texas Tax Code authorizes thmi@do provide property tax abatements
for limited time periods to encourage developmanéxpansion of property. The terms of
each agreement are limited by the guidelines aierier established by the Commissioners’
Court. At September 30, 2015 the County had asteddl abatement agreements with the
following property owners.

2015 2015
Appraised Taxable 2015 Taxes
Property Owner Value Value Levied
Axis Pipe & Tube $ 21,428,130 $ 7,100,000 $ 34,435
Caliber Biotherapeutics LLC 23,871,800 7,650,959 37,107
Kent Moore 4,515,160 3,160,612 15,329
Penncro Associates 247,810 124,660 605

D. Contingent Liabilities

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. gk matters that are pending and have
arisen in the normal course of the County’s operati Although the outcome of these
lawsuits is not presently determinable, the Countsrious legal counsels are of the opinion
that the settlement of these claims and pendirgation will not have a material effect on
the County’s financial statements. Consequentigre has been no current provision to
reserve funds for such claims.

The County receives various grant monies that abgest to audit and adjustment by the
grantor agencies. Any disallowed expenditure tvdtome a liability of the County. The
amount cannot be determined at this time, but then€/ expects such amounts, if any, to be
immaterial.

NOTE 15 — FUND BALANCES
Fund balances are presented in the following categyanonspendable, restricted, committed,

assigned, and unassigned as described in Note IFRe following is a detail of fund
balances for all the major and nonmajor governnduatals at September 30, 2015:
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NOTE 15 — FUND BALANCES (Continued)

Fund Balance
Nonspendabl
Prepaid
Inventorie:
Total Nonspendable

Restricted foi
Debt Servic
Juvenile Service
Human Service
State Lateral Road Fu
Unclaimed Proper
Administration of Justic
Records Manageme
Special Forfeiture
Law Enforcemer
District Attorney Hot Check Collectic
Bail Bond Board Fe
Administration of Tax Offic
Sheriff Department Crime Fu
District Attorney Crime Fur
Capital Project

Total Restricted

Committed tc
Health Endowment Fui

Total Committed

Assigned tc
Capital Improvemen
Research Valle
Indigent Health Cal

Total Assigned

Unassigne

Total Fund Balances

Deb Capita
Genera Service Improvemer Nonmajo
Func Func Func Fund: Total

$ 619,76: $ - 3 - $ 14,50¢ % 634,27.

812,47t - - - 812,47t
1,432,240 - - 14,508 1,446,748

- 5,840,17: - - 5,840,17:

40,89« - - - 40,89«

- - - 2,615,161 2,615,161

- - 26,96 26,96:

- - - 56,01¢ 56,01¢

318,22¢ - - 388,00t 706,23!

- - - 1,472,83 1,472,83

- - - 34,477 34,477

1,01% - - - 1,01%

- - - 2,48t 2,48t

- - 86,73: 86,73:

- - 221,99: 221,99:

- - 230,61t 230,61t

- - 103,79: 103,79:

- - - 46,09: 46,09:
360,140 5,840,178 - 5,285,170 11,485,488

469,02¢ - - - 469,02¢
469,028 - - - 469,028

- - 13,703,25 - 13,703,25

119,00( - - - 119,00(

904,14: - - - 904,14:
1,023,141 - 13,703,250 - 14,726,391

39,747,93 - - - 39,747,93
$ 5,299,678 $ 67,875,587

43,032,481 $ 5,840,178 $ 13,703,250 $

NOTE 16 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In October 2015, the County issued $9,100,000 femties of Obligation, Series 2015
through private placement to fund the County cawusie renovation project and the

Exposition Center expansion project.

annually and the bonds mature in fiscal year 2025.

NOTE 17 — NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The annudrést rate is 1.92%.

Interest accrues

The following new GASB pronouncements will be efiee for the County for the fiscal year

ending September 30, 2016:

* The Governmental Accounting Standards Board kased Statement No. 72 (“GASB
727), “Fair Value Measurement and Application” whiwill be effective for the County
in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2016. TBimtement provides guidance for
determining a fair value measurement for finanoggdorting purposes and for applying
fair value to certain investments and disclosue¢sted to all fair value measurements.
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NOTE 17 — NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (Continued)

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board kased Statement No. 73 (*GASB
73"), “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Peorss and Related Assets That Are Not
within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendsménm Certain Provisions of
GASB Statements 67 and 68” which will be partiaffective for the County in the fiscal
year ending September 30, 2016. The requirementhi® Statement will improve
financial reporting by establishing a single franoekvfor the presentation of information
about pensions, which will enhance the compargbdit pension-related information
reported by employers and nonemployer contribugimigfies.

The following new GASB pronouncements will be efiee for the County for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2018:

The Governmental Accounting Standards Boardisssed Statement No. 75 (“GASB
757), “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pasf@oyment Benefits Other Than
Pensions” which will be effective for the Countythre fiscal year ending September 30,
2018. This Statement replaces the requiremen&aiéments No. 45, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for PostemploymBahefits Other Than Pensions”,
as amended, and No. 57, “OPEB Measurements by ABemployers and Agent
Multiple-Employer Plans”, for OPEB. The scope lostStatement addresses accounting
and financial reporting for OPEB that is providedthe employees of state and local
governmental employers. This Statement establist@sdards for recognizing and
measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resamsgcdeferred inflows of resources, and
expense/expenditures. For defined benefit OPEB,Shatement identifies the methods
and assumptions that are required to be used tggbrbenefit payments, discount
projected benefit payments to their actuarial presalue, and attribute that present value
to periods of employee service. Note disclosuit raguired supplementary information
requirements about defined benefit OPEB also adeesded. GASB 75 is expected to
have a significant impact on the County, howeverfthl effect is not known at this time.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Page 1 of 1

Variancewith

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes
Current Ad Valorem Tax: $ 55,735,000 $ 55,735,00 $ 55,818,64 $ 83,64
Delinquent Ad Valorem Tax: 500,00( 500,00( 472,83 (27,167
Penalties & Interest - Tax 300,00t 300,00t 325,54 25,54:
Mixed Drink Taxe 490,00( 490,00( 966,89 476,89:
County Sales Tax 13,740,00 13,740,00 15,351,01 1,611,01
Total Taxes 70,765,00 70,765,00 72,934,92 2,169,92
Charges For Services
JJAEP Service Fi 37,50( 37,50( 39,12¢ 1,62¢
Contracted Jail Servic 105,00( 105,00( 136,53¢ 31,53¢
Arrest/Warrant Fes 137,00( 137,00( 182,50:. 45,50:
Brazos Cent 200,00( 200,00( 187,42 (12,573
Exposition Cente 935,00( 935,00( 1,098,68: 163,68t
Bond Service/Forfeitur: 182,00( 182,00( 267,43: 85,43¢
County Clerl 1,300,001 1,300,001 1,304,81 4,81:
Vital Statistics Preservatir 6,00( 6,00( 7,51¢ 1,51«
County Attorne' 50,00( 50,00( 47,75¢ (2,246
General Administration Fe 39,50( 39,50( 12,47( (27,030
Constable 181,00( 181,00( 212,03t 31,03¢
Court Reporte 35,50( 35,50( 39,75: 4,252
Magistratt 30,00( 30,00( 11,26¢ (18,736
County Drug Court Fe: 30,00( 30,00( 31,94° 1,947
District Clerk 409,95( 409,95( 409,63: (318
District Attorney 6,00( 6,00( 4,04( (1,960
Family Protectio 8,50( 8,50( 9,73 1,237
Election Service 55,00( 55,00¢( 66,90¢ 11,90¢
Motor Carrier Weigh 10,00( 10,00( 91,61: 81,61:
Inmate Medical Fet 16,00( 16,00( 16,88¢ 884
Justice of the Pea 1,440,401 1,440,401 1,608,71! 168,31!
Juvenile Probation Fe 10,00( 10,00( 10,97¢ 974
License and Weigh 15,00( 15,00( 16,98( 1,98(
Omnibus Crime Control Fe 85,00( 85,00( 95,35¢ 10,35¢
Judicial Support Fe 2,00( 2,00( 2,20¢ 20€
Optional License Fe 1,200,001 1,200,001 1,394,42. 194,42:
Probate Fet 3,00( 3,00( 4,12: 1,122
Road & Bridge Fee 61,50( 61,50( 33,417 (28,083
School Crossing Fe 22,00( 22,00( 26,56" 4,567
Sheriff 75,00( 75,00( 62,54« (12,456
Landfill Fee: 34,00( 34,00( 36,55¢ 2,55¢
Tax Assessor-Collect 655,00( 655,00( 670,08( 15,08(
Vehicle Registration Fe 675,00( 675,00( 344,95( (330,050
Motor Vehicle Sales Tax 1,000,001 1,000,001 1,299,27 299,27¢
Licenses and Perm 70,00( 70,00( 63,07¢ (6,924
Pretrial Bond Supervisic 103,00 103,00 78,01¢ (24,982
Court Fine 2,005,00! 2,005,00! 1,757,30: (247,692
Total Charges For Services $ 11,229,85 $ 11,229,85 $ 11,682,664 $ 452,79(
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES (continued)
Intergovernmental - Federal
Department of Justi
Department of Agricultul
Department of Health & Human Servi
Emergency Management Agel
Total Intergovernmental - Federal

Intergovernmental - State & L ocal
Attorney Gener:
Department of Justi
D. A. Salary Suppleme
Office of the Court Administrat
Texas Juvenile Justice Departr
Juror Reimburseme
Tobacco Settleme

Total Intergovernmental - State

Total Intergover nmental

Interest

Other Revenue
Donation:
Road Crossin
State Traffic Fe
Reimbursemen
Leases and Rent:
Othe
Estray Animal Sale/Ft
Inmate Phone Syste
Oil and Gas Lea:
Informal Adjudication Probatic
Total Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

Page 2 of 1

Variancewith

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

40,00( 40,00 $ 44.71¢ % 4,71¢
26,00( 26,32: 55,14¢ 28,82t
33,00( 33,00( 49,12¢ 16,12¢
40,00( 40,00( 55,69¢ 15,69¢
139,00( 139,32: 204,68t 65,36¢
150,00( 150,00( 151,93¢ 1,93¢
282,10( 282,10( 306,21¢ 24,11¢
22,50( 22,50( 22,87( 37C
100,00t 100,00( 310,51¢ 210,51¢
111,00( 111,00( 152,92: 41,92«
50,00( 50,00( 69,32¢ 19,32¢
65,00( 65,00( 67,35’ 2,357
780,60( 780,60( 1,081,15: 300,55!
919,60( 919,92: 1,285,83 365,91t
151,90( 151,90( 160,98: 9,08:
20,00( 185,82 192,99: 7,171
5,00( 5,00( 9,52¢ 4,52¢
8,50( 8,50( 10,32¢ 1,82%
236,00( 236,00( 410,98t 174,98t
10,00( 10,00( 17,19: 7,192
28,10( 28,10( 90,65: 62,55:
50C 50C 47 (453
170,00( 170,00( 206,47: 36,47
1,50( 1,50( 39¢ (1,104
7,00( 7,00( 10,42: 3,42¢
486,60( 652,42! 949,01( 296,58’
83,552,95 83,719,09 $ 87,013,40 $ 3,294,301
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Page 3 of 1
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Variancewith

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
General Government
County Judg
Personnel Servic $ 298,69¢ $ 298,69¢ $ 263,25¢ $ 35,44(
Supplies and Other Char 12,90( 12,45: 5,87¢ 6,57¢
Repairs and Maintenar 40C 40C 29z 10¢
Minor Acquisition: - 44§ 44¢ -
311,99¢ 311,99¢ 269,87t 42,12
Budget Offict
Personnel Servic 196,88 196,88 196,02: 865
Supplies and Other Char 5,10( 5,60( 5,511 89
201,98 202,48 201,53. 952
Commissioners' Cot
Personnel Servic 1,789,43. 2,007,44! 2,005,29 2,14¢
Supplies and Other Char 39,97¢ 35,54¢ 25,92¢ 9,621
Repairs and Maintenar 1,31¢€ 1,31¢€ 72¢ 587
Contract Service 30t 30t - 30¢E
1,831,02 2,044,61! 2,031,95 12,65¢
Non-Departmenti
Personnel Servic 523,33: 523,33: 26,22: 497,11(
Supplies and Other Char 1,634,75! 1,634,75! 1,124,48. 510,26¢
Repairs and Maintenar - 2,817 1,77( 1,04
Contract Service 302,10! 303,06¢ 291,38! 11,68:¢
Professional Servic 765,00( 677,88! 127,43! 550,45(
3,225,18! 3,141,85. 1,571,29; 1,570,55!
Community Suppo
Community Suppo 3,104,55! 3,164,55! 2,977,58: 186,97:
3,104,55! 3,164,55! 2,977,58. 186,97:
Fleet Maintenanc
Personnel Servic - 25,54¢ 24 55¢ 99k
Supplies and Other Char - 691 671 20
Minor Acquisition: - 954 958 1
- 27,19« 26,17¢ 1,01¢
County Treasurt
Personnel Servic 464,06! 485,05! 453,33 31,71¢
Discretionary Fundin - 1,077 - 1,077
Supplies and Other Char 15,20( 16,15: 13,20¢ 2,94k
Repairs and Maintenar 1,33( 1,13( 351 77¢
Contract Service - 20C 6 194
$ 480,59 $ 503,61! $ 466,90. $ 36,71
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Page 4 of 1
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Variancewith

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government (continued)
Risk Manageme
Personnel Servic $ 14505. $ 14505. $ 144,43t  $ 61€
Discretionary Fundin - 2,99¢ - 2,99¢
Supplies and Other Char 11,38( 11,38( 5,73¢ 5,64z
Repairs and Maintenar - 71C 484 22¢€
Professional Servic 4,00( 4,00( 2,67¢ 1,322
160,43 164,13t 153,33t 10,80:
Tax Assessor-Collect
Personnel Servic 1,857,86' 1,857,86' 1,604,65 253,21¢
Supplies and Other Char 59,82t 59,68: 46,18 13,49¢
Repairs and Maintenar 2,42( 3,07( 1,78( 1,29(
Contract Service - 3,20( 2,88¢ 314
Professional Servic 3,70( 17¢ 15C 25
1,923,81. 1,923,99! 1,655,65. 268,34:
Information Technoloc
Personnel Servic 1,640,45. 1,668,81! 1,527,85. 140,96:
Supplies and Other Char 117,61 183,66¢ 162,11¢ 21,55(
Repairs and Maintenar 33,31« 34,59¢ 34,53« 65
Minor Acquisition: 64,70( 70,09( 66,26 3,82¢
Contract Service 711,46! 686,82 664,43: 22,38
Professional Servic - 30C 30C -
2,567,54 2,644,29; 2,455,50 188,79:
Human Resourc
Personnel Servic 297,32¢ 292,92¢ 260,43: 32,49¢
Discretionary Fundin - 84¢ - 84¢
Supplies and Other Char 28,00( 26,69( 16,23 10,45¢
Repairs and Maintenar 1,42( 1,42( 1,32( 10C
Minor Acquisition: - 1,31( 1,30¢ 2
Contract Service 1,05¢ 5,45k 2,81¢ 2,641
Professional Servic 25,00( 25,00( 8,901 16,09¢
352,80« 353,65 291,01: 62,64
County Audito
Personnel Servic 767,88( 767,88( 750,50: 17,37¢
Supplies and Other Char 18,15( 18,15( 13,497 4,65:
Contract Service 4,64( 4,64( 4,607 33
790,67( 790,67( 768,60! 22,06t
Purchasin
Personnel Servic 338,80 371,44( 356,98 14,457
Discretionary Fundin - 28¢ - 28¢
Supplies and Other Char 12,91 13,31 11,29 2,01¢
Repairs and Maintenar 2,89¢ 2,89¢ 2,692 204
Minor Acquisition: - 1,931 1,60¢ 32¢
Contract Service 4,38¢ 3,69¢ 1,09(C 2,60¢
Community Suppo 10,25( 10,25( - 10,25(
$ 369,25( $ 403,81 $ 373,66. $ 30,14¢
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Variancewith

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government (continued)
Facilities Service
Personnel Servic $ 1,603,97. $ 1,618,177 $ 154556 $ 72,61:
Discretionary Fundin - 11,157 - 11,157
Supplies and Other Char 83,90( 88,90( 79,84: 9,05t
Repairs and Maintenar 428,68: 498,53: 438,09: 60,44
Minor Acquisition: 22,00( 14,50( 11,30: 3,19¢
Contract Service 213,10( 138,10( 95,30: 42,79
Professional Servic 2,90( 3,05( 2,94( 11C
2,354,55! 2,372,41! 2,173,04. 199,37:
Landscapin
Personnel Servic 299,72¢ 299,72¢ 282,25: 17,47¢
Supplies and Other Char 2,52¢ 2,52¢ 1,67¢ 851
Repairs and Maintenar 85,10( 83,10¢( 44 ,36¢ 38,73:
Minor Acquisition: 2,50( 4,50( 4,30¢ 19t
Contract Service 61,00( 61,00( 39,77( 21,23(
450,85: 450,85: 372,37( 78,48:
Total General Government 18,125,26 18,500,13 15,788,50 2,711,63
Justice System
Pre-Trial Bond Supervisic
Personnel Servic 66,78 67,36 67,33 30
Supplies and Other Char 2,52( 3,257 307 2,95(C
Contract Service 7,02( 5,70z 3,01( 2,69:
76,32: 76,32: 70,65( 5,67:
County Attorne
Personnel Servic 2,790,73: 2,790,73: 2,727,65! 63,08¢
Discretionary Fundin - 41 - 41
Supplies and Other Char 124,91( 125,02( 101,80 23,21
Repairs and Maintenar 14,00( 13,47: 9,00( 4,47:
Contract Service 9,00( 9,41¢ 8,86¢ 55z
2,938,64 2,938,68! 2,847,32, 91,367
District Attorney
Personnel Servic 2,778,11 2,764,38. 2,713,13 51,25:
Discretionary Fundin - 6,85( - 6,85(
Supplies and Other Char 141,00( 154,23 120,56t 33,66¢
Repairs and Maintenar 15,96( 15,96( 12,70¢ 3,25¢
Minor Acquisition: 40C 90C 76C 14C
Contract Service 7,53¢ 7,53¢ 2,13( 5,40¢
2,943,01. 2,949,86. 2,849,29! 100,56¢
D.A. - Child Protective Servic
Personnel Servic 232,96 232,96 165,68 67,28:
Supplies and Other Char 8,90( 8,90( 2,331 6,56¢
$ 241,86 $ 241,86 $ 168,011 % 73,85.
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Justice System (continued)
District Clerk
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Contract Service

Court and Jury Servic
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Contract Service

Collection:
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Contract Service

County Clerl
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service

Vital Statistics Preservati
Supplies and Other Char

85th District Coul
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Contract Service

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Page 6 of 1

Variancewith

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

88533 $ 88533 $ 805,63. $ 79,70¢
- 5,94 - 5,94
44,22¢ 44,22¢ 36,83: 7,392
2,51( 6,51( 6,16( 35C
15,00( 11,00( 1,81: 9,18¢
947,07: 953,01t 850,43« 102,58:
120,92. 120,92. 114,09:. 6,83(
- 12,24: - 12,24:
189,80( 184,80( 150,06 34,73:
26€ 36€ 67 29¢
10,10( 15,00( 10,41¢ 4,58¢
321,08t 333,32 274,64: 58,681
302,23( 302,23( 296,56( 5,67(
- 2,08: - 2,08:
12,67¢ 12,67¢ 12,28t 394
2,43( 2,43( 2,04¢ 381
317,33¢ 319,42: 310,89 8,562¢
715,82¢ 715,82¢ 709,00: 6,82t
- 22,89: - 22,89:
33,17t 33,17t 19,20¢ 13,96¢
84z 84z 792 50
4,77¢ 4,77¢ 3,00¢ 1,76¢
89,62( 89,62( 45,08: 44,53¢
844,24: 867,13« 777,08 90,04¢
7,00( 7,00( 3,42 3,57¢
7,00( 7,00( 3,42 3,67¢
322,31 323,47¢ 317,75( 5,72¢
- 67¢ - 67¢
23,82t 22,66: 11,61° 11,04¢
- 16t 132 33
1,93« 1,934 1,88¢ 50
348,07t  $ 348,92( $ 331,38. $ 17,53:
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Justice System (continued)

272nd District Cou
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Contract Service

361st District Cou
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar

Juvenile Court Refer
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char

Associate Judge ;
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Contract Service

County Drug Court Progre
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char

Associate Judge ;
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Contract Service

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Page 7 of 1

Variancewith

Brazos County Family Court Ann

Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Contract Service
Professional Servic

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 309,69 $ 313,28 % 313,28 $ -
- 467 - 467
17,65( 14,05¢ 8,43 5,62t
1,114 1,114 264 85C
2,56( 2,56( 41C 2,15(
331,01¢ 331,48t 322,39: 9,097
315,24 310,05: 307,21t 2,83t
- 6,76: - 6,76:
26,05( 33,24: 24,78t 8,45:
62€ 62€ 497 12¢
341,91t 350,68 332,50: 18,18(
149,23t 149,23t 147,00t 2,22¢
- 1,19¢ - 1,19¢
4,67( 4,67( 4,35t 31E
153,90t 155,10: 151,36: 3,73¢
269,93 269,93 267,67: 2,26t
7,78z 7,417 6,992 42C
36€ 73€ 19t 541
4,70( 4,70( 2,064 2,63¢€
282,78! 282,78! 276,92 5,86
14,73¢ 24.,47¢ 20,07: 4,407
36,23( 26,49( 6,551 19,93¢
50,96¢ 50,96¢ 26,62 24,34¢
275,74 275,74 252,84( 22,907
7,70C 7,70C 4,98¢ 2,711
314 314 22( 94
4,86( 4,86( 75C 4,11(
288,62: 288,62: 258,79 29,82:
48,10¢ 48,10¢ 6,46¢ 41,64¢
3,55( 6,14 5,93¢ 20t
25,65( 24,75¢ 24,747 9
58,00( 96,00( 95,69' 30:
$ 135,30¢ $ 175,00¢ $ 132,84 $ 42,16:
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Variancewith

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Justice System (continued)
County Court At Law #
Personnel Servic $ 502,86 $ 502,86 $ 49789 $ 4,96¢
Discretionary Fundin - 4,471 - 4,471
Supplies and Other Char 12,73( 11,47 9,39( 2,081
Repairs and Maintenar 732 732 15¢€ 57€
Minor Acquisition: - 1,25¢ 1,22¢ 30
516,32 520,79¢ 508,67: 12,12°
County Court At Law #
Personnel Servic 495,80( 496,52 491,34¢ 5,17¢
Discretionary Fundin - 1,19¢ - 1,19¢
Supplies and Other Char 21,25( 20,52 12,48 8,04(
Contract Service 1,47¢ 1,47¢ 1,42¢ 50
518,52¢ 519,72 505,26( 14,46¢
Justice of the Peace Precin
Personnel Servic 303,62! 303,62! 292,88 10,73¢
Discretionary Fundin - 20,35¢ - 20,35¢
Supplies and Other Char 27,40( 27,39( 20,80: 6,587
Repairs and Maintenar 75 85 75 10
Contract Service 32,97° 32,97° 29,99¢ 2,97¢
364,07 384,43: 343,76:¢ 40,66¢
Justice of the Peace Precin
Personnel Servic 207,15¢ 207,15¢ 204,67( 2,48¢
Supplies and Other Char 12,25( 12,09¢ 11,38: 71€
Repairs and Maintenar 12¢ 12¢ - 12E
Minor Acquisition: - 151 151 -
Contract Service 2,00( 2,00( 962 1,037
Professional Servic 15C 15C - 15C
221,68: 221,68: 217,16! 4,51¢
Justice of the Peace Precinct 2 Pl
Personnel Servic 50,51¢ 50,77( 50,51° 25¢
Discretionary Fundin - 1,87¢ - 1,87¢
Supplies and Other Char 61C 61C 57& 35
Contract Service - 321 321 -
51,12¢ 53,57¢ 51,41 2,162
Justice of the Peace Precinct 2 Ple
Personnel Servic 71,14 71,14 65,00: 6,141
Supplies and Other Char 2,87¢ 2,87¢ 1,37¢ 1,501
Repairs and Maintenar 75 75 - 75
Contract Service 75C 75C 321 42¢
Professional Servic 75 75 - 75
$ 74917 $ 74917 $ 66,69¢ $ 8,221
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Justice System (continued)
Justice of the Peace Precin
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service

Justice of the Peace Precin
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Page 9 of 1

Variancewith

Community Supervision Supp

Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service

Judicial Court Suppor
Supplies and Other Char
Contract Service
Professional Servic

Total Justice System

Law Enforcement

Sheriff Administratiol
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service
Professional Servic

Joint Terrorism Task For
Personnel Servic

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 302,67t $ 302,67t 293,30 $ 9,36¢
- 15,81¢ - 15,81¢
17,94t 21,83( 21,46¢ 36€
- 1,40( 1,40( -
7,00( 7,00( 3,55¢ 3,44
327,62: 348,72! 319,72¢ 28,991
246,71} 248,52! 248,14 37¢
9,13( 10,06¢ 9,67¢ 39C
23z 23z 66 16€
35C 60z 60z -
1,40( 1,15( 70k 44E
257,82 260,57 259,19¢ 1,37¢
89,10( 92,86 72,86t 19,99¢
- 2,80( 2,70¢ 94
2,00( 1,83¢ - 1,83¢
10,10( 3,70( 317 3,38¢
101,20( 101,20( 75,88¢ 25,31
561,00( 561,00( 490,56 70,43¢
600,00( 1,470,00 995,05: 474,94
3,433,96 3,433,96. 3,120,43. 313,52¢
4,594,96: 5,464,96. 4,606,04 858,91!
17,597,45 18,620,80 16,938,42 1,682,38!
4,960,06. 4,960,086 4,805,97 154,08
181,81¢ 182,67: 164,90( 17,77:
252,82! 252,82! 241,05t 11,76¢
2,90(¢ 54,74¢ 54,48: 26%
15,52( 15,52( 10,60¢ 4,91t
3,05( 3,05( 2,84t 20¢
5,416,17 5,468,87 5,279,86! 189,01(
10,00( 10,00( - 10,00(
$ 10,00 $ 10,00( - % 10,00(
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Law Enforcement (continued)
Sheriff Jail Administratio

Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service
Professional Servic

Jail Medical Service
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Contract Service
Professional Servic

Constable Precincl
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:s
Contract Service

Constable Precinct
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:s
Contract Service

Constable Precincl
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service

Constable Precincl
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service

Total Law Enfor cement

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Page 10 of 1

Variancewith

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
9,329,54 % 9,274,84i $ 927484 % 1
1,391,211 1,433,61! 1,364,85 68,76:
87,85( 87,85( 72,57: 15,27¢
- 2,70( 2,70( -
16,94( 15,44( 14,32¢ 1,111
11,35( 15,94: 14,74: 1,20(
10,836,89 10,830,39 10,744,04 86,35¢
733,73! 809,20¢ 809,20t 1
47,84( 27,23 27,23t -
2,00( 3,50( 3,247 252
25,37¢ 32,207 31,60: 60€
808,95( 872,14 871,28¢ 86(
370,25¢ 370,25¢ 368,84! 1,414
22,58t 22,58t 20,26 2,324
19,00( 19,00( 11,69 7,30¢
50C 12,46: 11,79¢ 66:
25,72t 25,17t 24,04: 1,13¢
438,06 449,48( 436,64( 12,84(
588,39: 588,39: 575,29: 13,10:
21,70( 29,64« 21,42¢ 8,21t
36,60( 36,60( 27,66¢ 8,93t
2,00( 12,80( 10,80( 2,00¢
4,85( 4,85( 2,917 1,93¢
653,54 672,28t 638,09’ 34,19:
299,69: 299,69: 292,53t 7,15¢
- 49 - 49
17,47¢ 17,81¢ 17,70¢ 112
13,28: 13,28: 8,931 4,35]
3,20( 6,19( 5,40( 79C
4,71( 4,367 1,831 2,53(
338,35¢ 341,39¢ 326,41( 14,98¢
626,40 630,63¢ 630,63 2
18,56t 19,39¢ 15,64« 3,751
38,50( 29,13¢ 26,10¢ 3,02¢
- 10,80( 10,80( -
2,98( 2,78( 2,20t 57t
686,45: 692,75: 685,39! 7,357
19,188,44 $ 19,337,34 $ 18,981,74 $ 355,60(
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)

Juvenile Services
Juvenile Service

Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service
Professional Servic

TYC - Parolt
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Contract Service

Juvenile Justice Alternative Educat

Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char

Juvenile - Title IV E
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service

TDHS - Commoditie
Supplies and Other Char

Total Juvenile Services

Public Transportation
Road and Bridge Administrati

Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:
Contract Service
Professional Servic

Total Public Transportation

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Page 11 of 1

Variancewith

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 3,895,25 $ 3,930,72. $ 3,850,996 $ 79,75¢
- 15,13¢ - 15,13¢
301,45( 314,06t 283,23: 30,83:
22,56( 27,03% 21,27: 5,764
2,60( 15,50¢ 12,37t 3,13¢
8,69t 5,997 2,57¢ 3,417
42,17" 32,90( 24,317 8,58
4,272,73' 4,341,36: 4,194,741 146,62:
154,46¢ 154,46¢ 139,77¢ 14,69:
2,30( 25 - 25
2,65( 1,07(C 264 80€
64,38( 50,85: 43,91« 6,93¢
223,79 206,41t 183,95¢ 22,46(
214,90¢ 214,90¢ 185,30 29,60:
1,00( 1,00( 882 11€
215,90¢ 215,90¢ 186,18! 29,72(
57,52( 57,52( 49,95( 7,57C
46,15( 46,24: 28,48: 17,76:
76C 1,067 94¢ 11€
5,25( 5,25( - 5,25(
10,40( 10,00( 29t 9,70t
120,08( 120,08( 79,67¢ 40,40¢
3,00( 3,321 3,32( 1
3,00( 3,321 3,32( 1
4,835,52 4,887,08! 4,647,88 239,20¢
4,225,87. 4,226,21! 3,982,22 243,98¢
1,353,36: 1,357,32 91,47 1,265,84
5,365,83 5,397,87. 4,909,521 488,35:
13,50( 17,60¢ 13,38: 4,22¢
208,00( 202,33! 181,35¢ 20,97¢
90,00( 90,00( 53,60! 36,39¢
$ 11,256,56 $ 11,291,34 $ 9,231560 $ 2,059,78
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Variancewith

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Public Health
Environmental Protectic
Supplies and Other Char $ 9,17t % 17,678 % 16,50 $ 1,17¢
Repairs and Maintenar 3,00(¢ 3,00 - 3,00
Minor Acquisition: 8,00( 8,00( - 8,00(
Contract Service 269,90( 276,91( 266,11 10,79¢
290,07! 305,58! 282,61. 22,97
Indigent Health Ca
Supplies and Other Char 650,00( 650,00( 425,75. 224,24¢
Professional Servic 2,057,95! 2,057,95! 478,65¢ 1,579,301
Community Suppo 896, 70( 896,70( 306,16( 590,54(
3,604,65! 3,604,65! 1,210,57 2,394,08:
Community Public Heal
Community Suppo 65,90( 65,90( - 65,90(
65,90( 65,90( - 65,90(
Total Public Health 3,960,63. 3,976,14. 1,493,18. 2,482,96.
Human Services
Veteran Service
Personnel Servic 60,49: 60,49: 49,90t 10,58¢
Supplies and Other Char 1,50(C 1,50( 1,051 44¢
Repairs and Maintenar 362 362 15€ 20€
62,35t 62,35t 51,11: 11,24:
County Fire Protectic
Community Suppo 459,39: 459,42; 459,42; -
459,39: 459,42; 459,42; -
County Welfar
Supplies and Other Char 5,00( 5,00( 4,20( 80C
5,00( 5,00( 4,20( 80C
Election:
Personnel Servic 115,13¢ 115,13¢ 111,40: 3,73¢
Outside Labor Cos 125,00( 125,00( 57,72. 67,27¢
Supplies and Other Char 22,80( 22,80( 10,02: 12,77¢
Repairs and Maintenar 10,00( 10,00( 5,02% 4,97
Minor Acquisition: 1,00( 1,00(¢ - 1,00
Contract Service 55,10( 55,10( 53,81« 1,28¢
Professional Servic 50,00¢( 50,00¢( 32,00¢( 18,00(
$ 379,03¢ $ 379,03¢ $ 269,98( % 109,05¢
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Variancewith

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Human Services (continued)
Health Departme
Supplies and Other Char $ 46,52 $ 49,791  $ 49,790 %
Professional Servic 8,25( 8,90: 8,901 1
54,77¢ 58,69 58,69 1
Emergency Manageme
Personnel Servic 168,42 168,42 149,85: 18,57«
Discretionary Fundin - 18,55: - 18,55:
Supplies and Other Char 18,27¢ 16,64* 7,607 9,03¢
Repairs and Maintenar 3,05(C 3,421 2,814 607
Minor Acquisition: - 1,25¢ 1,25¢ 5
Contract Service 87,59: 87,59: 82,78: 4,81(
Professional Servic 25,00( 25,00( - 25,00(
302,34! 320,89 244,31 76,58¢
Brazos Centk
Personnel Servic 380,42: 380,42: 356,53! 23,88¢
Supplies and Other Char 132,85( 160,66: 153,60 7,057
Repairs and Maintenar 18,05( 18,05( 13,057 4,99:
Minor Acquisition: 4,75( 9,58¢ 6,611 2,97:
Contract Service 2,95( 2,95( 2,40( 55C
539,02 571,66¢ 532,20° 39,46.
Exposition Cente
Personnel Servic 1,198,18: 1,198,18. 1,087,79. 110,38¢
Supplies and Other Char 399,10( 408,35( 388,97: 19,37¢
Repairs and Maintenar 90,40( 90,40( 60,83« 29,56¢
Minor Acquisition: 16,00( 6,75( 2,64z 4,10¢
Contract Service 46,00( 46,00( 43,94¢ 2,052
1,749,68: 1,749,68: 1,584,18 165,49
Agricultural Extensio
Personnel Servic 328,47t 328,47t 284,95¢ 43,51°
Discretionary Fundin - 75 - 75
Supplies and Other Char 46,80( 45,91( 43,10( 2,81(
Repairs and Maintenar 4,37 5,46: 4,681 781
Contract Service 36,32( 36,32( 28,71¢ 7,60¢
415,96¢ 416,24 361,45! 54,78¢
Boonville Cemeter
Repairs and Maintenar 30C 77C 47C 30C
30C 77C 47C 30C
Child Protective Servic
Supplies and Other Char 50,00( 50,00( 33,22« 16,77¢
50,00( 50,00( 33,22 16,77¢
Total Human Services $ 4,017,88 $ 4,073,77. $ 3,599,260 $ 474,50¢
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Variancewith

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Contingency $ 2,153,511 % 133,97¢ % - $ 133,97¢
Capital Outlay 3,890,001 3,911,27 1,961,94: 1,949,322
Debt Services
Capital Lease - Princig 208,75t 208,75t 208,36! 391
Capital Lease - Intere 13,94 13,94« 11,28( 2,66/
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 85,247,99 84,954,58 72,862,14 12,092,44
Excess (Deficiency) of Revent
Over (Under) Expenditur (1,695,044 (1,235,492 14,151,26 15,386,75
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Ot (14,745,222 (15,204,774 (15,088,70¢ 116,06¢
Capital Lease - - 475,10( 475,10(
Sale of Capital Asse - - 148,56( 148,56(
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (14,745,222 (15,204,774 (14,465,04¢ 739,72t
Net Change in Fund Balan: (16,440,26€ (16,440,26€ (313,788 16,126,47
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 43,346,26 43,346,26 43,346,26 -
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 26,906,003 $ 26,906,003 $ 43,032,481 $ 16,126,478
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Required Supplementary Information
Other Postemployment Benefits
Schedule of Funding Progress
September 30, 2015

UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Percentage of
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets (a) Liability (AAL) (b) (UAAL) (b-a) Ratio (a/b) Payroll (c) Payroll ((b-a)/c)
1/1/2012 - $ 59,255,841 $ 59,255,841 0.00% $ 25,076,745 236.3%
1/1/2014 - 63,510,613 63,510,613 0.00% 32,073,636 198.0%
1/1/2014 - 63,510,613 63,510,613 0.00% 32,073,636 198.0%

91



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the County's Net Pensidrilitjeand Related Ratios

September 30, 2015

Total pension liability
Service cos
Interest on total pension liabil
Effect of economic/demographic gains or lo
Benefit payments/refunds of contributi
Net change in total pension liabilit

Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employ:
Contributions - employt
Net investment incon
Benefit payments/refunds of contributi
Administrative expens
Othel
Net change in plan fiduciary net positiol

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b

County's net pension liability - ending (a) - (b

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of thiotal

pension liability

Covered-employee payro

County's net pension liability as a percentage ofovered-

employee payrol

Year Ended
December 31
201<

4,799,04:

12,180,04
(509,172

(5,502,073

10,967,84

149,601,62

160,569,46

4,525,39
2,262,091
9,163,23:

(5,502,073

(108,831
(232,905

10,106,91

135,102,34

145,209,25

15,360,21

90.43%

32,321,37

47.52%

NOTE: The schedule represents only the year foctwtne new GASB statements have been impleme
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of County Contributions
September 30, 2015

Yeal Actuarially Actual Contributior Pensionabl Actual Contributiol
Endinc Determiner Employe Deficiency Coverel as a % of Covere
December 3 Contributior Contributior (Excess Payrol Payrol

200t Not Available  Not Available Not Available Not Available Not Available

200¢€ $ 2430,14 $ 243014 $ - $ 22,172,86 11.0%

2007 2,760,01 2,866,91 (106,902 24,295,91 11.8%

200¢ 3,015,58 3,140,68 (125,094 26,615,94 11.8%

200¢ 3,292,38 3,496,85! (204,478 29,634,38 11.8%

201(C 3,5625,57. 3,5625,57. - 29,552,15 11.9%

2011 3,479,07 3,535,81 (56,737 29,634,38 11.9%

201z 3,747,33 4,681,67! (934,340 30,293,73 15.5%

201: 4,053,79: 4,069,38. (15,589 31,183,01 13.0%

201¢ 4,389,24: 4,525,391 (136,147 32,321,37 14.0%
Notes to Schedul
Valuation timing: Actuarially determined contribution rates are ckdted as of December 31, two years prior to thteadrihe fiscal ye:

in which contributions are report

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribign rates:
Actuarial cost methoc Entry Age Norme
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, clos

Asset valuation methot

Smoothing perio 5 year:
Recognition methc Non-asymptoti
Corridol None
Inflation 3.0%
Salary increase 3.5%
Investment rate of return 8.1%
Retirement age Members eligible for service retirement are assutoedtire at rates ranging from 4.5% to 30% basedge

and gender in the 2014 actuarial valuat

Mortality Various RP-2000 Mortality Tables are adopted t@sine the assumed life expectancies in the 20tidaaa
valuation
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
NOTESTO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

BUDGET

Annual budgets are legally adopted for generakispeevenue, debt service, capital project,
and internal service funds. Budget amounts reptetiee original budget for 2015 as
subsequently amended by the Commissioners’ Coldtidgets are adopted on a basis
consistent with GAAP (modified accrual basis). T@eunty employs an encumbrance
accounting system as a method of accomplishing dtadg control. At year-end, open
encumbrances are closed. The departments are eddoire-appropriate those funds within
the following year’s budget.

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETSUNDER MODIFIED APPROACH

As permitted by Governmental Accounting StandardsrB Statement Number 3Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discusammh Analysis — for State and Local
GovernmentsBrazos County has adopted the modified approacheporting its road and
bridge system. Under the modified approach, dégtiea is not reported and certain
preservation and maintenance costs are expensed.

The modified approach requires that Brazos Courdyntain an asset management system
that includes an up-to-date inventory of eligibtdérastructure assets, perform condition
assessments of the eligible infrastructure assets summarize the results using a
measurement scale in order to document that thgblei infrastructure assets are being
preserved approximately at or above the conditexell established and disclosed by the
government, and estimate each year the annual dmeeded to maintain and preserve the
eligible infrastructure assets at the conditioneleestablished and disclosed by the
government.

For the year ended September 30, 2015, annual enaimte and preservation costs of
$9,231,560 for both roads and bridges were lesa tha estimated amount needed of
$11,291,350. This variance is mainly due to aiogeincy budget (roll-over of prior years’
positive variance), the delays in maintenance vemidk employee turnover.

Actual Dollars
Spent to Maintain

Estimated Dollars to
Maintain Roads and

For the Fiscal
Year Ended:

Bridges at Required
Condition Level

Roads and Bridges at
Required Condition Leve

September 30, 2011 $9,269,744 $6,987,382
September 30, 2012 $9,469,180 $7,313,835
September 30, 2013 $9,647,677 $7,520,740
September 30, 2014 $9,923,116 $8,045,933
September 30, 2015 $11,291,350 $9,231,560
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Roads

The Brazos County Road and Bridge department pagfaondition assessments of County
roads continually throughout the year and evaluatesprioritizes the results annually. The
condition assessment team consists of the CountyinBer (Registered Professional
Engineer), a planning and development supervisagereral superintendent, an assistant
general superintendent and three road supervigoesfor each precinct in the County. This
team utilizes various criteria for evaluating thendition of the roads including the traffic
volume of the road, the number of man hours useddmtain the road in the last year, the
potential traffic on the road based on observectibgwnent of properties accessing the road,
the number of traffic accidents and the type oidgaus, and a visual inspection of the road
for settlement spots, rough pavement, areas regupatching, and the frequency of repair
activities on the road. Each road is assessedscala of zero to 100 with 100 representing a
road in perfect condition. The County has adopt@sinimum condition level of 80% for all
County roads. The results of the condition assessare as follows:

Percentage of Miles Percentage of Miles Percentadtile$
Fiscal at 80% or greater at 70% or greater at 60%seater
Precinct Year condition level condition level conditiewvel
1 2013 93% 5% 2%
2 2013 89% 5% 6%
4 2013 89% 9% 2%
1 2014 89% 3% 8%
2 2014 89% 6% 5%
4 2014 92% 3% 5%
1 2015 86% 10% 4%
2 2015 94% 5% 1%
4 2015 93% 6% 1%

All roads with 60% to 80% of condition level areheduled for upgrade or reconstruction
within the next 2 year period.

Bridges

The condition of the County's bridges is determingging the State of Texas Bridge
Inventory Inspection System (BRINSAP). The bridges inspected by the State every two
years. A numerical condition range 0.0 (beyondmo 9.0 (excellent condition) is used to
assess each of seven elements of the structureeseTinclude deck, superstructure,
substructure, channel, culvert, approaches andeftaseous items. The BRINSAP summary
shows 69 bridges in the County were rated. Br&zmsnty policy requires that bridges be
maintained at a minimum of good condition. Therthzelow shows that the County’s

bridges are well maintained and in good or verydgoondition.
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Year of

Inspection Condition Rating Number %
2011 Very Good 6.0-9.0 61 100%
2011 Good 40-59 0 0%
2011 Fair 3.0-3.9 0 0%
2011 Poor 0.0-29 0 0%

Total 61 100%
2013 Very Good 6.0-9.0 67 100%
2013 Good 40-59 0 0%
2013 Fair 3.0-3.9 0 0%
2013 Poor 0.0-29 0 0%

Total 67 100%
2015 Very Good 6.0-9.0 69 100%
2015 Good 40-59 0 0%
2015 Fair 3.0-3.9 0 0%
2015 Poor 0.0-29 0 0%

Total 69 100%
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS







BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS- SUMMARY
September 30, 2015

Total Nonmajor

Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Project Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivaents $ 6,694,735 $ 49,216 6,743,951
Prepaid Expenditures 14,508 - 14,508
Receivables
Taxes 293,473 - 293,473
Interest 1,259 - 1,259
Accounts 133,864 - 133,864
Due from Other Funds 30 - 30
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,137,869 $ 49,216 7,187,085
LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 353,227 $ 3,125 356,352
Accrued Salaries and Wages 115,909 - 115,909
Unclaimed Funds 193,531 - 193,531
Unearned Revenue 1,221,615 - 1,221,615
Total Liabilities 1,884,282 3,125 1,887,407
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 14,508 - 14,508
Restricted 5,239,079 46,091 5,285,170
Total Fund Balances 5,253,587 46,091 5,299,678
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES $ 7,137,869 $ 49,216 7,187,085
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Charges for Services
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Human Services
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfersn
Transfers Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES
Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30

Total Nonmajor

Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Project Funds

2,644,417  $ - $ 2,644,417
961,099 - 961,099
3,006,718 - 3,006,718
14,234 5,217 19,451
24 - 24
6,626,492 5,217 6,631,709
142,482 115,527 258,009
565,518 151,258 716,776
475,810 247 476,057
1,329,421 - 1,329,421
590,402 - 590,402
1,103,822 - 1,103,822
1,450,390 4,121,722 5,572,112
5,657,845 4,388,754 10,046,599
968,647 (4,383,537) (3,414,890)
487,184 - 487,184
(545,174) (805) (545,979)
(57,990) (805) (58,795)
910,657 (4,384,342) (3,473,685)
4,342,930 4,430,433 8,773,363
5253587 $ 46,091 $ 5,299,678
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for theggeeds of specific revenue sources that
are restricted by law or administrative action to ke expended for specified purposes:

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund -A fund established to account for hotel occupalsgs$ received
under Chapter 352, Texas Tax Code.

State Lateral Road Fund- A fund established to account for the funds ires from the State
for maintenance of County roads that join Statehwmys under Section 256.002, Texas
Transportation Code.

Unclaimed Property Fund —A fund established to account for property withadue of $100 or
less that is presumed to be abandoned under S&@i6é01, Texas Property Code. Expenditures
of this fund are limited to the costs associatethvgublishing and posting of notices to the
owners.

Law Library Fund - A fund established to account for fees (asseasedcollected by various
County Courts) that are used to maintain the Coluaty Library that is available to the public
under Section 323.023, Texas Local Government Code.

Alternative Dispute Resolution Fund- A fund created to account for the $10.00 feeesssd
with each County and District Court civil case dijeused to support the Alternative Dispute
Resolution Center. The purpose of the Center ie$olve disputes that do not require formal
court action under Chapter 152, Texas Civil Practiod Remedies Code.

Law Enforcement Education Fund - A fund created to account for funding receivedthe
County from the State. The funds received are tseslipplement the continuing education and
training needs of those employees licensed undap®@h415 of the Government Code, primarily
law enforcement personnel.

County Records Management and Preservation Fund A fund established to account for fees
assessed and collected by the County and Distueirt€ for the express purpose of records
management and preservation or automation purposbe County under Section 203.003, Texas
Local Government Code.

County Clerk Records Management and Preservation Fud - A fund established to account
for fees assessed for recording of documents irCwnty Clerk’s office under Article 102.005
(f), Texas Code of Criminal Procedure and Secti®B8.0216, Texas Local Government Code.
Filings for real estate transactions, criminal,lja®, assumed names and civil court actions are
included. Monies are used for records managenmhtpaeservation services performed by the
County Clerk’s office.

County Clerk Archival Fund - A fund established to account for fees assedeedthe
preservation and restoration services performedth®y County Clerk in connection with
maintaining a county clerk’'s records archive un8ection 118.025, Texas Local Government
Code.

Courthouse Security Fund -A fund created to account for the collection ofsfebarged as part
of court costs to provide security services forldings that house a District or County Court
under Article 102.017, Texas code of Criminal Pchoe.



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (continued)

Justice Court Security Fund -A fund created to account for the collection ofsfedarged as part
of court costs to provide security services forldings that house the justice courts which are
located outside of the County Courthouse undeickrt102.017, Code of Criminal Procedure.

District Clerk Records Management and PreservatiorFund - A fund established to account
for fees assessed for recording of documents irDibict Clerk’s office under Article 102.005
(f), Texas Code of Criminal Procedure and Sectib/357, Texas Government Code. Monies are
used for records management and preservation ssrp@rformed by the District Clerk’s office.

District Clerk Archival Fund - A fund established to account for fees assefsedupporting
preservation and restoration in connection withistridt court records archive under Section
51.305, 51.317, Texas Government Code.

Justice of the Peace Technology Fund A fund created to account for the collection ofsfee
charged as part of court costs to fund the teclyicdd needs of the Justices’ of the Peace under
Article 102.0173, Texas Code of Criminal Procedure.

County & District Court Technology Fund — A fund created to account for the collection of
fees charged as part of court costs to fund tHentdogical needs of the county and district courts
under Article 102.0169, Texas Code of Criminal Rahre.

Special Forfeitures Fund - A fund established to account for forfeited propemeceipts as
prescribed by Article 59 of the Code of Criminab8edure. These funds can only be used to
support law enforcement activities.

District Attorney Hot Check Collection Fund — A fund established to account for fees collected
by the District Attorney for the administration,ogessing and prosecution of returned checks
under Section 118.142, Texas Local Government Code.

Bail Bond Board Fees Fund- A fund established to account for funds receifegdicensing and
expenditures related to monitoring the bond adtisiof the local bail bondsmen under Section
1704.160, Texas Occupations Code.

Voter Registration Fund - A fund established to account for funds receifesn the State
(before 1991), which represents a fee earned fdr eater registered. Funds received can only be
used for voter registration activity, and are goeer by the Tax Assessor-Collector, the
designated Voter Registrar for the County.

Vehicle Inventory Tax Interest Fund - A fund established to account for the intereshed on
the Vehiclelnventory Tax collected monthly by the Tax AssesSolector under Section 23.122
(c), Texas Tax Code. The Tax Assessor-Collectaalliswed to collect the tax from vehicle
dealers before the October 1 assessment date.infEnest earned on the funds held by the Tax
Assessor-Collector can only be used to support \tehicle Inventory Tax collections and
payments.

Sheriff Department Crime Fund — A fund established to account for funds receivernfithe
City of Bryan, the City of College Station, and Boa County restrictively in support of the law
enforcement grant activities administered by therBh



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (continued)

District Attorney Crime Fund — A fund established to account for funds receivednfithe City
of Bryan, the City of College Station, and Brazosu@ty in accordance with an inter-local
agreement restrictively for the litigation of seiasiincurred in law enforcement activities.

Primary Election Service Fund — A fund established to account for the revenumsd a
expenditures related to the election services tlen@ provides for both Democratic and
Republican Elections (including Primary and Run-Bfections) under Section 31.100, Texas
Election Code.

Grant Fund — A fund established to account for the revenues expenditures related to grant
activities.
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS- SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
September 30, 2015

Hotel State
Occupancy Lateral Unclaimed
Tax Road Property
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2552049 $ 26958 $ 246,510
Prepaid Expenditures 320 - -
Receivables
Taxes 293,473 - -
Interest 524 5 51
Accounts 1,796 - -
Due from Other Funds - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2848162 $ 26,963 $ 246,561
LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 255161 @ $ - 3 -
Accrued Salaries and Wages 6,599 - -
Unclaimed Funds - - 190,543
Unearned Revenue - - -
Total Liabilities 261,760 - 190,543
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 320 - -
Restricted 2,586,082 26,963 56,018
Total Fund Balances 2,586,402 26,963 56,018

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES $ 2,848,162 $ 26,963 $ 246,561
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County County Clerk
Records Records
Alternative Law Management Management
Law Dispute Enfor cement and and County Clerk
Library Resolution Education Preservation Preservation Archival

$ 144712  $ 3655 % 27420 $ 162,372 % 471241 % 639,396
30 - - 33 97 131
- - - - 2 -
$ 144742 $ 3655 $ 27420 $ 162,405  $ 471,340 $ 639,527
$ 9723  $ 365 3 - 8 - 8 - 3 -
- - - 5,678 5,635 -
9,723 3,655 - 5,678 5,635 -
135,019 - 27,420 156,727 465,705 639,527
135,019 - 27,420 156,727 465,705 639,527
$ 144742  $ 3655 $ 27420 $ 162,405  $ 471,340 % 639,527

(continued)
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Page 3 of 6

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS- SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)
September 30, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Prepaid Expenditures
Receivables
Taxes
Interest
Accounts
Due from Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Wages
Unclaimed Funds
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances

Nonspendable
Restricted

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES

District Clerk
Records
M anagement
Courthouse Justice Court and

Security Security Preservation
$ 39,134 $ 63,567 $ 162,659
8 13 34
$ 39,142 $ 63,580 $ 162,693
$ - 3% 19,427 $ -
19,366 - -
19,366 19,427 -
19,776 44,153 162,693
19,776 44,153 162,693
$ 39,142 $ 63,580 $ 162,693
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102

County District
Justice of & District Attorney Bail Bond
District Clerk the Peace Court Special Hot Check Board
Archival Technology Technology Forfeitures Collection Fees
48174 % 118829 % 43,316 35,164 2,484 86,715
10 24 9 7 1 18
- 23 - - - -
48184 $ 118876 % 43,325 35,171 2,485 86,733
- $ 9 % - 694 - -
- 524 - - - -
- 563 - 694 - -
48,184 118,313 43,325 34,477 2,485 86,733
48,184 118,313 43,325 34,477 2,485 86,733
48184 % 118876 % 43,325 35,171 2,485 86,733
(continued)



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Page 5 of 6

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS- SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivaents
Prepaid Expenditures

Receivables
Taxes
Interest
Accounts

Due from Other Funds
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Salaries and Wages
Unclaimed Funds

Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES

September 30, 2015

Vehicle
Inventory Sheriff
Voter Tax Department

Registration Interest Crime
$ 22866 $ 199,886 % 233,529
5 187 45
2,660 - -
- - 30
$ 25531 $ 200073 $ 233,604
$ 2660 % 950 $ -
- - 2,988
2,660 950 2,988
22,871 199,123 230,616
22,871 199,123 230,616
$ 25531 $ 200,073 % 233,604
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District
Attorney Primary
Crime Election Service Grants Totals
103,770 27,708 1,232,621 6,694,735
- - 14,188 14,508
- - - 293,473
21 6 - 1,259
- - 129,383 133,864
- - - 30
103,791 27,714 1,376,192 7,137,869
- - 60,918 353,227
- - 78,107 115,909
- - - 193,531
- - 1,221,615 1,221,615
- - 1,360,640 1,884,282
- - 14,188 14,508
103,791 27,714 1,364 5,239,079
103,791 27,714 15,552 5,253,587
103,791 27,714 1,376,192 7,137,869
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS- SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Chargesfor Services
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
JuvenileServices
Public Transportation
Human Services
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TransfersIn
Transfers Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Net Change in Fund Balances
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30

Page 1 of 6

Hotel State
Occupancy Lateral Unclaimed

Tax Road Property
$ 2612474 $ - $ -
- 30,140 -
5,161 282 645
2,617,635 30,422 645
- 150,000 -
1,051,153 - -
38,759 - -
1,089,912 150,000 -
1,527,723 (119,578) 645
(545,174) - -
(545,174) - .
982,549 (119,578) 645
1,603,853 146,541 55,373
$ 2586402 $ 26,963 $ 56,018
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County County Clerk
Records Records
Alternative Law Management M anagement
Law Dispute Enforcement and and County Clerk
Library Resolution Education Preservation Preservation Archival

- - - 8 - 8 - 3% -
53,402 39,130 - 98,671 269,437 267,027
- - 19,323 - - -

419 - - 428 1,356 1,276

- - - - 1 -
53,821 39,130 19,323 99,099 270,794 268,303
- - - 133,387 - -
112,989 46,630 - - 344,303 9,515
- - 14,775 - - -
112,989 46,630 14,775 133,387 344,303 9,515
(59,168) (7,500) 4,548 (34,288) (73,509) 258,788
- 7,500 - - - -

- 7,500 - - - -
(59,168) - 4,548 (34,288) (73,509) 258,788
194,187 - 22,872 191,015 539,214 380,739
135,019 - 27420 $ 156,727 % 465,705 % 639,527
(continued)
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS-SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

District Clerk
Records
M anagement
Courthouse Justice Court and
Security Security Preservation
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ -
Charges for Services 92,095 10,152 17,821
Intergovernmental - - -
Interest 383 147 384
Other Revenue - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 92,478 10,299 18,205
EXPENDITURES
General Government - - -
Justice System - - -
Law Enforcement 368,223 - -
JuvenileServices - - -
Public Transportation - - -
Human Services - - -
Capital Outlay - 19,427 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 368,223 19,427 -
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (275,745) (9,128) 18,205
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers|n 238,127 - -
Transfers Out - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 238,127 - -
Net Change in Fund Balances (37,618) (9,128) 18,205
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 57,394 53,281 144,488
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 19,776 $ 44,153 $ 162,693
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County District
Justice of & District Attorney Bail Bond
District Clerk the Peace Court Special Hot Check Board
Archival Technology Technology Forfeitures Collection Fees
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
14,817 40,744 9,521 10,016 551 1,500
102 304 97 80 6 215
- 23 - - - -
14,919 41,071 9,618 10,096 557 1,715
- 40,695 - - - 826
- - - 2,993 - -
- 40,695 - 2,993 - 826
14,919 376 9,618 7,103 557 889
14,919 376 9,618 7,103 557 889
33,265 117,937 33,707 27,374 1,928 85,844
48184  $ 118,313  $ 43325  $ 34477 % 2485  $ 86,733
(continued)
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS- SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Vehicle
Inventory Sheriff
Voter Tax Department
Registration Interest Crime

REVENUES

Taxes $ - $ 31,943 $ -

Charges for Services - - -

Intergovernmental 6,080 - -

Interest 56 1,899 635

Other Revenue - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 6,136 33,842 635
EXPENDITURES

General Government 6,087 3,008 -

Justice System - - -

Law Enforcement - - 37,170

JuvenileServices - - -

Public Transportation - - -

Human Services - - -

Capital Outlay - 1,041 39,112
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,087 4,049 76,282
Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 49 29,793 (75,647)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TransfersIn - - -

Transfers Out - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances 49 29,793 (75,647)
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 22,822 169,330 306,263
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 22871 $ 199123 $ 230,616
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District
Attorney Primary
Crime Election Service Grants Totals
- $ - % - $ 2,644,417
22,370 7,341 6,504 961,099
- - 2,951,175 3,006,718
235 124 - 14,234
- - - 24
22,605 7,465 2,957,679 6,626,492
- - - 142,482
10,560 - - 565,518
- - 52,649 475,810
- - 1,329,421 1,329,421
- - 440,402 590,402
- 29,633 23,036 1,103,822
- - 1,352,051 1,450,390
10,560 29,633 3,197,559 5,657,845
12,045 (22,168) (239,880) 968,647
- - 241,557 487,184
- - - (545,174)
- - 241,557 (57,990)
12,045 (22,168) 1,677 910,657
91,746 49,882 13,875 4,342,930
103,791 $ 27,714  $ 15552 $ 5,253,587
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Taxes $ 2,200,000 $ 2,312,412 $ 2,612,474

Interest 2,200 2,200 5,161
TOTAL REVENUES 2,202,200 2,314,612 2,617,635
EXPENDITURES

Human Services

Personnel Services 157,497 157,497 135,777

Supplies and Other Charges 74,903 47,032 31,684

Repairs and Maintenance 431,000 73,150 57,478

Minor Acquisitions 1,500 30,441 29,902

Contract Services 7,000 7,000 3,600

Professional Services 5,300 5,300 5,300

Community Support 675,000 787,412 787,412

Capital Outlay 41,950 398,730 38,759
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,394,150 1,506,562 1,089,912
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 808,050 808,050 1,527,723
OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers Out (850,000) (850,000) (545,174)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (850,000) (850,000) (545,174)
Net Change in Fund Balance (41,950) (41,950) 982,549
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 1,603,853 1,603,853 1,603,853
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 1561903 $ 1,561,903 $ 2,586,402
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURESAND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
STATE LATERAL ROAD
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 30,000 $ 30,140
Interest 350 282
TOTAL REVENUES 30,350 30,422
EXPENDITURES
Public Transportation
Repairs and Maintenance 176,850 150,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 176,850 150,000
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (146,500) (119,578)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 146,541 146,541
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 41 $ 26,963

112



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
UNCLAIMED PROPERTY
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Interest $ 800 $ 645
TOTAL REVENUES 800 645
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Supplies and Other Charges 45,000 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 45,000 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (44,200) 645
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 55,373 55,373
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 11,173 $ 56,018
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
LAW LIBRARY
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 49,000 $ 49,000 $ 53,402
Interest 500 500 419
TOTAL REVENUES 49,500 49,500 53,821
EXPENDITURES
Justice System
Supplies and Other Charges 100,000 121,840 111,210
Repairs and Maintenance 2,000 2,000 336
Minor Acquisitions 63,000 60,160 1,443
Contract Services 20,000 1,000 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 185,000 185,000 112,989
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (135,500) (135,500) (59,168)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 194,187 194,187 194,187
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 58,687 $ 58,687 $ 135,019
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Chargesfor Services $ 45,500 $ 39,130 $ 39,130
TOTAL REVENUES 45,500 39,130 39,130
EXPENDITURES

Justice System

Community Support 53,000 46,630 46,630
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 53,000 46,630 46,630
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (7,500) (7,500) (7,500)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfersin 7,500 7,500 7,500
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 7,500 7,500 7,500
Net Change in Fund Balance - - -
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 - - -
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ - $ - $ -
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
LAW ENFORCEMENT EDUCATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Intergovernmental $ 19,000 $ 19,323 $ 19,323
TOTAL REVENUES 19,000 19,323 19,323
EXPENDITURES

L aw Enforcement

Supplies and Other Charges 37,500 42,195 14,775
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 37,500 42,195 14,775
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (18,500) (22,872) 4,548
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 22,872 22,872 22,872
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 4,372 $ - $ 27,420
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
COUNTY RECORDSMANAGEMENT AND PRESERVATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Charges for Services $ 92,000 $ 92,000 $ 98,671

Interest 500 500 428
TOTAL REVENUES 92,500 92,500 99,099
EXPENDITURES

General Government

Personnel Services 102,922 111,537 109,014

Supplies and Other Charges 2,678 1,449 194

Minor Acquisitions 151,000 143,614 22,114

Contract Services 4,900 4,900 2,065

Capital Outlay 20,000 20,000 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 281,500 281,500 133,387
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (189,000) (189,000) (34,288)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 191,015 191,015 191,015
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 2,015 $ 2,015 $ 156,727
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
COUNTY CLERK RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND PRESERVATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Charges for Services $ 210,000 $ 210,000 $ 269,437

Interest 1,100 1,100 1,356

Other Revenue - - 1
TOTAL REVENUES 211,100 211,100 270,794
EXPENDITURES

Justice System

Personnel Services 118,080 118,620 118,039

Supplies and Other Charges 206,000 41,000 2,700

Minor Acquisitions 3,500 2,960 -

Contract Services 78,000 243,000 223,564
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 405,580 405,580 344,303
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (194,480) (194,480) (73,509)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 539,214 539,214 539,214
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 344,734 $ 344,734 $ 465,705

118



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
COUNTY CLERK ARCHIVAL

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Justice System

Supplies and Other Charges
Contract Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
$ 210,000 $ 267,027
700 1,276
210,700 268,303
40,000 -
170,700 9,515
210,700 9,515
- 258,788
380,739 380,739
$ 380,739 $ 639,527
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
COURTHOUSE SECURITY

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Chargesfor Services
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
L aw Enforcement
Personnel Services
Supplies and Other Charges
Repairs and Maintenance

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
TransfersIn

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

120

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
$ 82500 $ 92,095
500 383
83,000 92,478
360,334 355,117
4,793 3,306
11,000 9,800
376,127 368,223
(293,127) (275,745)
238,127 238,127
238,127 238,127
(55,000) (37,618)
57,394 57,394
$ 2,394 $ 19,776




BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
JUSTICE COURT SECURITY
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 9,125 $ 10,152
Interest 100 147
TOTAL REVENUES 9,225 10,299
EXPENDITURES
Justice System
Capital Outlay 62,000 19,427
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 62,000 19,427
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (52,775) (9,128)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 53,281 53,281
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 506 $ 44,153
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DISTRICT CLERK RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND PRESERVATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 16,500 $ 17,821
Interest 250 384
TOTAL REVENUES 16,750 18,205
EXPENDITURES
Justice System
Supplies and Other Charges 43,000 -
Minor Acquisitions 10,000 -
Contract Services 23,000 -
Professional Services 29,300 -
Capital Outlay 12,000 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 117,300 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (100,550) 18,205
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 144,488 144,488
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 43,938 $ 162,693
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DISTRICT CLERK ARCHIVAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES

Justice System
Professiona Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

123

Original
and Final
Budget Actual

$ 10,500 $ 14,817

50 102

10,550 14,919

39,550 -

39,550 -

(29,000) 14,919

33,265 33,265

$ 4,265 $ 48,184




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE TECHNOLOGY

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Interest
Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Justice System

Personnel Services
Supplies and Other Charges
Repairs and Maintenance
Minor Acquisitions
Contract Services
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual
$ 37800 $ 37,800 $ 40,744
250 250 304
- - 23
38,050 38,050 41,071
4,359 4,359 3,814
37,725 38,449 18,062
600 600 382
58,260 57,536 18,437
2,400 2,400 -
58,206 58,206 -
161,550 161,550 40,695
(123,500) (123,500) 376
117,937 117,937 117,937
$ (5563) $ (5563) $ 118,313
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAPBASIS) AND ACTUAL
COUNTY & DISTRICT COURT TECHNOLOGY
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 8,400 $ 9521
Interest 50 97
TOTAL REVENUES 8,450 9,618
EXPENDITURES
Justice System
Minor Acquisitions 38,250 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 38,250 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (29,800) 9,618
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 33,707 33,707
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 3,907 $ 43,325
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL FORFEITURES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
L aw Enfor cement
Supplies and Other Charges
Repairs and Maintenance
Minor Acquisitions
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

$ - $ 4,761 $ 10,016
- - 80
- 4,761 10,096
10,564 13,014 2,761
1,560 1,560 -
7,931 10,242 232
6,000 6,000 -
26,055 30,816 2,993
(26,055) (26,055) 7,103
27,374 27,374 27,374
$ 1,319 $ 1,319 $ 34477
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY HOT CHECK COLLECTION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 200 $ 551
Interest - 6
TOTAL REVENUES 200 957
EXPENDITURES
Justice System
Supplies and Other Charges 1,900 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,900 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (1,700) 557
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 1,928 1,928
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 228 $ 2,485
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
BAIL BOND BOARD FEES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 3500 % 1,500
I nterest 200 215
TOTAL REVENUES 3,700 1,715
EXPENDITURES
Justice System
Personnel Services 4,900 826
Supplies and Other Charges 68,000 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 72,900 826
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (69,200) 889
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 85,844 85,844
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 16,644 $ 86,733
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
VOTER REGISTRATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
| ntergovernmental $ - $ 6,080
Interest 50 56
TOTAL REVENUES 50 6,136
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Supplies and Other Charges 20,350 6,087
Minor Acquisitions 800 -
Professional Services 900 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 22,050 6,087
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (22,000) 49
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 22,822 22,822
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 822 $ 22871
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

VEHICLE INVENTORY TAX INTEREST
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Taxes $ 27,000 $ 27,000 $ 31,943

Interest 1,000 1,000 1,899
TOTAL REVENUES 28,000 28,000 33,842
EXPENDITURES

General Government

Personnel Services 13,519 13,519 -

Supplies and Other Charges 156,981 155,881 3,008

Repairs and Maintenance 500 500 -

Minor Acquisitions 16,000 16,000 -

Professional Services 10,000 10,000 -

Capital Outlay - 1,100 1,041
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 197,000 197,000 4,049
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures (169,000) (169,000) 29,793
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 169,330 169,330 169,330
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 330 $ 330 $ 199,123
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SHERIFF DEPARTMENT CRIME
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Interest $ 700 $ 700 $ 635
TOTAL REVENUES 700 700 635
EXPENDITURES

L aw Enforcement

Supplies and Other Charges 238,900 193,423 18,720

Repairs and Maintenance 4,000 4,000 8

Minor Acquisitions 85,800 84,635 18,442

Contract Services - 7,500 -

Capital Outlay - 39,142 39,112
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 328,700 328,700 76,282
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (328,000) (328,000) (75,647)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 306,263 306,263 306,263
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ (21,737) $ (2L,737) $ 230,616
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY CRIME
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ - $ 22,370
Interest 100 235
TOTAL REVENUES 100 22,605
EXPENDITURES
Justice System
Personnel Services 17,399 5,998
Supplies and Other Charges 69,641 4,562
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 87,040 10,560
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (86,940) 12,045
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 91,746 91,746
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 4,806 $ 103,791
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURESAND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
PRIMARY ELECTION SERVICE
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Charges for Services $ - $ - $ 7,341

Interest 50 50 124
TOTAL REVENUES 50 50 7,465
EXPENDITURES

Human Services

Supplies and Other Charges 47,000 39,650 22,350

Repairs and Maintenance 1,000 1,000 -

Minor Acquisitions 1,000 8,350 7,283
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 49,000 49,000 29,633
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (48,950) (48,950) (22,168)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 49,882 49,882 49,882
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 932 $ 932 $ 27,714
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GRANTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - Federal
Department of Justice $ 19,198 $ 40,020 $ 26,041
Department of Transportation 402,400 402,400 302,185
Department of Housing and Urban Development 750,000 750,000 587,307
Department of Public Safety 27,395 20,000 18,208
Total Intergovernmental - Federal 1,198,993 1,212,420 933,741
Intergovernmental - State
Texas Juvenile Justice Department 1,123,452 1,124,922 1,063,107
Texas Office of the Attorney General 27,715 27,715 27,715
Total Intergovernmental - State 1,151,167 1,152,637 1,090,822
Intergovernmental - Other
MPO Contribution 10,000 10,000 8,497
CSISD Contribution - 10,000 10,000
EDF Contribution 1,500,000 2,141,015 894,465
Nationa Rifle Association - 19,890 13,650
Program Income 8,000 8,000 6,504
Total Intergovernmental - Other 1,518,000 2,188,905 933,116
TOTAL REVENUES 3,868,160 4,553,962 2,957,679
EXPENDITURES
Law Enforcement
Minor Acquisitions 19,198 38,053 23,899
Repairs and Maintenance - 1,035 1,035
Contract Services 27,715 27,715 27,715
Juvenile Services
Personnel Services 1,401,367 1,401,379 1,320,694
Supplies and Other Charges 23,415 24,873 8,727
Public Transportation
Discretionary Spending - 111,196 -
Personnel Services 252,310 252,310 246,945
Supplies and Other Charges 62,990 102,040 16,236
Repairs and Maintenance 1,500 900 -
Minor Acquisitions 4,500 3,550 3,511
Contract Services 261,100 53,600 43,990
Professional Services 30,000 521,665 129,720
Human Services
Supplies and Other Charges 21,875 17,045 -
Contract Services 27,395 24,830 23,036
Capital Outlay 2,050,000 2,258,154 1,352,051
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,183,365 4,838,345 3,197,559
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (315,205) (284,383) (239,880)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
TransfersIn 301,330 270,508 241,557
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 301,330 270,508 241,557
Net Change in Fund Balance (13,875) (13,875) 1,677
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 13,875 13,875 13,875
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ -8 - $ 15552

134



DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fundis used to account for the accumulation of ressfor the
payment of general long-term debt principal ancriedt related to general obligation
bonds, certificates of obligation, and refundingds.



BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Agent Fees

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
TransfersIn

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual
$ 7,983,000 $ 7,983,000 $ 8,509,833
23,000 23,000 23,752
8,006,000 8,006,000 8,533,585
6,206,613 6,206,613 5,730,000
4,144,387 4,144,387 3,667,774
5,000 5,805 1,800
10,356,000 10,356,805 9,399,574
(2,350,000) (2,350,805) (865,989)
850,000 850,805 545,979
850,000 850,805 545,979
(1,500,000) (1,500,000) (320,010)
6,160,188 6,160,188 6,160,188
$ 4,660,188 $ 4,660,188 $ 5,840,178
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital Project Funds are used to account for the se of bond proceeds and other
financial resources that have been aggregated fohé acquisition of major capital
facilities and/or improvements of the County:

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND

Capital Improvement Fund - This fund was established to provide funding tioe
construction and acquisition of capital assets tgppsrt the County’s general
governmental, judicial, law enforcement, and publamsportation functions. Resources
for the fund have been provided by transfers froen@eneral Fund.

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Expo Center Expansion Fund- This fund was established to account for the esioa

of the Brazos County Exposition Center. The expenes are financed through the
issuance of $12,000,000 of Certificates of ObligatiSeries 2009 and a portion of the
hotel occupancy taxes collected.

Jail Expansion Fund— This fund was established to account for the esioa of the
County’s jail facility and the renovation of theljammate holding area in the courthouse.
The expenditures are financed through the issuah&&5,000,000 Limited Tax Bonds,
Series 2008.

CO 2012 Fund —This fund was established to account for the Couwuyrthouse
renovation project and the new tax office builde@nstruction. The expenditures are
financed through the issuance of $9,700,000 ofif@earties of Obligation, Series 2012.



BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
September 30, 2015

Nonmajor Funds

Total
Expo Center Jail Nonmajor
Expansion Expansion CO 2012 Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ - $ 46,091 $ 3,125 $ 49,216
TOTAL ASSETS $ - $ 46,091 $ 3,125 $ 49,216
LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ - $ - $ 3,125 $ 3,125
Total Liabilities - - 3,125 3,125
Fund Balances
Restricted - 46,091 - 46,091
Total Fund Balances - 46,091 - 46,091
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES $ - $ 46,091 $ 3,125 $ 49,216
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Nonmajor Funds

Total
Expo Center Jail Nonmaj or
Expansion Expansion CO 2012 Funds

REVENUES

Interest $ 1 $ 666 $ 4550 % 5,217
TOTAL REVENUES 1 666 4,550 5,217
EXPENDITURES

General Government - - 115,527 115,527

Justice System - - 151,258 151,258

Law Enforcement - 247 - 247

Capital Outlay 1,427 308,042 3,812,253 4,121,722
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,427 308,289 4,079,038 4,388,754
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures (1,426) (307,623) (4,074,488) (4,383,537)
OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers Out (805) - - (805)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (805) - - (805)
Net Change in Fund Balances (2,231) (307,623) (4,074,488) (4,384,342)
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 2,231 353,714 4,074,488 4,430,433
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 $ - $ 46,091 $ - $ 46,091
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual
REVENUES $ - 8 - 8 -
TOTAL REVENUES - - -
EXPENDITURES
Discretionary Funding - 417,079 -
General Government
Supplies and Other Charges - 180,168 180,168
Repairs and Maintenance 1,480,788 1,058,720 734,243
Minor Acquisitions 137,853 488,761 360,109
Professional Services 2,000 1,990 1,990
Law Enforcement
Supplies and Other Charges 1,491 15,708 14,949
Repairs and Maintenance 22,801 29,413 24,631
Minor Acquisitions 38,763 65,104 62,142
Juvenile Services
Minor Acquisition 30,200 2,851 1,100
Human Services
Minor Acquisitions 740,000 314,066 -
Community Support 52,500 52,500 26,313
Public Transportation
Minor Acquisitions 4,550 4,550 3,774
Capital Outlay 18,246,558 18,616,968 5,833,696
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,757,504 21,247,878 7,243,115
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (20,757,504) (21,247,878) (7,243,115)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TransfersIn 14,198,265 14,688,639 14,601,524
Transfers Out (202,681) (202,681) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 13,995,584 14,485,958 14,601,524
Net Change in Fund Balance (6,761,920) (6,761,920) 7,358,409
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 6,344,841 6,344,841 6,344,841
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ (4170790 $ (417,079) $ 13,703,250
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDUL E OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

EXPO CENTER EXPANSION

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES

Minor Acquisitions
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES
Net Changein Fund Balance
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

$ - -9 1
- - 1

2,229 - -

- 1,427 1,427

2,229 1,427 1,427
(2,229) (1,427) (1,426)
- (805) (805)
- (805) (805)
(2,229) (2,232 (2,231)

2,231 2,231 2,231

$ 2 1 $ -
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDUL E OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

REVENUES
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
L aw Enforcement

Repairs and Maintenance
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
TransfersIn

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Net Changein Fund Balance
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

JAIL EXPANSION

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

$ - $ - $ 666
- - 666

- 247 247

310,728 310,481 308,042

310,728 310,728 308,289
(310,728) (310,728) (307,623)
202,681 202,681 -

202,681 202,681 -
(108,047) (108,047) (307,623)
353,714 353,714 353,714

$ 245667 $ 245667 % 46,091
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BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURESAND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
CO 2012
For TheYear Ended September 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual
REVENUES
Interest $ 15000 $ 15000 $ 4,550
TOTAL REVENUES 15,000 15,000 4,550
EXPENDITURES
Discretionary Funding - 1,778,159 -
General Government
Supplies and Other Charges - 68,550 68,550
Minor Acquisition - 45,437 45,437
Professional Services - 1,540 1,540
Justice System
Supplies and Other Charges - 85,058 85,058
Minor Acquisition - 68,752 66,200
Capital Outlay 6,112,500 4,065,004 3,812,253
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,112,500 6,112,500 4,079,038
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (6,097,500) (6,097,500) (4,074,488)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 4,074,488 4,074,488 4,074,488
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ (2023,012) $ (2,023012) $ -
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PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - is established to account for the financingadds or services
provided by one department to other departmentiseo€ounty on a cost-reimbursement basis.



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivaents
Accounts Receivable
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan
Changein Pension Allocated Share
Pension Contributions After the Measurement Date

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Wages
Unearned Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Due in more than one year
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Differences Between Expected and Actual Pension Experience

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION
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$

2,902,482
542,244

3,444,726

42,056

42,056

3,486,782

473
25
1,004

1,502

1,289,193
6,722
14,899

1,310,814

4,508

4,508

1,315,322

120

120

42,056
2,130,786

2,172,842




BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND NET POSITION
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Employee Dependents
Self Pays
Excess Risk Benefits
Participant Payments
Brazos County
Retirees

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services
Life Insurance
Stop Loss Premiums
Benefit Claims

Administrative Fees
Professiona Services

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING LOSS

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING, ASRESTATED

TOTAL NET POSITION - ENDING
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Actual

$

1,981,308
14,419
1,570,861
558,876
8,478,304
316,595

12,920,363

13,616
27,175
1,876,720
11,402,269
626,781
29,498

13,976,059

(1,055,696)

8,853

8,853

(1,046,843)

3,219,685

$

2,172,842




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

CASH FLOWSFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users $ 2,873,004

Receipts from interfund services provided 8,478,304

Payments to contractors (2,562,864)

Claims paid (9,933,918)

Payments to employees for services (7,069)
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,152,543)
CASH FLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capital assets (15,842)
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (15,842)
CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 9,119
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 9,119
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,159,266)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, OCTOBER 1 4,061,748
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 2,902,482

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by
operating activities:

Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by
operating activities:

Change in accounts receivable (308,834)
Change in pension related deferred outflows of resources (547)
Change in accounts payable 202,332
Changein accrued salaries 6,722
Change in unearned revenue 3,158
Change in noncurrent liabilities 252
Changein pension related deferred inflows of resources 120
Total adjustments (96,847)
Net cash used by operating activities $ (1,152,543)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS

Narcotics Seizure- A fund used to account for monies and materiag tire seized during
narcotics interdiction activities. The Districttétney’s office evaluates each case and files a
civil case to have the seized funds forfeited. tJpeceipt of a court judgment, the seized funds
are disbursed.

District Clerk Trust - A statutory fund used to account for monies pllawath the District
Clerk by the District Court(s) and to be held uttig Court(s) direct the distribution of the funds
under Chapter 117, Texas Local Government Code.

County Clerk Trust - A statutory fund used to account for monies @thwith the County Clerk
by the County Courts-at-Law and the Probate Courtleu Chapter 117, Texas Local
Government Code. These funds are to be heldthetiCourt(s) direct distribution of the funds.

Bail Bond Board Trust - A fund used to account for property and investimef bail bondsmen
doing business in Brazos County. The property mmvestments act as collateral for bond
contracts between the bondsmen and the County.



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivaents
Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Funds Held for Others

TOTAL LIABILITIES

BRAZOSCOUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2015

District County Bail Bond
Nar cotics Clerk Clerk Board
Seizure Trust Trust Trust Total

$ 181,788 $ 1,861,869 742,147 1,207,700 3,993,504

- - - 1,012,510 1,012,510
$ 181,788 $ 1,861,869 742,147 2,220,210 5,006,014
$ 181,788 $ 1,861,869 742,147 2,220,210 5,006,014
$ 181,788 $ 1,861,869 742,147 2,220,210 5,006,014
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NARCOTICS SEIZURE
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities
Funds Held for Others
Tota Liabilities

DISTRICT CLERK TRUST
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

Liabilities
Funds Held for Others
Tota Liabilities

COUNTY CLERK TRUST
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

Liabilities
Funds Held for Others
Tota Liabilities

BAIL BOND BOARD TRUST
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Total Assets

Liabilities
Funds Held for Others
Tota Liabilities

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN ASSETSAND LIABILITIES

For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Page 1 of 2

Balance Balance

October 1, September 30,
2014 Additions Deductions 2015

$ 205,644 80,492 $ 104,348 $ 181,788
205,644 80,492 104,348 181,788
205,644 47,513 71,369 181,788
205,644 47,513 71,369 181,788
2,228,839 16,244,064 16,611,034 1,861,869
2,228,839 16,244,064 16,611,034 1,861,869
2,228,839 16,243,907 16,610,877 1,861,869
2,228,839 16,243,907 16,610,877 1,861,869
561,004 850,157 669,014 742,147
561,004 850,157 669,014 742,147
561,004 255,537 74,394 742,147
561,004 255,537 74,394 742,147
1,141,200 116,500 50,000 1,207,700
1,218,100 60,000 265,590 1,012,510
2,359,300 176,500 315,590 2,220,210
2,359,300 176,500 315,590 2,220,210
$ 2,359,300 176,500 $ 315,590 $ 2,220,210
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Page 2 of 2

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN ASSETSAND LIABILITIES (Continued)
For The Year Ended September 30, 2015

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2014 Additions Deductions 2015
COMBINED AGENCY FUNDS
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivaents $ 4,136,687 $ 17,291,213 $ 17,434,396 $ 3,993,504
Investments 1,218,100 60,000 265,590 1,012,510
Total Assets 5,354,787 17,351,213 17,699,986 5,006,014

Liabilities
Funds Held for Others 5,354,787 16,723,457 17,072,230 5,006,014
Total Liabilities $ 5,354,787 $ 16,723,457 $ 17,072,230 $ 5,006,014
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Statistical Section

This part of Brazos County's comprehensive anrinahtial report presents

detailed information as a context for understanavhgt the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures, and redsiv@plementary information
says about the County's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends. . ... i e e e e e e e e

These schedules contain trend information to Hedp t
reader understand how the County's financial petéoice
and well-being have changed over time.

ReveNUE CapaCity. . . . oottt et e e

These schedules contain information to help theeea
assess the County's most significant local reveouece,
the property tax.

Debt CapaCity. . . oottt e

These schedules present information to help theeremssess
the affordability of the County's current levelsonitstanding
debt and the County's ability to issue additioredtdn the future.

Demographic and Economic Information. . ......... ... ... i,

These schedules offer demographic and economicétuis
to help the reader understand the environment nvitiiich
the County's financial activities take place.

Operating Information. . ... e

These schedules contain service and infrastrudataeto help
the reader understand how the information in ther®y's
financial report relates to the services the Cppnbvides and
the activities it performs.

DDt S VICE . . ot e e

These schedules contain the County's outstandisigrfermation
to help the reader understand how much outstart#bygthe County has
and how much is paid toward debt each fiscal year.

Sources. Unless otherwise noted, the information in the$edules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for thevesie year.

Table No.

I-1v

V-VIII

IX-XI1

XIV-XV

XVI-XVIII

XIX-XXI



FINANCIAL TRENDS






Governmental activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business-type activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Primary government
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

Brazos County, Texas

Net Position by Component,

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited and Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Tablel

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
38,924,28% 63,796,857 $ 21,601,010 $ 56,939,291 $ 92,821,982 $ 103,660,227 $ 116,826,933 $ 130,240,967 $ 135,556,068 148,523,220
5,709,087 5,377,356 6,420,810 7,322,778 18,214,659 13,561,350 11,759,611 19,544,730 15,302,060 11,485,488
55,642,525 41,337,786 94,986,664 60,436,700 15,378,001 8,277,036 9,322,387 1,604,629 10,438,783 3,716,212
1002938 $ 110,511,999 $ 123,008,484 $ 124,698,769 $ 126,414,642 $ 125,498,613 $ 137,908,931 $ 151,390,326 $ 161,296,911 163,724,920
-$ 12,558 $ 10,243 $ 26,502 $ 44919 $ 65,749 $ 53,093 $ 41,774 $ 39,176 27,547
238,586 315,127 390,914 375,579 341,601 327,551 346,496 476,430 481,236 517,221
238,586 327,685 $ 401,157 $ 402,081 $ 386,520 $ 393,300 $ 399,589 $ 518,204 $ 520,412 544,768
38,924,28% 63,809,415 $ 21,611,253 $ 56,965,793 $ 92,866,901 $ 103,725,976 $ 116,880,026 $ 130,282,741 $ 135,595,244 148,550,767
5,709,087 5,377,356 6,420,810 7,322,778 18,214,659 13,561,350 11,759,611 19,544,730 15,302,060 11,485,488
55,881,111 41,652,913 95,377,578 60,812,279 15,719,602 8,604,587 9,668,883 2,081,059 10,920,019 4,233,433
100,514,479 110,839,684 $ 123,409,641 $ 125,100,850 $ 126,801,162 $ 125,891,913 $ 138,308,520 $ 151,908,530 $ 161,817,323 164,269,688

Note: The County implemented GASB Statement 687dnuh fiscal year 2015. The amounts for all pfiscal years have not been restated for the sffefcthese standards.
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Expenses

Governmental activities:
General Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Public Health
Human Services
Interest and Other Fees

Total governmental activities expenses

Business-type activities:
County Attorney
Jail Commissary

Total business-type activities expenses
Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Public Health
Human Services

Operating grants and contributions:
General Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Public Health
Human Services

Capital grants and contributions:
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Public Health
Human Services

Total governmental activities program revenue

Brazos County, Texas

Changesin Net Position, Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited and Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Tablell

Pagel of 2

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 12,042,697 $ 12,631,298 $ 15,690,144 16,266,899 $ 15,959,538 $ 18,757,895 $ 18,247,125 $ 21,362,907 $ 22,017,696 $ 23,815,316
10,457,394 11,522,627 13,128,593 15,654,079 16,190,532 17,270,039 17,146,680 18,083,021 21,308,471 18,957,600
12,905,488 14,054,470 15,731,013 20,208,475 20,922,115 21,980,672 21,030,239 21,880,880 22,530,372 23,565,577
4,179,885 4,288,459 4,557,144 5,933,794 6,053,405 5,970,962 5,795,413 5,978,536 6,022,762 6,776,468
4,900,621 6,429,692 5,410,967 6,226,814 7,110,355 7,863,178 7,955,778 6,457,965 8,831,911 9,063,760
1,705,958 2,148,409 1,948,410 2,206,618 2,460,827 2,596,961 2,124,420 1,798,582 1,756,849 1,501,080
2,469,378 2,918,972 4,028,992 5,176,330 4,992,850 5,770,963 5,858,924 5,523,897 5,993,599 6,018,603
2,326,392 2,044,191 2,895,119 4,108,413 4,601,773 4,165,066 3,980,198 4,318,458 3,501,978 3,564,033
50,987,813 56,038,118 63,390,382 75,781,422 78,291,395 84,375,736 82,138,777 85,404,246 91,963,638 93,262,437
67,342 40,144 33,905 33,681 39,959 39,799 36,515 19,401 18,378 8,391
299,883 318,321 367,270 435,003 436,447 479,243 480,762 558,746 624,465 622,769
367,225 358,465 401,175 468,684 476,406 519,042 517,277 578,147 642,843 631,160
$ 51,355,038 56,396,583 $ 63,791,557 76,250,106 $ 78,767,801 $ 84,894,778 $ 82,656,054 $ 85,982,393 $ 92,606,481 $ 93,893,597
$ 1,802,420 $ 2,224,028 $ 2,317,212 2,809,396 $ 2,880,925 $ 2,900,343 $ 3,864,014 $ 4,634,471 $ 4,372,292 $ 4,625,773
5,509,185 5,862,626 6,202,462 6,683,452 6,880,940 5,903,931 6,417,437 7,024,080 6,878,641 6,861,890
846,828 786,796 791,070 800,126 804,839 879,719 946,508 976,397 1,012,604 1,055,354
81,922 21,955 17,057 81,834 89,261 43,110 83,648 66,167 48,659 50,739
1,251,841 1,178,077 1,220,213 1,185,490 1,179,615 1,247,410 1,301,302 1,373,881 1,892,026 1,507,870
33,060 30,103 30,545 28,807 30,748 37,608 34,711 39,853 37,300 36,554
281,912 226,251 534,253 706,595 786,699 979,624 1,078,279 1,250,832 1,405,713 1,371,538
- 24,353 27,668 - 110,940 2,145,051 33,576 23,269 2,713 6,080
438,130 553,661 612,443 662,369 649,216 631,839 584,036 589,818 546,226 548,180
744,033 621,285 446,537 299,401 261,014 90,710 122,515 132,673 100,897 118,864
1,212,847 1,406,843 1,356,927 1,075,481 998,850 1,256,263 1,211,533 1,241,821 1,366,626 1,345,059
252,928 296,211 333,597 351,190 342,202 306,537 293,621 376,007 252,180 340,822
153,360 166,419 167,373 161,037 81,026 82,188 82,226 74,248 62,926 67,357
572,788 257,635 635,412 410,164 407,909 367,511 291,671 297,275 437,269 384,422
41,372 77,494 8,230 16,346 190,645 72,015 138,441 - 10,084 -
- - - - - - 5,164 - - -
- - 3,104,713 147,273 10,015 - 7,188,416 7,124,595 3,372,154 2,516,041
- - - - 2,100 - - - - -
230,044 99,022 16,920 130,908 153,302 323,396 68,012 - - -
$ 13882 $ 13,832,759 $ 17,822,632 $ 15,549,869 $ 15,860,246 $ 17,267,255 $ 23,745,110 $ 25,225,387 $ 21,798,310 $ 20,836,543
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Brazos County, Texas

Changesin Net Position, Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited and Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Tablell

Page 2 of 2
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
County Attorney 74,948 52,074 $ 57191  $ 36911 $ 37909 $ 30,052 22565 $ 21,750  $ 14,824 11,217
Jail Commissary 350,779 387,093 411,699 430,870 421,748 494,837 500,061 673,784 729,172 720,953
Total business-type activities program revenue 425,727 439,167 468,890 467,781 459,657 524,889 522,626 695,534 743,996 732,170
Total primary government program revenues 13,878,397 14,271,926 $ 18,291,522  $ 16,017,650 $ 16,319,903  $ 17,792,144 24,267,736 $ 25920921 % 22,542,306 21,568,713
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities (37,535,143) (42,205,359) $ (45567,750) $ (60,231,553) $ (62,431,149) $  (67,108,481) (58,393,667) $ (60,178,859) $ (70,165,328) (72,425,894)
Business-type activities 58,502 80,702 67,715 (903) (16,749) 5,847 5,349 117,387 101,153 101,010
Total primary government net expense (37,476,641) (42,124,657) $ (45,500,035) $ (60,232,456) $ (62,447,898) $  (67,102,634) (58,388,318) $ (60,061,472) $ (70,064,175) (72,324,884)
General Revenuesand Other Changesin Net Position
Governmenta activities:
Taxes:
Property taxes 34,280,093 37,131,017 $ 41,847,095 $ 47,182,845 $ 49915485 $ 51,538,444 55591539 $ 57,572,056 $ 60,333,777 65,242,899
Sales taxes 9,957,049 10,429,681 11,396,068 11,225,816 11,175,994 11,559,363 12,039,620 13,230,652 14,900,374 15,351,017
Motor vehicle taxes 1,212,367 1,217,804 1,288,958 1,259,992 1,098,278 1,188,768 1,290,727 1,409,741 1,519,577 1,644,229
Mixed drink taxes 401,298 440,482 491,078 528,915 505,783 524,240 460,710 534,150 532,822 966,894
Hotel occupancy taxes - 84,504 1,102,929 1,075,806 1,064,670 1,130,582 1,172,567 1,527,027 2,441,385 2,612,474
Unrestricted investment earnings 3,120,658 3,021,597 1,936,657 593,961 386,812 251,055 248,822 414,701 209,089 204,186
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 38,820 111,290 - 54,503 - - - - 34,889 -
Transfers: - 5,000 1,450 - - - - - 100,000 -
Total governmental activities 49,010,285 52,441,465 58,064,235 61,921,838 64,147,022 66,192,452 70,803,985 74,688,327 80,071,913 86,021,699
Business-type activities:
Unrestricted investment earnings 8,048 11,397 7,207 1,827 1,188 933 940 1,228 1,055 1,120
Gain on disposa of assets - 2,000 - - - - - - - -
Transfers - (5,000) (1,450) - - - - - (100,000) -
Total business-type activities 8,048 8,397 5,757 1,827 1,188 933 940 1,228 (98,945) 1,120
Total primary government 49,018,333 52,449,862 $ 58,069,992 $ 61,923665 $ 64,148210 $ 66,193,385 70,804,925  $ 74,689,555  $ 79,972,968 86,022,819
Changein Net Position
Governmental activities 11,475,142 10,236,106  $ 12,496,485 $ 1,690,285 $ 1715873  $ (916,029) 12,410,318  $ 14,509,468  $ 9,906,585 13,595,805
Business-type activities 66,550 89,099 73,472 924 (15,561) 6,780 6,289 118,615 2,208 102,130
Total primary government 11,541,692 10,325,205  $ 12,569,957  $ 1,691,209 $ 1700312 $ (909,249) 12,416,607  $ 14,628,083  $ 9,908,793 13,697,935

Note: The County implemented GASB Statement 68 and 71 in fiscal year 2015. The amountsfor all prior fiscal years have not been restated for the effects of these standards.
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General Fund
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total All Other Governmental Funds

Brazos County, Texas

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited and M odified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Tablelll

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
711,277 $ 738,496 $ 1,020,562 $ 1,202,076 $ 927,025 $ 1,061,363 $ 1,348,027 $ 1,299,861 $ 1,413,753 $ 1,432,240
1,108,102 1,139,030 1,330,102 931,374 566,820 422,407 333,381 481,273 378,273 360,140
2,523,782 2,672,107 2,755,728 2,767,788 2,695,145 208,122 261,295 336,738 400,586 469,028
1,443,705 1,945,762 2,574,105 1,814,061 1,070,279 1,169,208 1,131,333 1,067,142 1,023,141 1,023,141
26,835,163 25,388,824 27,261,425 24,835,897 22,265,677 20,299,844 26,456,580 31,664,348 40,130,516 39,747,932
32,622,029 $  31,884219 $  34941,922 $  31551,196 $ 27524946 $ 23,160,944 $ 29530616 $ 34,849,362 $ 43,346,269 $ 43,032,481
- % - % -8 -8 5299 $ 30,443 $ 24630 $ 7,340 $ 9,764 $ 14,508
12,785,735 2,908,627 56,075,342 33,097,814 16,478,759 12,047,137 10,053,573 19,063,457 14,923,787 11,125,348
9,602,054 6,741,020 5,368,330 5,684,215 7,002,711 8,811,083 6,814,553 5,564,864 6,344,841 13,703,250
- - - - - - (18,740) - - -
22,387,789% 0,649,647 $ 61443672 $ 38,782,029 $ 23,486,769 $ 20,888,663 $  16,874016 $ 24635661 $ 21,278,392 $ 24,843,106
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TablelV

page 1 of 2
Brazos County, Texas
Changesin Fund Balance, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited and Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Revenues
Taxes $ 44,572,996 $ 48,095,357 $ 54,745,662 $ 60,031,219 $ 62,547,299
Charges for Services 9,267,257 10,808,583 11,033,749 11,171,081 11,427,158
Intergovernmental 3,645,503 3,502,924 3,605,105 3,090,888 3,060,220
Interest 3,050,275 2,951,920 1,936,657 593,961 377,477
Other Revenue 533,322 465,932 490,472 629,787 505,872
Total Revenue 61,069,353 65,824,716 71,811,645 75,516,936 77,918,026
Expenditures
Current

General Government 10,329,448 10,518,550 11,695,108 12,727,888 12,374,024

Justice System 10,405,154 11,385,426 12,937,962 13,715,644 14,322,604

Law Enforcement 12,282,765 13,357,681 14,797,789 16,365,787 17,004,568

Juvenile Services 4,064,113 4,120,105 4,375,672 4,853,347 5,023,328

Public Transportation 5,080,480 6,230,521 6,142,314 6,672,577 7,127,922

Public Health 1,686,112 2,128,563 1,928,564 2,187,971 2,442,180

Human Services 2,265,385 2,742,753 3,222,130 3,961,591 3,919,455
Capital Outlay 13,980,609 24,351,811 10,698,766 33,724,110 38,225,031
Debt Service

Principal Retirement 2,785,000 2,795,000 3,445,000 3,540,000 4,710,000

Interest and Other Fees 2,322,768 2,034,535 2,692,699 4,099,774 4,679,134
Total Expenditures 65,201,834 79,664,945 71,936,004 101,848,689 109,828,246
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (4,132,481) (13,840,229) (124,359) (26,331,753) (31,910,220)
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)
Transfers In 2,637,411 13,530,376 5,673,472 6,165,033 8,817,971
Transfers Out (2,637,411) (13,525,376) (5,693,955) (6,165,033) (9,017,971)
Premium on Debt Issuance - - - - 453,572
Debt Issuance - Refunding Bonds 6,005,000 - - - 7,365,000
Sale of Capital Assets 77,393 359,277 96,570 279,384 270,138
Payments to Refunded Bonds Escrow Agent (5,810,000) - - - (7,300,000)
Debt Issuance - - 55,000,000 - 12,000,000
Capital Leases - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 272,393 364,277 54,976,087 279,384 12,588,710
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (3,860,088% (13,475,952) $ 54,851,728 $ (26,052,369) $ (19,321,510)
Debt service as a percentage of

noncapital expenditures 9.97% 8.73% 10.02% 11.21% 13.14%
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Revenues

Taxes

Charges for Services
Intergovernmental
Interest

Other Revenue

Total Revenue
Expenditures

Current
General Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Public Health
Human Services
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Agent Fees

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Premium on Debt Issuance

Debt Issuance - Refunding Bonds

Sale of Capital Assets

Payments to Refunded Bonds Escrow Agent
Debt Issuance

Capital Leases

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt service as a percentage of

TablelV

page 2 of 2
Brazos County, Texas
Changesin Fund Balance, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited and Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 64,771,195 $ 69,130,347 $ 72,356,721 $ 77,810,567 $ 84,089,178
11,245,990 11,858,804 12,392,689 12,533,506 12,643,739
5,275,509 2,813,922 2,735,115 3,068,059 4,292,557
242,214 240,668 402,889 199,121 204,186
491,785 534,401 743,250 1,231,518 949,034
82,026,693 84,578,142 88,630,664 94,842,771 102,178,694
14,476,472 13,225,501 15,493,215 15,600,712 17,323,019
15,550,105 15,653,508 16,529,689 17,189,395 17,655,201
17,005,275 16,822,613 17,672,957 18,363,182 19,559,520
5,014,270 4,995,530 5,151,366 5,243,254 5,978,401
7,268,102 7,579,399 7,903,452 8,649,898 9,825,736
2,582,618 2,110,077 1,784,239 1,748,952 1,493,183
4,483,716 4,269,698 4,020,385 4,639,453 4,729,399
13,491,806 8,003,022 7,659,526 9,217,395 13,367,750
5,035,000 5,675,000 6,438,183 5,464,244 5,938,365
4,168,000 3,984,699 4,415,107 3,873,250 3,680,854
89,075,364 82,319,047 87,068,119 89,989,735 99,551,428
(7,048,671) 2,259,095 1,562,545 4,853,036 2,627,266
8,929,636 2,634,022 3,333,880 4,285,885 15,634,687
(8,929,636) (2,634,022) (3,333,880) (4,185,885) (15,634,687)
- - 2,214,527 - -
- - 24,340,000 - -
86,563 95,930 104,757 186,602 148,560
- - (15,808,088) - -
- - 666,650 - 475,100
86,563 95,930 11,517,846 286,602 623,660
$ (6,962,108% 2,355,025 $ 13,080,391 $ 5,139,638 $ 3,250,926
12.17% 13.00% 13.67% 11.56% 11.16%

noncapital expenditures
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Brazos County, Texas
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Tax Years

TableV

(Unaudited)

Total

Less: Direct

Residential Commercial Industrial Per sonal Tax-Exempt Total Taxable Tax

Tax Year Property Property Property Property Minerals Property Assessed Value Rate
2005 4,132,023,358 $ 3,737,402,092 $ 584,305,230 $ 994,411,852 $ 143,039,148 $ (2,141,945,933) $ 7,449,235,747 0.4650
2006 4,662,875,098 4,009,134,429 630,812,160 1,090,082,565 186,746,987 (2,276,298,695) 8,303,352,544 0.4550
2007 5,092,640,911 4,503,381,487 715,213,160 1,154,789,218 206,807,369 (2,445,021,966) 9,227,810,179 0.4650
2008 5,704,848,431 4,855,575,655 796,868,780 1,249,455,413 244,657,985 (2,678,924,128) 10,172,482,136 0.4800
2009 6,076,913,875 5,253,969,406 837,700,523 1,314,014,691 207,602,036 (2,956,892,109) 10,733,308,422 0.4800
2010 6,337,888,583 5,327,849,239 933,644,875 1,183,632,550 262,283,016 (3,108,696,116) 10,936,602,147 0.4856
2011 6,706,506,210 5,608,189,371 997,798,061 1,259,299,484 333,339,334 (3,350,981,782) 11,554,150,678 0.4850
2012 6,856,500,798 5,959,776,425 1,024,298,940 1,265,341,250 417,520,103 (3,608,957,759) 11,914,479,757 0.4850
2013 7,221,180,612 6,302,748,738 1,033,315,489 1,322,148,610 462,451,979 (3,792,772,169) 12,549,073,259 0.4875
2014 7,671,541,666 $ 6,703,964,362 $ 1,081,705,297 $ 1,467,186,020 $ 803,117,541 $ (3,979,622,909) $ 13,747,891,977 0.4850

Source: Brazos County Appraisal District for Tax Years 8368012. Brazos County Tax Assessor Collector for Year 2013-2014.

Note: Property in the County is assessed each yaperty is assessed at actual value; therdfegssessed values are equal to actual values.
Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value.

154



Brazos County, Texas

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

(per $100 of Assessed Value)

Last Ten Years

TableVI

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Years
Name of Gover nment 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
County Direct Rate:
Debt Service $ 0.0701 $ 0.0620 0.0620 $ 0.0813 $ 0.0834 0.0844 0.0813 0.0779 0.0707 $ 0.0624
Basic Rate 0.3949 0.3930 0.4030 0.3987 0.3966 0.4012 0.4037 0.4071 0.4168 0.4226
Total Direct Rate: 0.4650 0.4550 0.4650 0.4800 0.4800 0.4856 0.4850 0.4850 0.4875 0.4850
Overlapping Rates:
City and Town Rate:
City of Bryan 0.6364 0.6364 0.6364 0.6364 0.6364 0.6364 0.6364 0.6333 0.6299 0.6299
City of College Station 0.4394 0.4394 0.4394 0.4394 0.4394 0.4475 0.4380 0.4307 0.4259 0.4525
School District Rates:
Bryan I. S. D. 1.7800 1.6300 1.2900 1.2900 1.2900 1.2900 1.2900 1.2900 1.2900 1.2900
College Station I. S. D. 1.6750 1.4800 1.2411 1.2534 1.2534 1.3099 1.3350 1.3350 1.3200 1.3800
Total Overlapping Rate: 4.5308 4.1858 3.6069 3.6192 3.6192 3.6838 3.6994 3.6890 3.6658 3.7524
Total Property Tax Rate -
Direct and Overlapping
Governments: $ 49958 $ 4.6408 4.0719 $ 4.0992 $ 4.0992 4.1694 4.1844 4.1740 41533 $ 4.2374

Sour ce: Brazos County Tax Office

Note: Overlapping rates are those that apply tpgny owners within the County of Brazos. Not aledapping rates apply to all County property ovener

for example, although the County property tax rajgdy to all County property owners, the City af/8n rates only apply to those whose property is

located within the City's geographic boundaries.
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Brazos County, Texas
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Table VIl

(Unaudited)
2015 2006
% of Assessed % of Assessed
Taxable Valueto Taxable Valueto
Assessed Total Assessed Assessed Total Assessed

Taxpayer Values (1) Rank Values (2) Values (1) Rank Values (3)
Halcon Energy Properties Inc $ 215,361,102 1 1.57% $ - 0.00%
VOC Brazos Energy Partners LP 89,240,366 2 0.65% - 0.00%
Anadarko Petroleum Corp. 84,874,900 3 0.62% - 0.00%
Jamespoint Management Co 70,525,924 4 0.51% - 0.00%
SW Meadows Point LP 69,820,917 5 0.51% - 0.00%
SHP - The Callaway House LP 67,227,115 6 0.49% - 0.00%
Wal-Mart Real Estate Bus. Trust 62,304,350 7 0.45% 47,864,700 5 0.58%
POM - College Station LLC 57,206,360 8 0.42% - 0.00%
College Station Properties LP 56,622,230 9 0.41% - 0.00%
College Station Hospital L.P. 56,154,920 10 0.41% 64,508,610 1 0.78%
Verizon Communications - 0.00% 61,982,460 2 0.75%
Andarko E & P Co. LP - 0.00% 60,995,640 3 0.73%
C B L & Associates - 0.00% 52,820,675 4 0.64%
Sanderson Farms - 0.00% 38,607,600 6 0.46%
Alkosser, David / Weinberg - 0.00% 36,677,160 7 0.44%
Dowell Schlumberger Inc - 0.00% 33,901,144 8 0.41%
Adam Development Prop. LP - 0.00% 32,533,100 9 0.39%
ETC Texas Pipeline LTD - 0.00% 29,452,820 10 0.35%

$ 829,338,184 6.04% $ 459,343,909 5.53%

Sour ce: Brazos County Appraisal District

NOTE:
(1) Brazos County Appraisal District

(2) Total adjusted assessed valuation net of expnoperties as certified
by the Appraisal Review Board - $13,747,891,977

(3) Total adjusted assessed valuation net of expnoperties as certified
by the Appraisal Review Board - $8,303,352,544
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Property Tax Leviesand Collections

Brazos County

Last Ten Years

TableVIII

(Unaudited)
Delinquent
Collected within the Tax Changes &
TaxesLevied Fiscal Year of theLevy Collections Total Collectionsto Date

Tax Year/ for the Per centage in Subsequent Per centage
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years D Amount of Levy

2005 / 2006 $ 34,562,219 34,018,184 98.43% 428,245 $ 34,446,429 99.66%
2006 / 2007 37,528,035 36,914,865 98.37% 499,810 37,414,675 99.70%
2007 / 2008 42,551,185 41,894,859 98.46% 527,949 42,422,808 99.70%
2008 / 2009 48,091,960 47,365,802 98.49% 580,597 47,946,399 99.70%
2009 /2010 50,744,743 50,008,637 98.55% 549,156 50,557,793 99.63%
2010/ 2011 52,321,297 51,559,230 98.54% 558,428 52,117,658 99.61%
2011/ 2012 55,212,341 54,467,213 98.65% 511,825 54,979,038 99.58%
2012 /2013 56,989,658 56,317,318 98.82% 394,497 56,711,815 99.51%
2013 /2014 60,353,143 59,556,004 98.68% 412,081 59,668,500 98.93%
2014 /2015 $ 65,585,562 65,063,971 99.20% (141,799) $ 64,922,172 98.99%

NOTE: (1) Changes in tax since issued.

Source: Brazos County Auditor's Office
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Table!lX

Brazos County, Texas
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Governmental Activities

General Total Per centage

Fiscal Certificates of Obligation Capital Primary of Personal Per

Year Obligation Bonds Premium b L eases Government Income a Capita a
2006 $ 25,215,000 $ 23,705,000 $ - $ 43,902 $ 48,963,902 2.08% $ 303
2007 23,035,000 23,090,000 - 29,788 46,154,788 1.89% 287
2008 20,810,000 76,870,000 - 15,958 97,695,958 3.69% 573
2009 18,540,000 75,600,000 - 1,289 94,141,289 3.33% 551
2010 25,175,000 76,320,000 - - 101,495,000 3.47% 580
2011 23,685,000 72,775,000 - - 96,460,000 3.21% 495
2012 22,155,000 68,630,000 - - 90,785,000 2.94% 425
2013 20,965,000 73,115,000 - 548,467 94,628,467 3.01% 525
2014 19,835,000 68,885,000 2,745,392 444,223 89,164,223 2.70% 488
2015 $ 18,915,000 $ 64,075,000 $ 2,519,312 $ 710,958 $ 86,220,270 2.46% $ 409

Note: Details regarding the County's outstandirigf dan be found in the notes to the financial statgs.
a See Table XIV for personal income and populatiota d@hese ratios are calculated using personairiaco

and population for the prior calendar year.
b Premium was added in FY 2014.
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Table X

Brazos County, Texas
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
General Bonded Debt Outstanding
General Debt Service Net Per centage of

Fiscal Obligation Funds Bonded Assessed Actual Taxable Per

Y ear Bonded Debt Available Debt Value Value Population Capita a
2006 $ 23,705,000 $ 2,387,029 $ 21,317,971 $ 7,449,235,747 0.29% 160,661 $ 132.69
2007 23,090,000 2,908,627 20,181,373 8,303,352,544 0.24% 170,436 118.41
2008 76,870,000 2,831,378 74,038,622 9,227,810,179 0.80% 170,954 433.09
2009 75,600,000 3,428,888 72,171,112 10,172,482,136 0.71% 175,122 412.12
2010 76,320,000 4,075,186 72,244,814 10,733,308,422 0.67% 194,851 370.77
2011 72,775,000 4,920,817 67,854,183 10,936,602,147 0.62% 177,942 381.33
2012 68,630,000 5,514,377 63,115,623 11,554,150,678 0.55% 180,328 350.00
2013 73,115,000 6,075,351 67,039,649 11,914,479,757 0.56% 182,655 367.03
2014 68,885,000 6,160,188 62,724,812 12,549,073,259 0.50% 210,570 297.88
2015 $ 64,075,000 $ 5,840,178 $ 58,234,822 $ 13,747,891,977 0.42% 214,672 $ 271.27

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debtheafound in the notes to the financial statements.

a Population data can be found in Table XIV.
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Brazos County, Texas

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Asof September 30, 2015

Table Xl

(Unaudited)
Estimated
Estimated Shareof
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Direct Debt Outstanding Applicable Debt
Brazos County $ 86,220,270 100% $ 86,220,270
Overlapping Debt
Cities:
Bryan 63,949,655 100% 63,949,655
College Station 101,745,000 100% 101,745,000
Kurten - 100% -
Independent School Districts:
College Station School District 264,555,000 100% 264,555,000
Bryan Independent School District 158,450,000 100% 158,450,000
Navasota Independent School District $ 29,311,534 0.87%* $ 255,010
Special Districts:
Brazos County ESD #1 - 100% -
Brazos County ESD #2 - 100% -
Brazos County ESD #3 - 100% -
Brazos County ESD #4 - 100% -
Total Overlapping Debt: 588,954,665
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt: $ 675,174,935

Sources: Debt outstanding provided by each govantahenit and is reflecting principal only.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that cdén@it least in part, with the geographic boundasfehe county. This schedule
estimates the portion of the outstanding debt a$¢hoverlapping governments that is borne by thideats and businesses of
Brazos County. This process recognizes that, whaesidering the county's ability to issue and rdpag-term debt, the entire
burden borne by the residents and businesses shetiédken into account. However, this does notyrtipit every taxpayer is a
resident, and therefore responsible for repayiegiébt, of each overlapping government.

®For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentdgeerlapping debt for NISD is estimated usincatde assessed property
values. NISD's percentage was estimated by detergiihe portion of the Independent School DisgitdXable assessed value

within the county's boundaries and dividing it b\sR's total taxable assessed value.
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Table XlI

Page 1 of 2
Brazos County, Texas
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Debt Limit $ 1577,946,187 $ 1,756,630,748 $ 1,966,553,398 2,169,592,185 $ 2,302,922,924
Total net debt applicableto limit 20,167,029 20,283,627 68,853,622 72,171,112 72,244,814
Legal debt margin $ 1,598,113,216 $ 1,776,914,375 $ 2,035,407,020 2,241,763,297 $ 2,375,167,738
Total net debt applicableto thelimit
as a per centage of debt limit 1.28% 1.15% 3.50% 3.33% 3.14%

NOTE: (1) Total assessed valuation of real propestyeaatified by
the Appraisal Review Board.

(2) Debt Limit 25% of assessed value of real prope#11,477,588,416

Article 3, Section 52, of the Texas Constitution.
(3) Includes only general obligation bonds.
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Brazos County, Texas

L egal Debt Margin Information

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2015

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Table XII

Page 2 of 2

(Note 1) Assessed Value $ 11,477,588,416
(Note 2) Debt limit (25% of assessed value) 2,869,397,104
Debt applicable to limit:
(Note 3) Gross bonded debt 64,075,000
Less: Amount available from
Debt Service Fund 5,840,178
Total net debt applicable to limit 58,234,822
Legal debt margin $ 2,927,631,926
Fiscal Year
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 2,372,671,645 $ 2,490,377,965 $ 2,557,904,601 $ 2,691,118,168 $ 2,869,397,104
67,854,183 63,115,623 67,039,649 62,724,812 58,234,822
$ 2,440,525,828 $ 2,553,493,588 $ 2,624,944,250 $ 2,753,842,980 $ 2,927,631,926

2.86%

2.53%
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Brazos County, Texas

Pledged-Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table X111

(Unaudited)
Certificates of Obligation Capital Leases
Property Less: Agent Property

Fiscal Tax Fees & Debt Service Tax Debt Service

Year Revenue Interest I ssuance Cost Principal Interest Coverage Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2006 4,025,812$ 142,074 % 1,745 $ 2,315,0006 1,084,442 123 % 26,375 $ 15,823 $ 5,102 1.26
2007 4,326,890 168,062 2,045 2,180,000 1,000,726 141 20,791 14,114 3,730 117
2008 4,098,514 265,010 3,195 2,225,000 919,030 1.12 20,553 13,830 2,334 1.27
2009 4,138,412 13,489 2,147 2,270,000 832,632 1.34 19,543 14,668 936 1.25
2010 6,092,191 46,125 109,060 2,590,000 1,036,027 1.66 1,311 1,289 11 1.01
2011 5,836,067 18,052 2,747 1,490,000 1,018,980 2.33 - - - -
2012 3,897,319 13,937 2,548 1,530,000 967,646 1.56 - - - -
2013 4,096,625 67,702 119,309 1,755,000 902,919 1.52 118,925 118,183 - 1.01
2014 2,044,955 5,568 2,000 1,130,000 792,845 1.07 117,715 104,244 13,939 1.00
2015 1,792,681 $ 5,004 $ 1,800 $ 920,000$ 755,908 1.07 $ 118,330$% 106,903 $ 11,280 1.00
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Brazos County, Texas

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years

Table X1V

(Unaudited)
Per
Capita

Per sonal Per sonal Public School TexasA & M Blinn College Unemployment
Y ear Population ® Income @ Income Enrollment © Enrollment Enrollment ©® Rate ©
2006 160,661 2,437,361,696 $ 15,171 22,149 45,487 10,189 3.50%
2007 170,436 2,647,397,704 15,533 22,357 46,540 10,563 3.60%
2008 170,954 2,827,827,879 16,541 22,603 48,039 11,408 4.10%
2009 175,122 2,927,844,375 16,719 25,125 48,885 12,441 6.20%
2010 194,851 3,001,972,053 15,407 25,597 49,129 12,145 5.70%
2011 177,942 3,089,688,803 17,363 26,604 49,861 12,342 6.40%
2012 180,328 3,147,154,437 17,452 27,248 50,227 12,269 5.30%
2013 182,655 3,303,060,881 18,084 27,961 53,219 12,771 5.20%
2014 210,570 3,507,161,965 16,656 28,735 55,810 13,587 3.80%
2015 214,672 3,011,585,876 $ 14,029 29,598 61,279 13,207 3.30%

Sour ces: @ For years 2008 and previous, population informagimvided by the Texas State Data Center. Thermdton is an estimation of the population.

@
®)

(©)

®)

(6)

For the year 2009, information received from ERIMASPopulation estimation is based on previoussear

For the year 2010, information was received fromQ@éhsus Bureau. For 2011-2013, the projected ptpaleame from Texas Department of State HealthiGes.
2011 and 2012 populations have been corrected tichrtize Texas Department of State Health Serviogjegied population for the County. Projection2014 &

2015 is from the Texas Department of State HeadthiGes.

Personal Income and unemployment rate informatiomiged by the Texas Workforce Commission.

Public School Enroliment information is for Brya®D, College Station ISD, Arrow Academy and Brazokd®l for Inquiry and Creativity. Enrollment infoation is

from the Texas Academic Performance Report on TAlssite.

For years 2007 to current, enrollment is based AT Enroliment profile. Years 2004 to 2005 enroliménformation is from City of College Station CAFR

Year 2006 is from Wikipedia. Enrollment informatignbased on Fall semesters.

Previous CAFRs reflected enrollment for Blinn Casgsibased on all campuses. The information noectsfjust the enrollment for the campus in

Brazos County and is based on the Fall semester.

Source: Texas Workforce Commission
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Table XV

Brazos County, Texas
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine YearsAgo

(Unaudited)
2015 2006

Employer Employer ¢
Baylor Scott & White Health Alenco
Blinn College Brazos County
Brazos County Bryan Independent School District
Bryan Independent School District City of Bryan
City of Bryan City of College Station
City of College Station College Station Independent School District
College Station Independent School District HamilBiate School
College Station Medical Center Sanderson Farms
Ply Gem Windows St. Joseph Regional Hospital
Reynolds & Reynolds Texas A&M University & System

Sanderson Farms
St. Joseph Health System
Texas A&M University System

NOTE: Data reflects principal employers in Brazarifty and are listed in alphabetical order and atareflect
any ranking. The data of TWC ranking and numbezroployees is confidential.

Source: (1) 2006 Brazos County CAFR
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Brazos County, Texas

County Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table XVI

(Unaudited)
Employees as of September 30,
Function 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

General Government 126 133 134 135 138 138 138 138 148
Justice System 158 164 171 168 172 176 172 177 176
Law Enforcement 223 234 249 257 265 264 256 259 262
Juvenile Services 89 91 91 97 98 93 92 92 94
Human Services 26 39 42 46 50 58 59 60 54
Public Transportation 70 70 71 75 75 81 80 80 75

Total 692 731 758 778 798 810 797 806 809

Sour ce: County Auditor's Office

Note:
Information compiled from Brazos County Budget T¥ear Trend Report.

166

146
181
266
93
59
76
821



Brazos County, Texas

Operating I ndicators by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

TableXVII

(Unaudited)
Function 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Justice System
Birth Certificates Filed” 2,971 3,276 3,188 3,254 2,853 2,480 2,652 2,611 2,871 3,211
Marriage License Applicationg) 1,444 1,493 1,637 1,289 1,275 1,149 1,088 1,528 1,277 1,377
Death Certificates Issued 812 757 929 801 883 967 936 479 0 58 563
Registered Voter§? 86,771 82,180 88,758 82,674 88,851 80,834 91,498 88,600 3888, 91,751
Court Activity: @
District Court:
Cases Added 7,863 8,241 6,215 6,774 6,843 6,3414,920 5,439 5,135 5,675
Cases Disposed 8,041 8,120 6,190 6,291 6,283 3006, 4,817 6,251 5,666 5,791
Cases Pending 8,281 8,814 4,486 6,598 7,113 614,3 2,299 4,507 4,655 4,704
County Court at Law Courts:
Cases Added 5,706 6,820 4,258 7,137 7,000 5,1597,347 6,270 6,059 5,818
Cases Disposed 4,856 5,999 4,441 7,403 6,768 7124, 3,761 5,960 5,356 5,558
Cases Pending 3,142 3,948 4,283 3,664 3,250 193,1 1,244 4,132 4,418 4,051
Justice of the Peace Courts:
Cases Added 19,387 22,965 23,375 23,008 19,58319,783 13,557 10,198 13,678 14,107
Cases Disposed 18,497 21,117 19,986 20,605 1118, 19,322 15,237 9,926 16,087 16,019
Law Enforcement
Sheriff's Department:
Average Daily Inmate Populatiéh 550 553 536 5947 538 584 554 592 619 604
Arrest Total$® 15,541 15,769 14,584 13,944 10,040 15,058 14,841 14,558 6494, 13,673
Human Services
Cooperative Agricultural Extension Officé
Number of Educational
Programs Conducted 779 772 528 623 573 383 414 9 71 731 719
Number of Participants
in Educational Programs 49,229 16,850 6D,5820,900 1,104,930 1,515,696 987,046 301,892 414,025 85307,
Brazos Center:
No. of Events held® 578 522 493 466 458 581 497 630 649 990
Exposition Center:
No. of Events held? 0 3 85 108 118 126 140 155 158 163
No. of Events Day&? 258 309 377 342
Public Transportation
Miles of Roads:
Paved 330 341 342 348 364 368 357 356 370 371
Unpaved 146 137 129 124 110 103 103 123 102 101

(1) Source: Brazos County Clerk, Brazos County 3ueer and Brazos County Tax Assessor Collector.

(2) Source: Office of Court Administration

(3) Source: Sheriff's Office. This number represatitarrests made by all entities that bring préss to the Jail.

(4) Source: Texas Cooperative Agriculture Extengomtact Summary

(5) Source: Brazos Center - Events reported dckitnéhe Assembly Rooms 1 and 2. Smaller functierse not recorded.

(6) Source: Exposition Center - Number of evenssdags added in FY 2015 to reflect the utilizatibthe facility. Each event is counted as a day.és@mple, if there are 3 events in one day, eaehtés counted as a day.

(7) The Jail has started housing some inmated-aftefhousing facilities. This number includesauerage of 53 inmates being housed off-site
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Brazos County, Texas

Capital Asset and Infrastructure Statistics by Function

Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Table XVIII

2006

2007

2008 2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

General Government
Office Buildings / Courthouse 4
Facility Services:

Vehicles 7
Equipment
IT Vehicles

= o

Justice System
Office Buildings / Courthouse
County Attorney Vehicles
District Attorney Vehicles 7

@O

Law Enforcement

Sheriff's Administration Facility 0

Sheriff's Detention Facility @ 1@

Vehicles:
Sheriff's
Sheriff's - Jail Division 7
Constable 21

Heavy Equipment:
Sheriff's
Sheriff's - Jail Division 3

Juvenile Services
Juvenile Facilities 1
Juvenile Dept. Vehicles 8

Human Services
Buildings 3
Emergency Management Vehicles 1
Brazos Center:
Vehicles 3
Equipment 4
Exposition Center:
Vehicles 0
Equipment 0
Collection Citizen Sites 7

Public Transportation
Road and Bridge Building 1
Road and Bridge Vehicles 44
Road and Bridge Heavy Equipment 95
County Roads (miles) 476
Bridges 63

N

=

46
95
478
59

63
10
22

48

93

472

59

@ N

62
11
22

[y

48
93
472
60

11

© N

66
17
23

o

53
95
474
60

(1) The Sheriff's Administration and maximum setyigil facility were located in the courthouse.RAN 08, the Sheriff's Administration and Jail

Administration moved to the Sheriff's AdministratiBuilding. Booking and maximum security movedhe hew Jail Facility in FY 1

12

63
27
26

54
75
471
61

12

© N

54
24
26

55
e
460
61

(2) In FY 2013, Building Maintenance was changeé&acility Services. The Landscaping subdivisiothef Brazos Center was moved from the Brazos Cémfeacilities Services.
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60
25
27

54
83
479
67
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52
23
27

54
76
472
67

19

© N

62
28
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Table XIX

Page 1 of 2
Brazos County, Texas
General Long Term Debt Payable by Issue
September 30, 2015
(Unaudited)
Debt
Final Debt Authorized
Interest Rates (%) Issue Maturity And
Debt Issue And Dates Date Date Issued
Certificates of Obligation
2005 Series, Issued For: 3.25/3.75/3.75/3.75/3.5/ 9/1/2005 9/1/2015 $ 2,750,000
Buildings, Building Renovations, 3.5/3.625/3.75/33(85
Capital Roads, Equipment, 3/1 and 9/1
and Right-of-Way Acquisition
2009 Series, Issued For: 4.350/4.45/4.50/4.60 10/15/2009 9/1/2034 12,000,000
Exposition Center Expansion and 3/1 and 9/1
Costs of issuance of Certificates
2012 Series, Issued For: 2/2/3/3/413/4/415/5/3 9/1/2012 9/1/2032 9,700,000
Courthouse Renovation, Tax Office, 2.8/3/3/3/3.32B25/
Fleet Maintenance Building, 3.25/3.25/3.375
Renovations of Brazos Center and 3/1 and 9/1
Juvenile Detention Center
General Obligation Bond
2005 Series, Issued For: 6.0/6.0/6.0/6.0/5.5/5.0/ 9/1/2005 9/1/2017 10,500,000
Exposition Center 4.0/4.0/4.0/4.0/4.0/4.0/
4.0//4.125/4.125/4.25/4.25
4.375/4.375/4.375
3/1 and 9/1
Limited Tax Refunding Bonds
Series 2005, Issued For: 4.0 12/1/2005 3/1/2016 6,005,000
R&B New Construction and 3/1 and 9/1
Right-Of-Way Acquisition
Series 2009, Issued For: 3.0/4.0 10/15/2009 9/1/2021 7,365,000
Exposition Center Expansion and 3/1 and 9/1
Costs of issuance of Certificates
Series 2012, Issued for : 2.0/2.0/3.0/3.0/4.0/4.0/4.0/ 9/1/2012 9/1/2025 14,640,
Refund portions of the outstanding 5.0/5.0/5.0/38820
debt payable from ad valorem 3/1 and 9/1
taxes and certain costs of issuance of
the bonds
Limited Tax Bonds
Series 2008, Issued For: 3.25/3.25/3.25/3.25/3.75/ 5/1/2008 9/1/2028 55,000,000
Jail Expansion 3.5/3.63/3.77/3.92/4.0/

4.125/5.00/5.00/5.00/5.0/
4.50/4.50/4.50
3/1 and 9/1

Total Long Term Debt
Note:

(1) All debt obligations of Brazos County are payahd¢hbas to principal and interest solely from ancused
by ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable @rypwithin the County.
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Table XIX

Page 2 of 2

Debt Service Requirements

Debt Outstanding For Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Principal Interest Totals Principal Interest Totals

$ - $ - $ - $ 320,000 $ 12,000 $ 332,000
9,740,000 4,442,126 14,182,126 425,000 424,310 849,310
9,175,000 2,985,193 12,160,193 175,000 319,598 494,598
1,150,000 69,400 1,219,400 545,000 67,800 612,800
755,000 15,100 770,100 720,000 44,600 764,600
3,485,000 436,500 3,921,500 505,000 149,500 654,500
13,700,000 3,051,642 16,751,642 530,000 565,360 1,095,360
44,985,000 15,717,685 60,702,685 2,510,000 2,084,606 4,594,606
$ 82,990,000 $ 26,717,646 $ 109,707,646 $ 5,730,000 $ 3,667,774 $ 9,397,774

(2) The County has the right to call the CO's at amgtas long as they "make-whole" the holders ofa@és.
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Fiscal
Year

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021-2025

2026-2030

2031-2034

Brazos County, Texas
Debt Retirement by Years
September 30, 2015

(Unaudited)

Total Total
Required Required
Principal I nterest

$ 6,115,000 $ 3,457,974
5,575,000 3,250,199
5,795,000 3,033,549
6,040,000 2,805,549
6,295,000 2,563,349
30,830,000 8,667,651
18,495,000 2,592,737
3,845,000 346,638

$ 82,990,000 $ 26,717,646

171

Table XX
Pagelof 3

Total

Required

$ 9,572,974

8,825,199

8,828,549

8,845,549

8,858,349

39,497,651

21,087,737

4,191,638

$ 109,707,646



Table XX

Page2of 3
Brazos County, Texas
Debt Retirement by Years
September 30, 2015
(Unaudited)

General Limited

Certificates of Obligation Obligation Bonds Limited Tax Refunding Bonds Tax Bond

Fiscal Principal Principal Principal Principal

Year 2009 | ssue 2012 | ssue 2005 | ssue 2005 | ssue 2009 | ssue 2012 | ssue 2008 | ssue Total

2016 $ 425,000 $ 400,000 $ 565,000 $ 755,000 $ 520,000 $ 830,000 $ 2,620,000 $ 6,115,000
2017 445,000 415,000 585,000 - 540,000 850,000 2,740,000 5,575,000
2018 445,000 430,000 - - 565,000 1,490,000 2,865,000 5,795,000
2019 465,000 440,000 - - 590,000 1,555,000 2,990,000 6,040,000
2020 475,000 460,000 - - 620,000 1,615,000 3,125,000 6,295,000
2021-2025 2,335,000 2,610,000 - - 650,000 7,360,000 17,875,000 30,830,000
2026-2030 2,665,000 3,060,000 - - - - 12,770,000 18,495,000
2031-2034 2,485,000 1,360,000 - - - - - 3,845,000
$ 9,740,000 $ 9,175,000 $ 1,150,000 $ 755,000 $ 3,485,000 $ 13,700,000 $ 44,985,000 $ 82,990,000
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Table XX

Page3of 3
Brazos County, Texas
Debt Retirement by Years
September 30, 2015
(Unaudited)
General Limited
Certificates of Obligation Obligation Bonds Limited Tax Refunding Bonds Tax Bond
Fiscal Interest I nterest Interest I nterest
Year 2009 | ssue 2012 | ssue 2005 | ssue 2005 | ssue 2009 | ssue 2012 | ssue 2008 | ssue Total

2016 $ 407,310 $ 314,348 $ 46,000 $ 15,100 $ 129,000 $ 549,460 $ 1,996,756 3,457,974
2017 390,310 302,349 23,400 - 107,800 524,561 1,901,779 3,250,199
2018 372,510 285,748 - - 85,700 490,560 1,799,031 3,033,549
2019 354,710 272,848 - - 62,600 430,960 1,684,431 2,805,549
2020 336,110 255,248 - - 38,400 368,760 1,564,831 2,563,349
2021-2025 1,396,150 966,480 - - 13,000 687,339 5,604,682 8,667,651
2026-2030 906,736 519,823 - - - - 1,166,178 2,592,737
2031-2034 278,287 68,351 - - - - - 346,638
$ 4,442,123 $ 2,985,195 $ 69,400 $ 15,100 $ 436,500 $ 3,051,640 $ 15,717,688 $ 26,717,646
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Brazos County, Texas
Debt Service Fund

Revenues, Expenditures, Restricted Fund Balance

and Respective Debt Service Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table XXI

(Unaudited)

Restricted &S
Fiscal Revenues & Other Expenditures & Other Fund Tax
Y ear Financing Sour ces Financing Uses Balance Rates
2006 $ 5,613,092 $ 5,107,768 $ 2,387,029 0.0701
2007 5,351,133 4,829,535 2,908,627 0.0620
2008 6,060,450 6,137,699 2,831,378 0.0620
2009 8,237,284 7,639,774 3,428,888 0.0813
2010 10,035,432 9,389,134 4,075,186 0.0834
2011 10,048,631 9,203,000 4,920,817 0.0844
2012 10,253,259 9,659,699 5,514,377 0.0813
2013 26,987,310 26,426,336 6,075,351 0.0779
2014 9,304,148 9,219,311 6,160,188 0.0707
2015 $ 9,079,564 $ 9,399,574 $ 5,840,178 0.0624

* |&S tax rates are presented as cents per $1@@8sdssed value.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS ON
COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015



w
Ingram,Wallis &Co.rc

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Duane Peters, County Judge
and the Honorable County Commissioners
Brazos County, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the

- governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Brazos County, Texas (the “County”) as of and for the year ended September 30,
2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 10, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are -
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s
internal control. ‘

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2015-001 and
.2015-002.

County’s Response to Findings

The County’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accOmpanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Their response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bryan, Texas W QN dﬂy) ,
March 10, 2016 4
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Ingram,Wallis &Co.p.c.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE OF TEXAS SINGLE AUDIT CIRCULAR

To the Honorable Duane Peters, County Judge
and the Honorable County Commissioners -
Brazos County, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited Brazos County, Texas’ (the “County”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the State of
Texas Single Audit Circular that could have a direct and material effect on each of the County’s
major federal and state programs for the year ended September 30, 2015. The County’s major
federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. '

‘Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major federal
and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and the
State of Texas Single Audit Circular. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
amajor federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the County’s comphance with those requirements and performmg such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
County’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types'of compliance
. requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended September 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal and state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and
state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not:
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the

first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2015-001 and
2015-002 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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The County’s response to the internal controls over compliance findings identified in our audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The County’s response-
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bryan, Texas 0 (\N JLAL Cﬁ,yr
March 10, 2016 \ b
» B
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Accounts Accounts
Federal Pass-Through Program/ Receivable Grant Funds Receivable
CFDA Grantor/State Award (Payable) Refunded (Payable)
Federal Grantor/Pass -Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Amount October 1, 2014 Receipts Expenditures in 2015 September 30, 2015
U. S. Department of Justice
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 2015-AP-BX-0704 44,719 - 0% - $ 44,719 $ - 0% 44,719
07/01/13-6/30/14
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 2014-AP-BX-0294 44,532 44,532 44,532 - - -
07/01/12-06/30/13
Passed through City of Bryan
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant-ARRA 16.804 2012-DJ-BX-0174 8,346 (2,410) 5 2,408 7 -
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2013-DJ-BX-0320 7,898 (7,919) 20 - - (7,939)
Passed through City of College Station
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2014-DJ-BX-0528 8,876 - 8,885 8,876 - (©)]
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2015-DJ-BX-0966 8,419 - - - - -
Passed through Office of the Governor of Texas,
Criminal Justice Division
Deliguency/Truancy Prevention Program 16.540 2816301 25,000 2,089 16,846 14,757 - -
Crimes Against Women Prosecution Unit N/A 2909701 114,750 - - - - -
Victim Assistance Coordinator 16.575 2862601 46,583 - - - - -
36,292 70,288 70,760 7 36,771
U. S. Department of Transportation
Passed through State Department of
Highways and Public Transportation
Metropolitan Planning Organization 20.205 50-14XF0024 324,334 55,484 55,484 - - -
Metropolitan Planning Organization 20.205 50-15XF0024 325,501 - 143,709 225,286 - 81,577
Metropolitan Planning Organization 20.505 50-15XF0024 76,899 - 76,899 76,899 - -
55,484 276,092 302,185 - 81,577
U.S. Genera Services Administration
Passed through Texas Facilites Commission/
Federal Surplus Program
Donation of Federal Surplus Persona Property 39.003 N/A - - 1,906 1,906 - -
- 0% 1,906 $ 1,906 $ -8 -
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Accounts Accounts
Federal Pass-Through Program/ Receivable Grant Funds Receivable
CFDA Grantor/State Award (Payable) Refunded (Payable)
Federal Grantor/Pass -Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Amount October 1, 2014 Receipts Expenditures in 2015 September 30, 2015
Department of Homeland Security
Passed through Texas Department of Public Safety
Division of Emergency Management 97.042 14TX-EMPG-1440 56,751 $ 56,751 $ 56,751 $ - $ - $ -
Division of Emergency Management 97.042 15TX-EMPG-1440 55,696 - 27,848 55,696 - 27,848
Emergency Preparedness Grant 97.067 SHSP
EMW-2013-SS-00045 20,000 9,700 17,096 7,396 - -
Emergency Preparedness Grant 97.067 SHSP
EMW-2014-SS-00029 20,000 - 18,535 10,812 - (7,723)
66,451 120,230 73,904 - 20,125
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through the Texas Department of
of Agriculture
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 713032 750,000 126,693 714,000 587,307 - -
126,693 714,000 587,307 - -
U. S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through the Texas Department of Family
and Protective Services
Title 1V-E-Lega (CPS) 93.658 10/01/13-09/30/14 60,979 46,879 46,879 - - -
Title 1V-E-Lega (CPS) 93.658 10/01/14-09/30/15 64,713 - 36,399 46,169 - 9,770
Title IV-E-Foster Care Maintenance 93.658 10/01/13-09/30/14 12,759 5,765 5,765 - - -
Title IV-E-Foster Care Maintenance 93.658 10/01/14-09/30/15 13,781 - 1,948 2,956 - 1,008
Passed through the Texas Juvenile Justice Department
Title IV-E - Administration - Juvenile 93.658 TJID-E-2014-021 - 463 - - - 463
Title IV-E - Administration - Juvenile 93.658 TJID-E-2015-021 - - - 1,580 - 1,580
Title IV-E - Maintenance - Juvenile 93.658 TJD-E-2014-021 - 108,231 106,678 (1,103) - 450
Title IV-E - Maintenance - Juvenile 93.658 TJD-E-2015-021 - - 76,879 126,867 - 49,988
Passed through the Texas Department
of Agriculture
National School Lunch Program 10.555 07/01/15-06/30/16 - - 4,856 7,401 - 2,545
National School Lunch Program 10.555 07/01/14-06/30/15 - 5,383 29,354 23,971 - -
School Breakfast Program 10.553 07/01/15-06/30/16 - - 3,078 4,957 - 1,879
School Breakfast Program 10.553 07/01/14-06/30/15 - 3,491 18,989 15,498 - -
Food Services Division Commodities 10.550 07/01/15-06/30/16 - - - - - -
Food Services Division Commodities 10.550 07/01/14-06/30/15 - - 3,320 3,320 - -
170,212 334,145 231,616 - 67,683
Total Federal Assistance $ 455132 $ 1,516,661 $ 1,267,678 $ 7 $ 206,156
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (Continued)

Accounts Accounts
Federal Pass-Through Program/ Receivable Grant Funds Receivable
CFDA Grantor/State Award (Payable) Refunded (Payable)
State Grant or Program Title Number Number Amount October 1, 2014 Receipts Expenditures in 2015 September 30, 2015
Texas Juvenile Justice Department
State Aid N/A TJID-A-2015-021 758352 $ 29,700 $ 758,352 $ 728,652 $ - $ -
09/01/14-08/31/15
State Aid N/A TJID-A-2016-021 1,043,984 - - 46,680 - 46,680
09/01/15-08/31/16
JAEP N/A TJID-P-2015-021 14,984 - 14,984 14,984 - -
08/01/14-5/31/15
JAEP N/A TJID-P-2016-021 14,984 - - - - -
08/01/15-5/31/16
Commitment Reduction N/A TJID-C-2015-021 136,257 6,268 136,257 129,989 - -
09/01/14-08/31/15
Mental Health N/A TJID-N-2015-021 180,399 12,820 180,399 157,785 9,794 -
09/01/14-08/31/15 48,788 1,089,992 1,078,090 9,794 46,680
Office of the Attorney General
SAVNS Program N/A 1554377 27,715 - 27,715 27,715 - -
- 27,715 27,715 - -
Total State Assistance 48,788 1,117,707 1,105,805 9,794 46,680
Total Federal and State Assistance $ 503920 $ 2,634,368 $ 2,373,483 $ 9801 $ 252,836




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

General - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards presents all
federal and state expenditures of Brazos County, Texas (the “County”).

Basis of Accounting - The expenditures on the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
and State Awards are presented on the accrual basis.

Relationship to Financial Statements - Expenditures of federal and state awards are reported in
the County’s basic financial statements on the accrual basis.

Relationship to Federal Financial Reports - Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports in all significant respects.

SUMMARY OF NON-CASH ASSISTANCE

The County receives non-cash assistance in the form of commodities from the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services passed through the Texas Department of Agriculture. In fiscal year
ended September 30, 2015, the County received $3,320 in commodities.

SUMMARY OF INSURANCE RELATED TO GRANT FUNDS

County employees responsible for or with authority to expend or disburse grant funds are covered
by various insurance policies. The amounts of these policies vary from $5,000 to $10,000.

SUMMARY OF FEDERAL LOANS OR LOAN GUARANTEES

The County had no Federal loans or loan guarantees during this fiscal year.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statemenis ‘

Type of auditor’s report issued: unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

*  Material weakness(es) identified? yes _X no
. Significant deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be ' none
material weaknesses? yes _X reported
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes _X no
Federal and State Awards

Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? yes _X no

*  Significant deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be ' none
material weaknesses? X yes reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance

with section 510(a) of Circular A-133? X __ves no
Identification of major programs: »
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal or State Program or Cluster
14.228 Community Development Block Grant
N/A TJID Grant A-State Aid
Dollar threshold used to distinguish .
between type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X _yes no
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AND STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

2015-001 Non~Compliance with Requirements of Davis-Bacon Act

CFDA No: 14.228

Program Title: Commmunity Development Block Grants/State’s Program and Non-Entitlement
Grants in Hawaii

Agency: Department of Housing and Urban Development

Pass-through Entity: Texas Départment of Agriculture

Contract No.: 713032

Contract Period: 9/21/13-9/20/16

Criteria: Per the terms of the contract agreement with the Texas Department of Agriculture (TDA),
- the grant is subject to the requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act. This includes arequirement for the
contractor or subcontractor to submit to the non-Federal entity weekly, for each week in which any
contract work is performed, a copy of the payroll and a statement of compliance (certified payrolls).
This must be completed within seven days after the regular pay date for the pay period.

Condition: The prime contractor was made aware of the requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act
through the signed contract with Brazos County as well as at the pre-construction meeting that was
held with the County’s grant administrator. It is the prime contractor’s responsibility to make sure
that these are completed by all subcontractors on the job as well. We noted multiple instances of
the certified payrolls not being timely submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Davis-
Bacon Act for the prime contractor and one of the subcontractors.

Questioned Costs: As the certified payrolls were submitted, this finding did not result in any
questioned costs.

Context: During the review of the certified payrolls submitted for the project, it was noted that 12
out of the 32 certified payrolls or no work reports for the prime contractor and both of the certified

payrolls filed for one of the subcontractors were not timely filed in accordance with the
requirements noted above.

Effect: The requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act were not fully adhered to.
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Cause: This appears to have resulted primarily from miscommunication between the County’s
outside engineer, the prime contractor and the grant administrator. The project was originally
signed off as being complete on May 1, 2015. However, there was some rework that needed to be
done to the portion of the project funded with the grant funds. It was planned that the rework
would be done under a different contract that was not funded with federal dollars. The engineer
discovered that there were additional funds remaining from the grant that could be used. It doesn’t
appear that this ' was communicated to all parties involved until later thus resulting in the certified

. payrolls not being submitted timely. County staff placed reliance on the third parties involved and
did not follow up with questions to ensure that the grant was being administered adequately. With
regard to the late certifications by the subcontractor, this appears to have been a result of the prime
contractor not notifying the sub that the project was a federally funded pI'OJeCt which required
following the Dav1s—Bacon Act.

Recommendation: TWC recommends that County staff remain involved in the administration of its
grants and not place complete reliance on third parties that may be hired to assist with grant
projects. In addition, procedures at the on-set of a federally funded construction project need to
ensure that all parties involved are aware of the compliance requirements, understand them, and are
cognizant of the consequences that may result if the requirements are not adhered to.

Response & Planned Corrective Action: We concur with this finding. In order to adhere to the
Davis-Bacon Act, the contractors or subcontractors of the grant have to submit their certified
payrolls within seven days after the regular pay date for the pay period. Although the finding
resulted primarily from miscommunication between the County’s primary contractor and the third
party grant administrator, it reflected the County staff’s lack of experience with construction grants
-and exposure to the Davis-Bacon Act. The County is determined to 1) be more actively involved in
the administration of such grants; 2) be aware of the compliance requirements; and 3) implement
procedures to meet specific grant requirements in the future.

2015-002 Non-Compliance with Subcontract Requirements

CFDA No: 14.228

Program Title: Community Development Block Grants/State’s Program and Non-Entitlement
Grants in Hawaii

Agency: Department of Housing and Urban Development

Pass-through Entity: Texas Department of Agriculture

Contract No.: 713032 '

Contract Period: 9/21/13-9/20/16

Criteria: Per the terms of the contract agreement with the Texas Department of Agriculture (TDA),
the grantee shall only subcontract for performances described in the contract to which the federal
labor standards apply only after submitting a Subcontractor Eligibility form for each proposed
subcontract and based on the information submitted, the grantee has obtained TDA’s prior written
approval to enter into the subcontract.

Condition: The prime contractor was made aware of the requirements to notify the County of any
subcontractors that were used on the project at the pre-construction meeting that was held with the
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County’s grant administrator. It is the prime contractor’s responsibility to communicate this
information tothe appropriate parties. We noted one subcontractor that was used on the proj ject for
which approval from TDA was not obtained.

Questioned Costs: As the subcontractor was used wﬂhout obtaining the required approval from
TDA, questioned costs of $10,120 were noted.

Context: During the review of the three subcontractors that were used on the project by the prime
contractor, we noted that the Courity did not obtain the appropriate approval from TDA prior to
using one of the subcontractors.

- Effect: The requirements of the Texas Capital Fund Contract with TDA were not fully adhered to
resulting in the questioned costs noted above.

Cause: This appears to have resulted from a failure on the part of the prime contractor to
adequately report the subcontractors used on the project. County staff working with the project do
not appear to have been aware of the requirements. They again placed reliance on the third parties
involved and did not follow up with questions to ensure that the grant was being administered
adequately.

Recommendation: TWC again recommends that County staff remain involved in the administration

of its grants and not place complete reliance on third parties that may be hired to assist with grant

projects. In addition, as noted in the previous finding, procedures at the on-set of a federally

funded construction project need to ensure that all parties involved are aware of the compliance

requirements and contract terms, understand them, and are cognizant of the consequences that may
" result if the requirements are not adhered to.

Response & Planned Corrective Action: We concur with this finding. In order to comply with the
contract agreement with the Texas Department of Agriculture, the County shall only enter into the
subcontract after it has obtained TDA’s prior written approval. The County will implement
procedures to ensure that the County staff are aware of the grant requirements and actively
monitoring the administration of the grant.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported n
accordance w1th Government Auditing Standards.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AND STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
There were ﬁo Federal or State award ﬁndmgs and questioned costs which are required to be

reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133 or the State of Texas Single
Audit Circular.
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